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ARRANGER'S DISCLAIMER

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited {the “Issuer”) has authorized iDLC Investments Limited (“IDLCIL” or the
“Arranger”) to distribute this Information Memorandum in connection with the proposed transaction
outlined in it ({the “Transaction”) and the bond proposed to be issued in the Transaction (the “Bond”}.

This Information Memorandum is provided to prospective investors on a private and confidential
basis for use solely in connection with the issue, offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase the
Zero Coupon Bonds. This information Memorandum shall not be, in whole or in part, reproduced or
used for any other purpose without prior written consent of the Arranger.

The Issuer has prepared this Information Memorandum and the Issuer is solely responsible for its
contents. The Issuer will comply with all laws, rules and regulations and has obtained all regulatory,
governmental and corporate approvals for the issuance of the Bond, All the information contained in
this Information Memorandum has been provided by the Issuer or is from publicly available
information, and such information has not been independently verified by the Arranger. No
representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is or will be made, and no responsibility or liability
is or will be accepted, by the Arranger or its affiliates for the accuracy, completeness, reliability,
correctness or fairness of this Information Memorandum or any of the information or opinions
contained therein, and the Arranger hereby expressly disclaim, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
any responsibility for the contents of this Information memorandum and any liability, whether arising
in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to or resulting from this Information Memorandum or any
information or errors contained therein or any omissions therefrom. By accepting this Information
Memorandum, you agree that the Arranger will not have any such liability.

You should carefully read and retain this Information Memorandum. However, you are not to
construe the contents of this Information Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory
or tax advice, and you should consult with your own advisors as to all legal, accounting, regulatory,
tax, financial and related matters concerning an investment in the Bond.

¢ MesBaus Sunnah
-ompany Secrefary
Air Akhter Hossain Lid,
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I1sSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of prospectus. The
issue of non-convertible zero coupon bonds is being made strictly on a private placement basis.
Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to the same person and
shall be treated as such. It does not constitute and shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or an
invitation to subscribe to the bond issue to the public in general. Apart from this Information
Memorandum, no information memorandum or prospectus has been prepared in connection with
the offering of this issue.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared to provide general information about the issuer
to potential investors to whom it is addressed and who are willing and eligible to subscribe to the
bond issue. This Information Memorandum does not purport to contain all the information that any
potential investor may reguire. Neither does this Information Memerandum nor any other
information supplied in connection with the bond issue is intended to provide the basis of any credit
or other evaluation and any recipient of this information Memorandum shoufd not consider such
receipt a recommendation to purchase any bonds. Each potential investor contemplating the
purchase of any bonds should make his/her own independent investigation of the financial condition
and affairs of the issuer and his/her own appraisal of the creditworthiness of the issuer.

Potential investors should consuit their own financial, legal, tax, and other professional advisors as to
the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in the bonds and should possess
the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the suitability of such investment to such
investor’s particular circumstances.

The information relating to the company contained in this information Memorandum is believed by
the issuing company to be accurate in all respects as to the date hereof.

It is the responsibility of potential investors to also ensure that they will sell/transfer these Bonds in
strict accordance with this Information Memorandum and other applicalde laws. None of the
intermediaries or their agents or advisors associated with this issue undertake to review the financial
condition or affairs of the issuer during the life of the arrangements contemplated by this Information
Memorandum or have any responsibility to advise any investor or potential investor in the bonds of
any information available with or subsequently coming to the attention of the intermediaries, agents
or advisors.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained
or incorporated by reference in this information Memorandum or in any material made available by
the issuer to any potential investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the issuer.

The contents of this Information Memorandum are intended to be used only by those potential
investors to whom it Is distributed. it is not intended for distribution to any other person and should
not be reproduced by the recipient.

Md. M&&¥aus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid,
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The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum shall maintain utmost confidentiality
regarding the contents of this Information Memorandum and shall not reproduce or distribute in
whole or part or make any announcement in public or to a third party regarding its contents, without
the prior written consent of the issuer till the time the Information Memorandum comes within public
domain. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a bondholder may provide this Information Memorandum
to a potential investor for the sole purpose of transferring the bonds.

Each person receiving this Information Memorandum acknowledges that:

v Such person has been afforded an opportunity to request and to review and has reviewed and
recelved this Information Memorandum and all additional information considered by an
individual to be necessary to verify the accuracy or to supplement the information herein; and

»  Such person has not relied on any intermediary that may be associated with the issuance of
the bonds in connection with his/her investigation of the accuracy of such information or
his/her investment decision.

The issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum to reflect subsequent events
after the date of the Information Memorandum and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to
such subsequent events without first confirming its accuracy with the issuer, Neither the delivery of
this Information Memorandum nor any sale of bonds made hereunder shall, under any
circumstances, constitute a representation or create any implication that there has been no change
in the affairs of the issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum does not constitute, not may it be used for or in connection with, an
offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized
or to any person to whom it is unfawful to make such an offer or solicitation. No action is being taken
to permit an offering of the bonds or the distribution of this Information Memorandum in any
jurisdiction where such action is required. The distribution of this Information Memorandum and the
offering and sale of the bonds may be restricted by law in certain jurisdiction. Persons into whose
possession this Information Memorandum comes are required to inform themselves about and to
observe any such restrictions.

Company Secrefary

Md. Masbaus Sunnah

KMir Akhter Hossain Lid,
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Md. Masbhaus Sunnah
Company Secretaty
Mir Akhter Hoessain Lid,
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REPORT TO THE ELIGIBLE INVESTORS

Issuer has obtained information regarding Bangladesh and its economics from various government
publications and other sources. Although we believe that its sources are reliable, you should keep in
mind that it has not independently verified information it has obtained from industry and government
sources and information from its internal surveys has not been verified by any independent sources.
In addition, we have obtained information about the Trustee i.e. UCB tnvestment Limited from the
Trustee and do not accept any responsibility for the information contained in the section entitled “The
Trustee”. Further, we do not accept any responsibility for the information contained in the section
entitled “Credit Rating”. We are not making any representation to you concerning the accuracy or
completeness of the information contained in the section “The Trustee” or in the section “Credit

Rating” section.

The distribution of this Information Memorandum and the Offering is restricted only in Bangladesh. it
is not intended or make to offer or sale of the Bonds in any other jurisdiction. The Offerings will not
be offered to the public at large in Bangladesh, or outside Bangladesh.

We may withdraw this offering at any time, and we reserve the right to reject any offer to purchase
the Bonds in whole or in part and to sell to any prospective investor less than the full amount of the
Bonds sought by such investor.

We have obtained approval from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission {BSEC) for issue of
Bonds and the distribution of this Information Memorandum. Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission has given their consent to issue the Bonds thraugh its letter No. dated ]

&

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secrslaty
Mir Akhtsr Hossain Lid,




LC

Irvestmanis Limited

/-ein;m.(,iww A s

TABLE OF CONTENTS
eosection i Particulars i Rt e i Page No.~
_____ Section] | Risk Factors and Management's Perception about the Risks 1-4
(a) interest Rate Risks 1
{h} Foreign Exchange Risks 1
{c) Non-Repayment Risks {Credit Risks) 1
{d) Prepayment, Call or Refunding Risks 2
(e) Security Risks 2
(f} Liguidity Risks 2
(g) Management Risks 2
{h) Operational Risks 2
{I} Business Risks 3
{i) Industry Risks 3
(k} Market and Technology Related Risks 3
{1} Risks related to potential or existing Government Regulations 3
{m} Risks related to potential changes in Global or National Policies 4
Sectton Detailed Description and Information 5-7
Section Il Details plan of the Utilization of Proceeds 8
Saction IV Features of the Debt Security to be Issued 9-1%
Section V Description of Collateral Security and Type of Charges To Be Created Against Issue 12
Section VI Rights & Obligations of the |ssuer 13-15
Section VII Rights & Obligations of tha Trustee 16-19
Section VIl Rights and Obligations of the issue manager, underwriter, or any other centractuat parties 20
Section IX Rights, Duties And Obligations Of The Investors 21
Section X Description of the Issuer: Mir Akhter Hossain Limited 22-
{a) Capital Structure 24
{b} Business 24
{c) Management 25
(d} Description of Encumbered and Unencumbered Assets With Value Thereof 26
{g) Profile of 8oard of Directors 26
{f) Description of Assets and Liabilitles 29
{8) Description of Previously ssued Debt or Securities 30
Section Xi Audited Financial Statements of the 1ssuer, Mir Akhter Hossain Limited 31
Section Xil Brief Overview and Comparative Financlal Staternents 32-34
Section Xl Ratigs for the Last Five Accounting Years 35-36
Section XIV | Credit Rating Report of the issue 37
Sectlon XV Latest Default Matrix and Transition Statistics of CRC 38
Section XVl | Descrigtion of the Trustee: UCE investment Limited 39-42
Section XV | Modus Gperandi of the Issue 43-45
Section XVill | Details of Fees Structure and Expenses 46
Annexuras Annexure 1,2, 3 and 4
Annexure 1 1 Audited Financial Statement for the year ended June 30, 2021 Annexure 1
Annexure 2 Due Diligence Certificate of the Trustee Annexure 2
Annexure 3 | Credit Rating Report of the Issue Annexure 3
Annexure 4 | Credit Rating Report of the |ssuer Annexure 4

”4&\&-%%__, vii

&

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
hir Akhter Hossaln Lid,




Iwasiments Umited

P
Lfinancing Asppine.

SecTioN | Risk FACTORS AND VIANAGEMENT’S PERCEPTION ABOUT THE RISKS

a. Interest Rate Risks

As on June 30 2021, Mir Akhter had outstanding bank borrowing with several financial institutions
amounting to BDT 17,005 million. Interest rates on such loans ranges from 7% to 9% per annum.
Hence, the company is exposed to volatility of interest rates on its outstanding Habilities.

Management Perception

Mir Akhter is engaged in execution of construction projects which is long term in nature. The
company took long term loans to finance construction of these projects in line with the work order
received. So, the loans are backed by the cash flow of these projects. As Mir Akhter Is engaged in
large scale construction projects, the Company requires significant bank financing. To retain a
bargaining position, the company maintains relationship with several banks. Due to this bargaining
power, the company has been able to receive loans at an attractive rates. So, the management of
the company does not consider interest rate swing as a major risk.

b. Foreign Exchange Risks

Mir Akhter imports various construction materials and capital machineries from foreign countries
and makes payments in foreign currency. Most of its foreign currency transactions are settled in
US Dollars. Hence, any significant volatility in the exchange rate of Taka against US Dollar will
increase the volatility of the company’s cash flow and profitahility.

Management Perception

From time to time, Mir Akhter imports various construction materials and capital machineries
from foreign countries and makes payments in foreign currency. The company also receives part
of its revenue in foreign currency. Hence, there is a natural hedge between this receipt and
payment. For last few years the exchange rate between USD and BDT are in a stable condition and
Bangladesh’s Foreign Exchange Reserve is increasing significantly which is pivotal for this exchange
rate stability. However, if the BDT appreciates or depreciates significantly, this will be a nationwide
phenomenon experienced by the whole industry.

c. Non-Repayment Risks {Credit Risks)

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may occur from the failure of any counter party to make required
payments in accordance with agreed terms and condition and/or deterioration of
creditworthiness.

Management Perception

All projects of Mir Akhter are backed hy contracts and majority of the projects are government
projects. The company recognizes revenue based on these contracts. Thus, Mir Akhter does not
foresee any significant credit risk.

4. Masbaus Sunnah
ompany Secrefary
Hr Akhter Hossain Lid.
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d. Prepayment, Call or Refunding Risks
Prepayment, call or refunding risks are the risks associated with the principal amount of a bond.

Management Perception
Since this is a zero-coupon bond, prepayment risk is not applicable here.

e. Security Risks

Security risk pertains from the adverse changes in the value of collaterals securing the investment
of the subscribers and it takes the worst turn in case of default situation.

Mitigation
Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is not going keep any asset as collateral. So the risk is not applicable
for this bond issuance.

f. Liquidity Risks 7

Liquidity risk refers to any company’s inability to meet its short term financial demand. If the
company fails to generate cash from its short term assets to pay short term liabilities as the
payment becomes due, liguidity risk arises.

Management Perception

As of June 30, 2021, Mir Akhter had BDT 7,673 million as current asset whereas the total current
liabilities stood at BDT 5,031 million. Hence, the current ratio of the company is very high which
provides evidence of strong liquidity position that should act as a safeguard against any potential
liquidity issues.

g. Management Risks

Management risk refers to the chance that management’s inefficiency or under performance
which will finally affect the shareholders. The bondholders may suffer financial losses in such an
event.

Management Perception

The management of Mir Akhter has significant experience in the construction industry. All the
teams of Mir Akhter are composed of qualified professionals. Absence of any of the team head
will not impact the business significantly as the other team members will take up the
responsibility. Moreover, the directors of Mir Akhter look after the business on a regular basis.
The managing director of the business provides overall guidance in regular business issues. Hence,
the absence of any key management personnel may not impact the business significantly.

h. Operational Risks
Business operation of the Company may be affected by strikes, work stoppages or increase in
wage demands by employees.

Management Perception

The Company always maintain a good refationship with all of its employees. The company believes
that employees are thelr main strength and the Company’s success immensely depends upon their
performance. The benefits received by the employees are also in line with other companies in the
industry. So, it is highly unlikely for the company to experience such event.

Strictly Private & m
|

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secrelary
Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid.
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i. Business Risks

The successful implementation of the project depends on availability of funds, infrastructural
facilities, weather conditions, labour and supply of raw materials within due time. Shortage of
fund or any other micro or macro-economic obstacles may expose the projects to completion risk.
Moreover, if the company fails to win projects, it may create obstacle for the existing business and
the future business as weil.

Management Perception .

Mir Akhter is an effective ‘One-stop Construction Management Service Provider’ in the country.
Majority of Mir Akhter's clients are government bodies and renowned corporate entities. Hence,
the risk of not getting available funds and infrastructural facilities are very slim for Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited. The company also receives fund from bank through work-order financing, by
which loans are taken to finance specific construction projects. Besides, the company procures the
raw material from various sources and maintains a strong liaison with the suppliers. Weather
conditions sometimes affect the business of construction industry. During the rainy season, work
is somewhat affected in the overall construction sector but through careful planning Mir Akhter
performs a greater portion of work during the dry season to minimize seasonal impact.

j-  Industry Risks
Companies operating In the construction services industry will be affected if there is any adverse
changes in the industry.

Management Perception

As Bangladesh is progressing through phases of economic development, there is an increasing need
for construction services. Hence, the management does not foresee any significant industry related
risk over the short term period.

k. Market and Technology Related Risks

If there is any reduction of demand for construction services industry, businesses in the
construction sector will get affected.

Management Perception

The market for construction services is growing rapidly. As the economy is developing, there is an
increased demand for major construction projects. Existing construction services businesses will
also be affected for any major swing in technology that these businesses use. Although investment
in new technology might be costly, hew technology may increase efficiency of the work.

.  Risks related to potential or existing Government Regulations
If there is any significant change in existing government regulation, construction industry will be
affected, ‘

Management Perception

Mir Akhter has a long history of working in the construction industry. As the economy of
Bangladesh is growing, there is an increased demand for construction services. The government of
Bangladesh has always been supportive to the industry. So, the management of Mir Akhter does
not foresee any changes in regulation that will negatively impact the landscape of the construction

industry.

Strictly Private & Confidential W )
J‘}A""'L—é Md. Mdsbaus Sunnah

a Company Secrefary

Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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m. Risks related to potential changes in Global or National Policies
Risk associated with any potential changes in global issues or a change in national policy may affect
the business and industry as well.

Management Perception

Any changes in the global and national policy will affect the industry as a whole. Due to significant
financial and operational strength of the company, Mir Akhter is in a better position to withstand
any adverse changes in global or national policies.

B

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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SecTion |l; DETAILED DESCRIPTION AND INFORMATION

Detailed description and information as per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
{Debt Securities) Rules, 2021; Schedule- A (Part | and Part I} is as foHows —

A. Particulars of Issuer/ Originator:

(a) | Name Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

{b} | Legal Status Public Limited Company
Red Crescent Borak Tower
Level 7 & 10

{c} | Details of contact information 71-72 Old Elephant Road

Eskaton Garden, Dhaka 1000

Phone: +880-2-55138529, +880-2-55138533-35
July 18, 1980 {incorporated as a private limited
company)

luly 18, 1980; initially the company commenced
its business as partnership firm in 1968

{d} | Date of incorporation

(e} | Date of commencement of business

{f} | Authorized capital (as on date) BDT 2,000,000,000
{g) | Paid-up capital (as on date) BDT 1,207,715,470
(h) | Total Equity (as on June 30, 2021) BDT 5,555,652,136
(i} | Total Liabilities {as on June 30, 2021) BDT 17,162,036,756
m Total financiat obligations (as on June 30, BDT 17,162,036,756
2021)
(k) | Total Assets {as on June 30, 2021) BDT 22,721,014,868
() | Total Tangible Assets (as on June 30, 2021} | BDT 22,721,014,868
" {m) | Net worth {as on June 30, 2021} BDT 5,555,652,136

2. Particulars of issue manager:
Not applicable as the issue will be private placed.

3. Particulars of the issue:

{a) | Name Mir Akhter Zero Coupon Bond
{b) | Type of Instrument Non-Convertible Zerc Coupon Bond
{c) | Purpose of the issue The proceeds of the Zero-Coupon Bonds shall

be used for the following:
e Working Capital Investment
e Refinancing a portion of existing

liabilities
{d) | Number of securities and total size of the | Number of Securities: 4,998
issue Face value of each Lot: BDT 3,000,000

Issue Price of each Lot: BDT 2,487,130.63

Total Issue Size (Face Value): BDT
2,499,000,000

Total Discounted Price: BDT 2,071,799,815

{e) | Face value and issue price of securities Face value of each Bond: BDT 500,000

Md, Mgus Sunnah

Company Secrefary
Mir Akbter Hossain Ltd,
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Issue Price of each Bond: Issue Price of each
Rond is Variable as it is ZCB and mentioned in
Features of Bond

(f) | Coupon rate/discount rate and YTM 7.00%*

*the approval from BSEC to be taken in arange
of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to adopt any market change
and to be finalized based on market condition
at the time of bond issuance

{(g) | Tenor/Maturity 4 (four} years from the Issue Date
{h) | Details of conversion/exchange option | No conversion feature
features
(i} | Mode of redemption Structured in a way so the issue redeemed in 6

equal instalments starting from the end of the
18th month from the issue date and each 6-
months thereafter

{i) | Mode of option (call or put) Not Applicable
{k) | Rate of return 7.00%*

*the approval from BSEC to be taken in a range
of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to adopt any market change
and to be finalized based on market condition
at the time of bond issuance

{I} | Applicable tax rate As applicable

{m) | Default protection mechanism Mir Akhter Hossain Limied has structured the
security as follows -
Any/all of the following but not limited to:
s Bank Guarantee by any reputed
scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;
@ Personal Guarantee of all the Directors
of the Issuer;
« Corporate Guarantee from one of the
major sister concerns of the issuer

(n) i Type of collateral securities being offered | Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the
securities for the subscribers as follows -
Anvy/all of the following but not limited to:
¢ Bank Guarantee by any reputed
scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;
¢ Personal Guarantee of all the Directors
of the Issuer;
e Corporate Guarantee from one of the
major sister concerns of the issuer

{o} | Status of securities holders Not applicable

{p) | Period within which securities to be issued | 6 Months from the date of BSEC approval
{q) | Nature of tradability of listing in the stock | Expected to be private placement in demat

exchange(s) form.
Strictly Private & Confidential W
Md. Madraus Sunnah

{r} | Others N/A
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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{a) | Name UCB Investment Limited

{b} | Paid-up capital BDT 250,000,000* as on December 31, 2020
*Paid-up capital has been increased to BDT
1,000,000,000 as on 13 July 2021,

{¢) ! Networth BDT 312,194,085 as on December 31, 2020

{d) | Name of the issue(s) performing as a| 1. BDT 3,000 million of NRBC Bank

trustee

Subordinated Bond-1

2. BDT 5,000 million of Bank Asia Perpetual
Bond

3. BDT 5,000 milion of Mercantile Bank
Perpetual Bond

()

Others

N/A

5. Particulars of the credit rating company:

(a} | Name Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

(b} | Credit rating status of the issuer AA-

(c) | Credit rating status of the issue A+

{d) : Date and validity of rating along with | Rating Date: 26.12.2021
surveilance rating for the lIssuer or | Validity: 25.12.2022
originator and for the Issue

{e) i Latest default rate 0.69%

(f} : Average time to default of the rated | Not applicable
category

{g) | Rating trigger, if any Not applicable

{h} | Others Not applicable

6. Particulars of originators, if any:
Not Applicable

7. Particulars of other contractual parties:
Not Applicable

wd. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
tir Axhter Hossain Lid.
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SECTION Ill: DETAILS PLAN OF THE UTILIZATION OF PROCEEDS

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has applied to Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission for issuance
of zero coupon bond amounting to BDT 2,499 million in face value. The company is expected to raise BDT
2,071,779,815 at 7% discount rate through private placement.

Out of the total proceeds of BDT 2,071 million, the company will restructure a portion of short term
liabilities amounting to BDT 1,657 million. The management of the company will restructure the high cost
bearing liabilities considering the market scenario. The details of use of proceeds is as follows —

Utilization

1. Restructuring a portion of existing liabilities 1,657,423,852 . 80%
2. Working capital 414,355,963 20%
Total 2,071,779,815 100%

The abovementioned loan was taken at 9% interest rate per annum. The repayment of loan tnrough
proceeds of bond will (i) convert the loan into long term in nature, (i) help the company to save 2%
interest rate per annum, (iii) also help the company to match the liabilities with assets which are
predominantly long term in nature.

Additionally, Mir Akhter Hossain Limited will use part of the funds as working capital to pay suppliers,
where on average price discount of 5% can be received.

da L - SRR,

Mir Nasir Hossain Parymal Kumer Sarker
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Md. Masl;aus tsunnah
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. Mir Akhtsr Hossain Ltd Company Secretary

Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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SECTION IV: FEATURES OF THE DEBT SECURITY TO BE ISSUED

Basic Features of the Instrument

BDT 2,499 million Non-Convertible Zero Coupon Bond
IDLC investments Limited ("IDLCIL"} and also referred to as the
“Mandated Lead Arranger” or the “MLA"

Best Efforts / Strictly Non Underwritten

To meet the requirement for refinancing of the existing liabilities and
working capital management through alternative financing
solutions.

Banks, Corporate Houses, Insurance Companies, NBFl's, Asset
Management Firms, Mutual Funds, Merchant Banks and High Net
Worth Individuals etc.

Bangladeshi Taka {BDT)

- BDT 2,499 million

BDT 2,072 million

BDT 500,000

6

BDT 3,000,000

- Private Placement

7.00%*

*the approval from BSEC to be taken in a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a.
to adopt any market change and to be finalized based on market
. condition at the time of bond issuance

Structured in a way so the issue redeemed in 6 equal instalments
starting from the end of the 18th month from the issue date and
- each 6-months thereafter

. To be redeemed in 6 Instalments starting from end of 18" month
from the issue date and each 6 months from thereafier

© 4 (Four) years from the Issue Date

A Subscriber shall have the right to freely transfer, novate or assign
all or a portion of its rights and obligations under the Subscription

ssuer and investors,
Also there is no conversion features in the bond

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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Any/all of the following but not limited to:
e Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in
Bangladesh;
o Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;
¢ Corporate Guaraniee from one of the major sister concerns
of the issuer

Registered

Long Term: AA-, Short Term: ST-3

A+

UCB Investment Limited

Farooqg & Associates

To be redeemed in 6 equal Instalments starting from end of 18th month
from the Issue Date and each 6 months thereafter as depicted below for
each lot of bond:

1 6 - -

2 12 - )

3 18 375,659,137 416,500,000
4 24 362,955,688 416,500,000
5 30 350,681,824 416,500,000
6 36 338,823,018 416,500,000
7 42 327,365,235 416,500,000
8 48 316,294,913 416,500,000

2,071,779,815 2,499,000,000

Calculated based on 7% p.a. The approval from BSEC to be taken in
a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to adopt any market change and to be
finalized based on market condition at the time of bond issuance.

The Issuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% (two per cent)
higher than the discount rate of the Zero Coupon Bond and be
payable on the amount not paid on the due date up till the date of
actual payment.

Taxable as per laws of the country

Total of Arrangement fee, “Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar,
Transfer Agent fee” {for 4 years), Bond Rating fee, & Legal Counsel
Fee: BDT 15 million {approx.}

Appiication Fee of Bond to BSEC: BDT 10,000

Consent Fee of Bond BSEC: 0.10% on the total face value

Trustee Application Fee: BDT 50,000

Trustee Consent Fee: BDT 100,000

Annual Trustee Fee to BSEC {4 years): BDT 200,000

¢ Bond Subscription Agreement

fd. Mﬁ Sunnah

Company Secrelary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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e Trust Deed
e Agency Agreement
e  Any other instrument(s) relating to such transaction

In form and substance satisfactory to the MLA including without
limitation: {i) due diligence having been conducted and completed,
{ii) documentation for the Financing and approptiate business
description disclosure in the offering circular, {iii) receipt by the MLA
of appropriate legal opinions from external counsel, (iv} the Issuer
having obtained all relevant approvals for the financing.

The Laws of The People’s Republic of Bangladesh

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the securities for the
subscribers as follows -
Any/all of the following but not limited to:
e Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in
Bangladesh;
e Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;

e Corporate Guarantee from one of the major sister concerns
of the issuer

At any time after the bonds have become due and repayable, the
Trustee may, at its sole discretion and without further notice in
writing, take such proceedings against the lssuer as it may think fit
to enforce repayment of the bonds and to enforce the provision of
the Trust Deed, but it will not be bound to take any such proceedings
unless (a) it shall have been so requested in writing by the holders of
not less than 662/3 percent in principal amount of the bonds than
outstanding or shall have been so directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution of the Bondholders and (b} it shall have been indemnified
and/or secured to its satisfaction. No bondholder will be entitled to
proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Trustee, having
become bound to do so, fails to do so within a reasonable period and
such failure shall be continuing.
. Unlisted

Listing Status

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Cgmpany Secrefary
Mir Akhter Hossain iid,

Strictly Private & Conﬂdegf‘;c_xj\’m
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SECTION V: DESCRIPTION OF COLLATERAL SECURITY AND TYPE OF CHARGES TO BE CREATED
AGAINST ISSUE

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has structured the securities for the subscribers as follows -

Any/all of the following but not limited to:
o Bank Guarantee by any reputed scheduled bank/s in Bangladesh;

e Personal Guarantee of all the Directors of the Issuer;
e Corporate Guarantee from one of the major sister concerns of the issuer

The issuer only owes the bondholders an indebtedness which is secured by claims over all present and
future assets of the issuer subsequent to all secured lenders/investors.

Strictly Private & Confidential

Md. %&sbaus Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid.



invesiments Limited

Fnsing Aappines

SecTiON VI: RIGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUER

General Covenants by the Issuer: The Bonds shall be issued in registered and unlisted form and Issuer
shall comply with the provisions of the Trust Deed and shall be bound by it.

As long as any of the Bonds remains outstanding or any amount is outstanding to the Trustee or any
Bondholder under any Bond Document, the Issuer undertakes to each of the Trustee and the
Bondholders that it shall comply with the following conditions namely:

e To refrain from substantially changing its general nature of the business;

e To refrain from entering into any transaction, agreement or arrangement with any of
its Affiliates other than on arm’s length basis;

e To promptly obtain any Authorisation required under any law or regulation of its
jurisdiction of incorporation to enable it to perform its obligations under the Bond
Documents and comply with them fully as and when required by the Trustee;

¢ To comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

¢ To shall maintain insurances on and in relation to its business and assets with
reputable underwriters or insurance companies;

e To be duly incorporated and validly existing under the laws of its jurisdiction;

e The Issuer shall duly and punctually follow the prevailing rules and regulations of
taxation.

e To maintain books and records (with respect to itself and its business} in the
manner described in the Trust Deed;

e To promptly do all such acts or execute all such documents as the Trustee may
reasonably specify for the exercise of any rights powers and remedies of the Trustee
provided by or pursuant to the Bond Documents or by law on a best efforts basis and
to the extent permitted by applicable laws;

e To refrain from being a creditor in respect of any Financial Indebtedness except in
ordinary course of business;

e To refrain from incurring or allowing to remain ouistanding any guarantee or
otherwise voluntarily assume any liability except for any guarantee under any Bond
Document or any guarantee in the ordinary course of business consistent with its
current practice;

e To provide such information and within such period of time as specified in the Trust
Deed;

Corporate Covenant: The Issuer shall alf times carry on and conduct its affairs in a proper and
efficient manner in compliance with any requirement of law from time to time in force in Bangladesh
and in compliance with its and in compliance with its Memorandum and Articles of Association save
where failure to do so would not constitute a Materials Adverse Effect.

Consents: The Issuer shall obtain and comply with the terms of all authorisations, approvals,
licences and consents necessary under any Law in connection with its business.

Strictly Private & Conﬁd%
T — 1

“hashaus Sunnah

Company Secfetar‘y
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Authorised Signatories: The Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee upon execution of this Deed and
thereafter upon any change of the same, a list of Authorised Signatories of the Issuer together with a
specimen signature of each Authorised Sighatory.

Financial Statements: The Issuer shall prepare in respect of each financial years, financial
statements and provide the same to the Trustee in such form and manner as described in the Trust
Deed.

General Negative Covenants: The Issuer shall not until after the final Maturity Date, save to the extent
permitted by or contemplated by Applicable Law or with the prior written consent of the Trustee:

o grant, create or permit to exist any encumbrance over (including the grant of security
or trust over or the occurrence of execution or diligence in respect of) its assets which
shall reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.

e Consolidate or merge with any other person.

» Permit the validity or effectiveness of the transaction documents to he impaired or to
be amended, hypothecated, subordinated, terminated or discharged.

Dealing with Trustee: The Issuer shall upon reasonable notice, during normal business hours allow
the Trustee and any persons appointed by the Trustee access to such books of account and other
business records as relate to the assigned rights or the benefit of the assigned rights as the Trustee or
any such persans may reasanably require.

Information to Trustee: So far as permitted by applicable law and subject to any binding
confidentiality restrictions, the Issuer shall give to the Trustee such information, opinions, certificates
and other evidence as the trustee and any persons appointed by the Trustee shall reasonably require
for the purposes of the discharge of the duties, trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in
the Trustee by or pursuant to the Trust Deed or any other Transaction Document.

Execution of Further Documents: The Issuer shall, so far as permitted by applicable law and
regulatory requirements, execute all such further documents and do all such further acted and things
as the Trustee (acting reasonably) may consider to be necessary at the time to give effect to the terms
of the relevant Transaction Documents.

Notification of Event Default: The Issuer shall deliver notice to the Trustee forthwith upon
becoming aware of any Event of Default without waiting for the Trustee to take any further action.

No Variation and Termination of Transaction Documents: The Issuer shall not until the final

Maturity Date, save to the extent permitted by the Transaction Documents or with the prior written
consent of the Trustee [a) terminate any Transaction Documents, (b} vary any provision of any
Transaction Document (c) permit any person who has obligations under the Transaction Document to
be released from such obligations other than in accordance with the terms of the applicable

Md. résbaus Sunnab

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

Transaction Document and any applicable requirement of law or regulatory direction.
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Filings: The Issuer shail effect all required filings in respect of the Issuer and file, record or enrol each
Transaction Document required to be filed, recorded or enrelled with any court or other authority in
Bangladesh and ensure that such required filings, recordings or enrolments are maintained in
accordance with any applicable requirement of law or regulatory direction at all times.

Payments: The Issuer shall pay moneys payable by it to the Trustee under this Trust Deed without set
off, counterclaim, deduction or withholding, unless otherwise compelled by law.

Notices to Bondholders: The Issuar shall send or procure to be sent (not less than three days prior to
the date of publication) to the Trustee, for the Trustee’s approval, one copy of each notice to be given
to the Bondholders in accordance with the Trust Deed and not publish such notice without such
approval and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such notice.

Notification of Non-Payments: The Issuer shall use reasonable endeavours to notify the Trustee
forthwith in the event of non-payment of the full amount within due date.

Notification of Late Payment: The Issuer shall forthwith give notice to the Bondholders through the
Trustee of payments of any sum due in respect of the Bonds, made after their due date to the Trustee,

Non-Listing of Bonds in the Stock Exchanges: The Issuer hereby covenants that the bonds will be
issued in registered and unlisted form. It may be listed if required by BSEC.

Notification of Tax Deduction; The Issuer shall promptly give notice to the Trustee

a} if it is required by law to effect a deduction or withholding of Tax in respect of any
payment due in respect of any Bonds.

b} and in such cases take such action as may be required by the Trustee acting
reasonable in respect thereof.

Consolidation, Amalgamation or Merger: The [ssuer will not consolidate with, merge or amalgamate
into or transfer its assets substantially as an entirety to any company or convey or transfer its
properties and assets substantially as an entirety to any person (the consummation of any such event,
a "Merger"),

Strictly Private & Confidential
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SECTION VIE: RiGHTS & OBLIGATIONS OF THE TRUSTEE

Duties and Powers of the Trustee: The Trustee has the following duties and powers in connection
with the Trust:

e to act on behalf and for the exclusive interest of the investors;

¢ to ensure compliance of the issuer as per the requirements of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission {Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;

e to monitor timely payment of all dues of the issuer to the investors in terms of the IM or other
terms and conditions of the issue of securities under Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission {Debt Securities} Rules, 2021;

e to ensure creation of charges by the issuer over collateral securities and cbtaining other
securities or guarantees in favor of the trustee;

¢ toenforce its rights, over the credit enhancement or collateral securities and other securities
or guarantees when it is necessary to do;

= call the investors’ meeting and enforce the decisions within such time of any default or any
act of the issuer which may affect the interest of the investors as specified in the deed of trust
and in the IM;

v delay in payment of any dues by the issuer, which is not approved by the trustee shall be
treated as final default, in such a case the trustee shall enforce its rights over the credit
enhancement or collateral securities and other securities or guarantees of the issuer
observing due legal process and thereafter the trustee shall dispose-off the same to pay the
proceeds proportionately to the investors after deduction of costs related thereto;

o in case the delay is approved by the trustee for a certain period upon any reasonable ground,
the trustee shall ensure repayment of the dues within the approved delay period along with
interest for the delay period at a rate of 2% (two percent) per annum above the usual rate of
return of the debt instrument;

e in case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger) of the issue under
surveillance rating, the trustee shall ensure the collection of risk premium from the issuer or
originator for the investors as per declaration in the deed of trust or IM, aimed at securing the
lender claims from the borrower's higher risk level;

e the trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission regarding the
activities of the issuer including repayment of dues to the investors;

¢ the trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors within one
manth of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the Commission informed about
the number, nature and other particulars of the complaints received and the manner in which
such complaints have been redressed;

v the trustee shall be liable to sue or to be sued on behalf of the investors:

Provided that if any loss incurred due to negligence of trustee in case of litigation or recovery
process, the trustee shall bear the loss;

e the trustee may, if required, inspect or cali for books of accounts, records, registers of the
issuers and the trust property to the extent necessary for discharging its obligation.

Md. éasbaas Sunnah

Company Seorefary
Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid,
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Covenant to repay: The Trustee is entitled to have the Issuer unconditionally pay or procure to be
paid to or to the order of the Trustee in Taka in freely transferable funds for value the relevant due
date for payment of the principal amount of the Bonds or any of them becoming due for redemption
or repayment on that date and shall until all such payments are duly made uncenditionally pay or
procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the dates provided for in the Trust
Deed, or any of them outstanding from time to time as set out in the Trust Deed.

Reliance on information: The Trustee may in relation to the Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice
of or a certificate or any information obtained from any lawyer or other experts and shall not be
responsible for any Liability occasioned by so acting;

Certificate of directors or Authorised Signatories: The Trustee may call for a certificate signed by two
Authorised Signatories of the Issuer or other person duly authorised as to any fact or matter prima
facie within the knowledge of the Issuer as sufficient evidence thereof. The Trustee shall not be bound
in any such case to call for further evidence or be responsible for any Liability that may be occasioned
by its falling so to do;

Resolution or direction of Bondholders: If there was some defect in the constitution of the meeting
or if the resolution or direction made by the meeting of the bondholders is not valid or binding for
some defect, the Trustee will not be held responsible provided it has acted in good faith.

Bondholders as a class: In connection with the exercise by it of any of its trusts, powers, authorities
and discretions, the Trustee shall have regard to the general interests of the Bondholders as a class.

No obligation to monitor or investigate: The Trustee is under no obligation to monitor or supervise
the functions of any other person under the Bonds or any other agreement or document relating to
the transactions herein. In the absence of actual knowledge of a breach of obligation the Trustee may
assume that each such person is properly performing and complying with its obligations. Similarly, the
Trustee is under no obligation to investigate Bonds or other agreement or documents to that effect.

Bonds held by the Issuer: In the absence of actual knowledge or express notice to the contraty, the
Trustee may assume without enquiry (other than requesting a certificate of the Issuer}, that no Bonds
are for the time being held by or for the benefit of the Issuer or any of its Affiliates;

Events of Default: The Trustee shall not be bound to give notice to any person of the execution of the
Trust Deed or to take any steps to ascertain whether any Default or Event of Default has happened
and, until it shall have actual knowledge or express notice to the contrary.

Right to deduct or withhold for taxes: Deduction or withholding of tax wilf be as per prevailing law of
the land.

Error of judgment: Trustee has no liability for error of judgment made in good faith.

o8

Strictly Private & Confidential

_,LML_, Y

Md. Mashaus Sunnah
Company Secrelary

Mir Akhtar Hossain Lid,



{1‘9&4‘»16 ey t’lﬂyﬂ AYIRN

No responsibility for loss: The Trustee shall not be responsible for any loss incurred by bondholders
subject to any applicable laws or regulations except for its Trustee's own gross negligence, wilful
default or fraud.

Force Majeure: The Trustee shall not be liable for Force Majeure.

Immunities: The Trustee's immunities and protections from liability and its right to indemnification
extend to its officers, directors and employees and it's successors upon resignation and replacement.
The Issuer will not be entitled to claim for itself or any of its assets immunity from suit, execution,
attachment or other legal process.

Trustee's determination: The Trustee may determine whether or not a default in the performance by
the Issuer of any obligation under the provisions is capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to
the interests of the Bondholders. If the Trustee certifies that any such default is not capable of remedy
and/or materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders, such certificate shall be conclusive
and binding upon the Issuer and the Bondholders subject to conditions as specified in the Trust Deed.

Application of proceeds: The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the
Issuer of the proceeds of the issue of the Bonds or the defivery of any Bond Certificate to the persons
entitled to it;

Delegation: The Trustee may, with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, whether by power of
attorney or otherwise, delegate to any perscn or persons or fluctuating body of persons all or any of
the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by the Trust Deed and any such delegation
may be made upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations (including power to
sub-delegate with the consent of the Trustee} as the Trustee may think fit in the interests of the
Bondholder. The Trustee is required to exercise reasonable care in the selection of any such
Appointee.

Agents: Subject to the provisions of the Trust Act 1882, the Trustee may, with the prior consent in
writing of the Issuer, employ agents to conduct its duties in accordance with Trust Deed on its behalf.

Confidential information: The Trustee shall not {unless required by law or ordered so to do by a court
of competent jurisdiction} be required to disclose to any Bondholder any confidential information
{financial or otherwise) made availabie to the Trustee by the Issuer or any other person in connection
with the Trust Deed.

Professional charges: Any trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged in any
profession or business shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual professional and other
charges for business transacted and acts done by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in
connection with the trusts and also his incurred charges in addition to disbursements for all other
work and business done and all time spent by him or his partner or firm on matters arising
in connection with the Trust Deed, including matters which might or should have been attended to in
person by a trustee not being a banker, lawyer, broker or other professional person.

Strictly Private & Confidential
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Expenditure by the Trustee: The Trustee is not obliged to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise
incur any financial liability in the performance of its duties if it has grounds for believing the repayment
(if approved by the issuer) of such funds or adequate indemnity against, or security for, such risk or
liability is not assured to it,

Restriction on financial transactions with the Issuer; The Trustee and its directors and officers shall
be precluded from making any contracts or entering into any transactions (“Other Business) with the
tssuer which would place its fiduciary duties towards the Bondholders in conflict with Its rights and
obligations in such Other Business.

Trustee liable for gross negligence: Trustee shall be liable for gross negligence in the performance of
its duties under the Trust Deed.

Exercise of Discretion: Unless provided to the contrary in the Trust Deed, the Trustee shall not be
obliged to exercise or consider exercising any discretion or consider making or make any
determination or tc consider taking or take any action whatseever in connection with or under or
pursuant to the Bonds unless directed to do.so by the holders of not less than 66 2/3 percent in
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or if so directed by an Extraordinary Resolution and
the Trustee will not be responsible for any loss, expense, damage, claim, cost, charge or liability which
may be suffered as a result thereof.

Trustee’s Obligation for Requesting Compliance Certificates: The Trustee shall have no responsibility
for requesting Compliance Certificates unless the Issuer has failed to deliver such certificates in
accordance with (Terms of Appointment) or the Trustee is requested to do so by any Bondholder.

Modification and Waiver: The Trustee may agree, without the consent of the Bondholders, to {i} any
modification {except as menticned in Amendment Provisions of Trust Deed) to, or the waiver or
authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of, any terms of the Trust Deed which is not materially
prejudicial to the interests of the Bondholders or (ii) any modification to the Bonds or the Trust Deed
which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or to correct a manifest error or {o comply with
mandatory provisions of law. Any such modification, waiver or authorisation will be binding on the
Bondholders and, unless the Trustee agrees otherwise, any such modifications will be notified by the
Trustee to the Bondholders as soon as practicable thereafter.

Interests of Bondholders: The Trustee shall have regard to the interests of the Bondholders as a class
and not individuals in the exercise of its duties under this Deed.

Strictly Private & Confidential
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SEcTION VIH: RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE ISSUE MANAGER, UNDERWRITER, OR ANY
OTHER CONTRACTUAL PARTIES;

As the mode of placement is private placement, no issue manager/underwriter is applicable.

Strictly Private & Confidential
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SECTION IX: RiGHTS, DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE INVESTORS

Binding Obligation: Investors/bondholders are required to enter into a Subscription Agreement with
the Issuer and be bound by the terms and conditions of that agreement.

Severability of Bondholder’s Obligations: The failure to perform obligations of the Bondholders under
the Subscription Agreement and other agreements with identical terms shall not affect the obligations
of the Issuer towards any other Bondholder(s} under other identical agreements.

Individual Right: Fach Bondholder will be entitled to protect and enforce its individual rights
independently without the need for other Bondholder(s} to be joined as additional party in such
proceedings for such purpose.

Powers: The Bondholders shall be able to hold meetings with such power and scope as provided for
in the Trust Deed.

Issue Bond Certificates: Issuer shall duly execute and deliver bond certificates to the bondholders with
conditions attached.

Subscription: The Investors will subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price on the Closing Date
for the allocation, in Bangladesh Taka for same day value to such account as the Issuer designates,
subject to the provisions of the Subscription Agreement,

Compliance: The Bondholder(s) are obligated to comply with all applicable laws and regulations of
Bangladesh.

Indemnity: The Issuer shall fully indemnify the Bondholder{s) from and against any expense, loss,
damage or Hability which any of them may incur as per provisions of this trust deed in connection with
the enforcement, protection or preservation of any right or claim of the Bondholders under the
Transaction Documents.

Payment: The Bondholders will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer in the form
attached as {Form of Investor Representation Letter) of the Subscription Agreement on the
date specified. They are further obligated to pay the purchase price of Bonds to the Issuer in
Bangladesh Taka in the manner provided for on each closing date. -

Termination: The Bondholders can give a termination notice to the |ssuer at any time on or prior to
the Closing Date if the Issuer fails to perform any of its obligations under the Subscription
Agreement, if any of the conditions precedent is not satisfied or waived by the Bondholders on the
Closing Date, or in the case of force majeure. Upon service of such notice Issuer will be discharged
from its obligations except for its liability in relation to expenses related to the Bonds and except for
any liability arising before or in relation to such termination and Bondholder would also be discharged
from performance of their respective obligations under the subscription agreement.

Protection of Interest: The Bondholders are entitled to have their interests protected/preserved by
the Trustee,
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SECTION X: DESCRIPTION OF THE I1SSUER: MR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is a Public Limited Company by shares. initially, Mir Akhter was established
and commenced its operation as partnership firm in 1968. Later on, it was incorporated as a Private
Limited Company on July 18, 1980 vide registration no. C — 8196/35 of 1980-81. Subsequently the
company was converted into a Public Limited Company on January 10, 2017. At present, the
authorized and pald-up capital of the company stands at BDT 2,000 million and BDT 1,208 million
respectively.

MIR AKHTER continues to hold a unique place in the country’s engineering and constructions sector
as a well-diversified and leading company with operations in projects including constructions of roads,
bridges, highways, railway tracks, airports, 5-star luxury hotels, discharge channels, civil construction
of power plants, functional buildings, factary buildings and complex infrastructural projects. The
company is also actively engaged in river dredging, gas pad drilling using high-tech utility rigs,
manufacturing of railway sleepers and poles, and soil stabilization.

MIR AKHTER is the only construction company in the country that has completed and is actively
engaged in all of the following categories of projects —

*  Roads and bridges

= Airports

= Railways tracks

" Power plants

= Buildings and factories

MIR AKHTER’S business is operated with a vision to fully participate in infrastructure development of
Bangladesh with a view to providing high quality construction to its customers, and at the same time
optimizing opportunities for all stakeholders including maximizing value for the shareholders.

MIR AKHTER, a leading brand name in the industry, an excellent conduit for investment into
Bangladesh’s sustained and impressive economic growth story which has a broad spectrum of
capabilities including —

® a highly experienced and professional engineering team,

» tested and strong project management and execution skill set,

s culture of project innovation and adoption of cutting edge technology,

& state-of-the-art equipment portfolio,

e g great track record of contract wins,

= deep partnerships with international engineering companies.

MIR AKHTER has executed a considerable number of construction projects which has contributed to
the infrastructural development of Bangladesh. Notable amongst them —

= 1,884 meter long flyover connecting Mirpur to the - Airport Road

= Shahid Ahasan Ullah Master Ural Setu (Tongi Flyover)

*  Shahid Buddhijibi (3rd Buriganga) Bridge at Basila, Dhaka

= Construction of a new railway line from Majhgram to Dlarchar via Pabna

Strictly Private & Confidential hv( N@
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s Construction of 8 km approach roads (4-lane) and structures under Third Karnaphuli Bridge
Project

w  Radisson Blu Water Garden Hotel, Dhaka

= Independent University Bangladesh Campus at Bashundhara, Dhaka

= The previous new block extension of Dhaka Sheraton Hotel, Dhaka

= 4 bridges and entire asphalting of Hatirjheel Project

e Chevron Bangladesh South - South Drill Pad, JB New Drill Pad, West Pad Construction

= MTB Tower {Mutual Trust Bank Limited), Kazi Nazrul Istam Avenue, Dhaka

¥  Saiham Tower {14- storied building with 3 storied underground parking), Gulshan 1, Dhaka

v Liberation War Museum, Agargacn, Dhaka

= 500-bed hospital {13-storied) at Mugda, Dhaka

»  Construction work of Gopalgonj 100 MW power plant

» 810 meter long PC Box Girder Bridge at Gaforgaon, Mymensingh

" 530.6 meter long bridge over Dhaleshwari River

MIR AKHTER is working on 29 projects and the aggregate value of these on-going projects is around
BDT 56,245 million. Notable amongst them —

= pevelopment of Osmani International Airport, Sylhet

= Development of Shah Amanat International Airport, Chattogram

= Site Preparation and Earthworks for Hazrat Shahjalal International Airport Expansion Project
{Sub-contract)

= Construction of 595m PC Box Girder Bridge Over Bakkhali River at Kusturt Ghat of Cox’s Bazar
District

»  Rehabilitation of Road from Badarkhali Naval Police Station to Yunuskhali including new 680m
Kohelia Bridge under Matarbari Ultra Super Critical Coal Fired Power Project

= |Improvement of Road from Bangabandhu Bridge {West Side) to Hatikamrul {19.80 km) to a 4-
Lane Highway

s 6 (six) 14-storied residential buildings in block A of Dhaka Elevated Expressway Project

*  Improvement of road from Dulia Mari Road to Tangail (22.4 km} from 2-lane to 4-lane

= Construction of 7.35 km Road from Rajghat to Mohoriguna, in Moheshkali Upazila of Cox's
Bazar under Matarbari Ultra Super Critical Coal Fired Power Project (RHD Part)

» Patenga Container Terminal (PCT) Project of Chittagong Port Authority

»  Construction of 595m long PC Box Girder Bridge over Bakkhali River at Kusturi Ghat under
Sadar Upazila of Cox’s Bazar District.

MIR AKHTER's management is headed by Mir Nasir Hossain, a former president of FBCCl and a leading
entrepreneur with an industry experience spanning more than 40 years.

Mir Akhter is an 1SO 14001:2015, ISO 9001:2015, OHSAS 18001:2007, OHSAS 18001:2007 certified
company.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

e Authorized Capital:
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Number of shares 200,000,000 at BDT 10 each — BDT 2,000,000,000

e Paid-up Capital;

Number of shares 120,772,000 at BDT 10 each — BDT 1,207,720,000

Shareholding Structure

1 | Sponsor/Director 48.58% 48.58%
2 | Institute 3.74% 3.96%
3 | Public shareholders 47.68% 47.46%
Total 1.00.00% 100.00%

h. BUSINESS

Since its inception, Mir Akhter Hossain Limited is engaged in construction engineering business. Late
Mir Akeb Hossain established the business of Mir Akhter with a view in mind that planned
infrastructural development is a prerequisite for achieving overall national development. Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited continues to hold a unigue place in the country’s engineering and constructions sector
as a well-diversified and leading company with operations in projects including constructions of roads,
bridges, highways, railway tracks, airports, discharge channels, 5-star fuxury hotels, civil construction
of power plants, functional buildings, factory buildings and complex infrastructural projects. The
company is also actively engaged in gas pad drilling using high-tech utility rigs, river dredging,
manufacturing of railway sleepers and poles, and sotil stabilization.

Mir Akhter's diversified business includes broad category consultancy - from building architectural and
engineering designs to the full construction of the intended structure. Thus Mir Akhter is an effective
‘One-stop Construction Management Service Provider’ in the country. Mir Akhter is already engaged
in providing such construction management services in some of their ongoing projects and has plan
to subcontract projects to others in near future where Mir Akhter would work as the consultant.
Thereby, the company’s strong business aptitude allows it to undertake high-margin project
management activities. The company has a plan to invest in a newspaper subject to approval from
Ministry of Information, Government of the People’s Republic of Bangladesh. The company has made
advance in this regard.

In addition to working under its own name, Mir Akhter also works under several joint venture
agreements. The Company attaches profound importance to the co-operation of multinational
companies and executed several projects of international standard by forming Joint Ventures with
Internationally reputed Construction Companies namely Samwhan Corporation of Korea, Seokwang
Development Company Limited of Korea, Halla Corporation of Korea, Ranken Ratlways Construction
Group Company Limited of China, Sadeem Al Kuwait for General Trading and Contracting Company of
Kuwait, Wuhan Municipal Construction Group of China, Komaihaltec Inc. of Japan.
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The legal status of the joint venture is a partnership at will because it is created only to carry out a
particular construction projects as per contract, but in accordance with the provision of Section - 2
(20) BB of Income Tax Ordinance 1984, its status is a company though it does not have any
consequential effect under this Ordinance,

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited does not have any subsidiary or holding company.

c. MANAGEMENT

Mir Akhter's management is headed by Mir Nasir Hossain, a former president of FBCCI and a leading
entrepreneur with an industry experience spanning more than 40 years. List of senior management of
Mir Akhter is as follows -

Name Designation Educational Qualification Previous Employment
Master of Commerce
) ) . . ) {Accounting) Started service life with Mir
Mir Nasir Hossain Managing Director

Akhter Hossain Limited
Bachelor of Commerce

{Hons.)
MBA in Finance, Goizueta

Business School, EMOrY | |ga (jniversity of Dhaka

- Di Coo iversi
Shama-e Zaheer irector & University, USA 2003-2016
MBA in Finance (IBA)
Azizul H Senior Executive B.Sc. E (Civil) Started service life with Mir
zizul Hague .Sc. Engg. {Civi
4 Director {Technical} &6 Akhter Hossain Limited

Senior Executive
Started service life with Mir

Syed Rasheduzzaman Director B.Sc. Engg. {Civil
yed Rasheduzz . . ¢ Engg. (Civil Akhter Hossain Limited
{Engineering)
Senior Executive : Rural Electrification Board
Md. Golam Mustafa Director B. Sc¢. Engg. (Mech.) {REB)

{Mechanical)
Executive Director
Md. Momtazul Karim {Planning & Co- | B.Sc. Engg. (Civil}

Started service life with Mir
Akhter Hossain Limited

ordination}
Executive Director Started service life with Mir
Md. Ashraful Ista . B.Sc. Engg. {Civil
shratdtisiam {Project) ge. (Civl) Akhter Hossain Limited
. . Executive Director . . . Started service life with Mir
Manik Kumar Biswas . B.Sc. Engineering{Civil) o
{Project) Akhter Hossaln Limited
. ) . Chartered Accountant
Parymal Kumer Sarker, | Chief Financial o
! M.Com Rangs Motors Limited
FCA Officer

B. Com (Hon's)
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d. DESCRIPTION OF ENCUMBERED AND UNENCUMBERED ASSETS WITH VALUE THEREOF

As on June 30, 2021, the company has total assets of BDT 22,731 million. All of its assets are
unencumbered.

e. PROFILE OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sohela Hossain
Chairman

Sohela Hossain is the Chairperson of the Board of Directors of Mir Akhter Hossain
Limited. She has completed Bachelor of Arts {Hon's) and Master of Arts in Philosophy
from University of Dhaka. She is a renowned social worker and an educationist. She is
actively involved in cement, telecom, banking, real estate, concrete products, and power generation

sector of our country.

Currently, she is the Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors of National Credit and Commerce Bank
Limited and a Director of Mir Group of Companies Limited, Mir Cement Limited, Mir Power Limited,
Mir Real Estate Limited, Mir Telecom Limited among others.

Mir Nasir Hossain
Managing Director

Mir Nasir Hossain, the Managing Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited, is a
prominent entrepreneur who has had significant impact in the construction, real
estate, ceramic, banking, telecom and information technology sector of our country,
He completed Bachelor of Commerce {Hon’s) and Master of Commerce in Accounting from the
University of Dhaka. He is leading Mir Akhter with an industry experience spanning more than 40
years.

He has led the apex trade organization of the country, Federation of Bangladesh Chambers of
Commerce and Industry (FBCCI), as its President. He also held the positions of Senior Vice President
of South Asian Association of Regional Co-operation (SAARC) Chamber of Commerce and Industry
(SCCI). He is also a Director of Eastern Bank Limited (EBL) and engaged in the management of Mir
Ceramic Limited, Mir Telecom Limited, Mir Holdings Limited among others.

He is actively engaged in various social activities, most notable of which is his Life Membership of
Bangladesh Red Crescent Society, Bangladesh Diabetic Association, He is working as the President of
Faridpur Diabetic Association and the Chairman of the Governing Body of President of Faridpur
Diabetic Association Medical College.
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Mahbuba Nasir
Director

Mahbuba Nasir, wife of Mir Nasir Hossain, is a Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited.
She has completed Bachelor of Arts {Hon's). She is one of the best women entrepreneur in our country.

She has been recognized as a Commercially Important Persen {CIP) by the Ministry of Industries,
Bangladesh in 2015 for her contribution towards the economic growth of Bangladesh,

She is also engaged in businesses in ceramic, telecom, real estate and power generation sector of
the country.

Shama-e Zaheer
Director

Shama-e Zaheer, Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited, is a prominent businessman
with diverse range of business interests.

He has completed MBA in Finance, from Goizueta Business School, Emory University, Atlanta, Georgia,

USA under the prestigious Junior Fulbright Program as well as the |nstitute of Business Administration
{IBA), University of Dhaka.

He sits on the Board of a number of companies, whose businesses span from cement, construction,
real estate to information technology.

Md. Farid Uddin
Independent Director

Md. Farid Uddin was appointed as Independent Director of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
in 2018, He is the chairman of the audit committee of the board.

He has completed Bachelor of Arts (Hon's) in History and Master of Arts in Modern History. Later on,
he alsoc completed LLB. He secured first position in Customs and Excise cadre of Bangladesh Civil
Service (BCS) exam in 1982,

Before retirement, he served as Member (Grade-1) of National Board of Revenue (NBR). During his

illustrious career as a government official, he acted as a Director of Padma Qil Company Limited and
Sadharan Bima Corporation.
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A.K.M. Faizur Rahiman
Independent Director

AK.M., Faizur Rahman was appointed as Independent Director of Mir Akhter Hossain
Limited in 2018. He attained his Bachelor of Science {B.Sc.}) in Civil Engineering from
anlade niversity of Engineering and Technology (BUET}. In 1982, he completed Masters in Bridge
Engineering from Japan. He is a fellow of Institute of Engineers Bangladesh (IEB). He retired as the
Chief Engineer of Roads and Highways Division of Bangladesh.

Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat Ullah
Independent Director

A renowned teacher, Prof. Dr. Muhammad Shariat Ullah, did his Ph.D in economics from
Ritsumeikan University, Japan and obtained his BBA degree in Management and MBA
in Strategic and International management from University of Dhaka. Currently he has been serving
as a professor of department of organization strategy & leadership in University of Dhaka.

He has 16 years of teaching Experience including 13 years in University of Dhaka. Mr. Shariat Uilah is
a life Member of Bangladesh Society for Total Quality Management.

Prof, Nausheen Rahman
Independent Director

A renowned teacher, Prof. Nausheen Rahman completed her Honors and Masters in
Finance from University of Dhaka. After that, she obtained her MBA (Major in Finance)
degree from educational institute University of Canberra. Currently she has been
serving as a professor of finance department in University of Dhaka.

e
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f. DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Statement of Financia! Position

Amount in BDT
As on June 30

2021 2020 2019
Consolidated Standalone Standalone Standalone
Assets

MNon-current assets 15,047,411,526 15,127,211,526 14,684,267,206 11,328,777,764
Property, plant and equipment 4,075,655,901 4,075,655,901 3,840,446,370 3,970,622,7%4
investment in Joint Venture 18,403,929,520 10,403,52%,520 10,315,894,731 6,781,866,183
lr‘w?stments In Mir Securities ) 79,800,000 ) }
Limited
Investment in Projects 567,826,105 567,826,105 527,926,105 576,288,797
Current assets 7,673,603,342 7,603,975,416 5,735,813,591 5,659,383,688
Security Deposits (Retention 806,068,568 806,068,568 732,929,403 784,415,102
Money)
Advance and Prepayments 970,370,307 940,641,976 951,889,504 1,088,889,958
Accounts Receivable - - - -
FDR - - - 754,972,500
Advance income tax net of tax 49,772,694 49,772,694 48,134,478 48,806,217

provision

Inventories 4,252,811,374 4,252,811,374 3,525,844,685 2,484,794,553
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,594,580,400 1,554,680,805 476,915,521 497,505,358
Total assets 22,721,014,868 22,731,186,942 26,420,080,797 16,988,161,452
Equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity 5,555,652,136 5,565,858,710 3,846,005,599 3,470,998,601
Share capital 1,207,715,470 1,207,715,47C 1,860,000,000 1,00G,080,000
Share premium 1,042,284,530 1,042,284,536 - -
Revaluation Reserve 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881 107,539,881
Non-Controlling Interest 173,984 - - -
Retained earnings 3,197,938,271 3,208,318,82% 2,738,465,717 2,363,458,720
Non-current liabilities 12,134,650,053 12,134,690,053 13,473,817,325 10,001,644,802
Deferred tax liability 3,325,976 3,325,976 3,325,976 3,325,976
Long term foan 12,131,364,077 12,131,364,077 13,470,491,349 9,098,318,827
Current liabilities and 5,030,672,679  5030,638179  3,100,257,873  3,515,518,048
provisions
Short term loan (Current 4,873,468,063 4,873,468,063 2,612,089,755  2,712,213,393
portion of long-term loan}
Deferred LC 101,927,962 101,927,962 349,455,672 696,166,257
Liahilities for expenses 55,276,654 55,242,154 138,712,446 107,138,398
Total liability 17,165,362,732 17,165,328,232 16,574,075,198 13,517,162,850
Total equity and liabilities 22,721,014,868 22,731,186,942 20,420,080,796 16,988,161,452
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g. DESCRIPTION OF PREVIOUSLY ISSUED DEBT OR SECURITIES
Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has not issued any debt securities earlier.

On November 23, 2020, MAHL received consent from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission {BSEC} vide letter no. BSEC/CI/BB-18/2018/269 dated November 23, 2020 to raise BDT
1,250 Million under book building method through IPO. The company has raised the fund from general
shareholders in the subscription period dated December 24-30, 2020. Trading of the shares of the
company commenced in the exchanges on February 02, 2021, Trading Code of the company is
“MIRAKHTER” in both the exchanges.
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SecTionN XI: AuDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE ISSUER, IVIIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

For the detailed Audited Financials as at 30 June 2021, please see Annexure —1
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SEcTION XII: BRIEF OVERVIEW AND COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparative financial performance of MAHL over the last three years has been presented below:

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Investment in Joint Venture

Investments in Mir Securities
Limited ‘
Investment in Projects

Current assets

Security Deposits {Retention
Money)

Advance and Prepayments
Accounts Receivable

FDR

Advance income tax net of tax
provision
Inventories

Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets
Equity and liabilities

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital

Share premium
Revaluation Reserve
Non-Controlling Interest

Retained earnings

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability
Long term loan
Current Habilities and
provisions

Short term loan {Current
portion of long-term loan)

Deferred LC

Liabilities for expenses

Strictly Private & Confidential
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Consolidated

15,047,411,526
4,075,655,901
10,403,929,520

567,826,105

7,673,603,342
806,068,568

870,370,307

49,772,694

4,252,811,374
1,594,580,400

22,721,014,868

5,555,652,136
1,207,715,470
1,042,284,530
107,539,881
173,984
3,197,938,271

12,134,690,053
3,325,976
12,131,364,077

5,030,672,679

4,873,468,063

101,927,962
55,276,654

B

Standalone

15,127,211,526
4,075,655,901
10,403,929,520

79,800,000
567,826,105

7,603,975,416
806,068,568
940,641,976

48,772,654

4,252,811,374
1,554,680,805

22,731,186,942

5,565,858,710

1,207,715,470

1,042,284,530
107,539,881

3,208,318,829

12,134,690,053
3,325,976
12,131,364,077

5,030,638,179

4,873,468,063

101,927,962
55,242,154

2020

Standalone

14,684,267,206
3,840,446,370
10,315,894,731

527,926,105

5,735,813,591
732,929,403

551,889,504

48,134,478

3,525,944,685
476,915,521

20,420,080,797

3,846,005,599
1,000,000,000

107,539,881

2,738,465,717

13,473,817,325
3,325,976
13,470,491,349

3,100,257,873

2,612,089,755

348,455,672
138,712,446

Amount in BDT
As on June 30
2019

Standalone

11,328,777,764
1,970,622,784
6,781,866,183

576,288,797

5,659,383,688
784,415,102

1,088,889,958

754,972,500
48,806,217

2,484,7594,553
497,505,358

16,988,161,452

3,470,998,601
1,000,000,00C

137,539,881

2,363,458,720

10,001,644,802
3,325,976
9,998,318,827

3,515,518,048

2,712,213,393

696,166,257
107,138,338
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Total liability

Total equity and liabilities

17,165,362,732
22,721,014,868

17,165,328,232
22,731,186,942

Statement of Profit or Loss or Other Comprehensive Income

Revenue

Cost of execution of the contract
Graoss profit

General and administration expenses
Profit from operations
Non-operating income

Financial expenses

Profit before tax and WPPF

Contribution to WPPF

Profit before tax from own construction
business

Tax expense
Current
Deferred

Total Tax expense

Profit after tax from own construction
business

Profit after tax from Joint Venture
Total net profit after tax for the year
Other comprehensive income

Revaluation reserve

|ess: Deferred tax liabiiities on revaluation
reserve

Total comprehensive income for the year

Statement of Cash Flow

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash generated from operation

Income tax deducted at source and paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Consolidated

3,242,277,000
{2,306,555,858}

935,721,142
(198,461,469)
737,259,673
16,382,166
(425,921,011}
327,720,828
(16,101,305)

311,618,523

{220,057,635)

(220,057,635)
91,561,888

367,884,649
459,446,537

459,446,537

Consolidated

3,610,161,649

{3,184,895,427)
425,266,222
(221,695,851
203,570,371

2021

Standalone

3,242,277,000
(2,306,555,858)

935,721,142
(188,054,895)
747,666,247
16,382,166
{425,921,011)
338,127,402
(16,101,305)

322,026,097
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16,574,075,198
20,420,080,796

2020

Standalone

2,694,959,701
{1,528,782,658)

766,177,043

(144,650,336)
621,526,707
13,328,379

(379,093,795)
255,761,291
(12,179,109)

243,582,182

13,517,162,850
16,588,161,452

Amount In BDT
2019

Standalone

4,267,036,996
{3,134,809,245)
1,132,227,751
(245,251,801)
886,975,950
22,599,281
(361,407,703)
548,167,528
(26,103,216}

522,064,312

(220,057,635) {168,613,886) (321,559,939)
(226,057,635) {168,613,886) {321,559,939)
101,968,462 74,968,296 200,504,373
367,884,645 300,038,702 431,589,484
469,853,111 375,006,997 632,493,857
469,853,111 375,006,997 632,493,857
Amount in BDT
2021 2020 2019
Standalone Standalone Standaione
3,610,161,64% 2,994,998,403 5,180,944,468
{3,144,795,022) {2,764,246,834) {3,573,827,409}
465,366,627 230,751,569 1,607,117,059
(221,695,851} (167,942,147) {319,353,740)
243,670,776 62,809,422 1,287,763,320
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Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
investment in Joint Venture

Investment in Mir Securities Limited
Investment in FDR

Investment in Projects

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment

Cash inflow for MSL Shares (NC! Portian)
Issuance of new shares through IPO
Share Premium

tnterest Paid

Net cash {used in)/from financing activities

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C)

Unrealized FX Gain/{loss) related to Foreign
Currency held

QOpening cash and cash equivalents

Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

{704,500,728)
{88,034,789)

(39,900,000
(832,435,517)

922,251,036
200,000
207,715,470
1,042,284,530
(425,926,163)
1,746,524,873

1,117,659,728

5,152

476,915,521
1,594,580,400

(704,500,728)
(88,034,789)
(79,800,000
{39,900,000)
(912,235,517)

922,251,036

207,715,470
1,042,284,530
(425,926,163)
1,746,324,873

1,077,760,132

5,152

476,915,521
1,554,680,805

LC

Invastments Limited

Formieinag Anppinass

(345,660,992}
{3,534,028,548)
754,972,5C0
48,362,652
{3,076,354,348)

3,372,048,884

{379,093,795)
2,992,955,089

{20,589,836)

497,505,358
476,915,521

(942,913,037
(3,057,116,410)

(468,985,961)

32,460,198
(4,436,555,210)

3,596,605,071

(361,407,703)
3,235,197,368

86,405,478

411,099,881
497,505,358

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited has a subsidiary company namely Mir Securities Limited. Paid-up capital
of Mir Securities Limited is BDT 80 million and Mir Akhter Hossain Limited holds 99.75% shares of the
company. The financial statements of Mir Securities Limited has been fully consolidated as Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited directly controls more than 50% of voting rights of Mir Securities Limited. The
accounting policies of Mir Securities Limited have been aligned with the policies as adopted by Mir

Alkhter Hossain Limited.
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SEcTiON XIII: RATIOS FOR THE LAST FIVE ACCOUNTING YEARS

Key ratios of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited for last three years is presented below:

2021 2020 2019
& lidated lalone Standalone Standaione
8.  Ratio Formula
Current Assets 1.53 151 1.85 1.61
1 Current Ratio
Current Liabilities
Current Assets - Inventories 0.68 0.67 0.71 0.90
2 Quick Ratio
Current Liabilities
Fixed Cost N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 Break-Even Point Total Sales Revenue-Cost ko make
products
Total Debt 3.08 3.07 4.27 3.86
4 Debt to Equity Ratio
Total Equity
< Debt to Total Assets  Total Debt 0.75 0.75 0.80 0.79
Ratio Yotal Assets
Accounts Net Sales N/A N/A N/A N/A
6  Receivable
Turnover Ratio* Average Accounts Receivables
Gross Profit 28.86% 28.86% 28.43% 26.53%
7 Gross Margin Ratio
Net Sales
g Operating Income Operating Profit 22.74% 23.06% 23.06% 20.79%
ratio Net Sales
MNet Profit after Tax 14.17% 14.49% 13.92% 14.82%
9  Netincome ratio
Sales
Net Profit after Tax 2.02% 2.07% 1.84% 3.72%
10 Return on Assets
Total Assets
Net Profit after Tax 8.27% 8.44% 9.75% 18.22%
i1  Returnon Equity
Shareholder’s Equity
Net Profit after Tax 4,21 4.30 3.75 6.32

Earnings-Per-Share
(EPS) Weighted Average number of shares

12
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13 Net Asset Value Met Asset 46.00 46.09 38.46 34.71
{NAV) per share Number of shares
Net operating cash Net Qperating cash flow 0.44 0.52 0.17 2.04
14 flow to Net income Net Income
15 Total Debt to Total debt 1.33 1.33 1.24 1.27

tangible assetsratio  Total Tangible assets

*There is no accounts receivable from 2019,
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SECTION XIV: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE

Credit Rating of Issuer: Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Credit Rating and

26.12.2021 25.12.2022 AA- ST-3 Information
Services Limited

Credit Rating of the Issue:

Credit Rating and

26.12.2021 25.12.2022 A+ Information
Services Limited

For detailed credit rating report, please see Annexure 3 & Annexure 4.
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SECTION XV: LATEST DEFAULT MIATRIX AND TRANSITION STATISTICS OF CRC

CRISL three years CDR for corporate under investment grade (AAA to BBB) stood at 1.44% with no
default at AAA and AA rating notch.

The CDR at single A and BBB notch stood at 0.69% and 2.23% respectively which signifies that CRISL
investment grade default is quite low against the backdrop of increasing default loan in the industry.

Calculation of 3-years Cumulative Default Rate (CDR3) for 2014, 2015, 2016

CDR3
AAA 0.00%
AA 0.00%
A 0.69%
BBB 2.23%
Investment Grade (AAA-BBB) 1.444%
BB 9.01%
B 0.00%
CCC 0.00%
CC 0.00%
C 100.00%
CRISL Corporate Rating Transition Matrix (2016-2020)
AAA AA A BBB BB B ccC cC C D
AAA 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% [ 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
AA 0.00% 8.14% 0.00% 0.00% | D0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
A 0.00% 8.98% 4,.19% 0.30% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
BBB 0.00% 0.00% 12.93% 1.71% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
BB 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 14.29% 0.00% | 4.76% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
8 0.00% 0.G0% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 20.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
CCC 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00%
CcC 0.00% 0.60% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% 0.00% | 0.00%
C 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | G.C0% § 0.00% | 0.00% 0.00%
D 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% | C.00% { 0.00% [0.00% | 0.00%
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SecTiON XVI: DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUSTEE: UCB INVESTMENT LIMITED

UCB Investment Limited is acting as Trustee for Mir Akhter Hossain Limited Zero Coupon Bond subject
to regulatory approval.

UCB Investment Limited {UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank PLC. — One of
the leading private commercial bank in Bangladesh. It was incorporated in Bangladesh with the
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms (RISCF), vide registration number: C-94654/11 dated 3rd
August, 2011 as a private limited company under the Companies Act (Act XVill) of 1994. It obtained
full-fledged Merchant Banker & Portfolio Management license {Reg No: MB- 97/2020) from
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission on 5th October, 2020.

The head office of UCB investment Limited is located at BULUS Center, Plot- CWS (A}-1 Road: 34,
Gulshan Avenue Dhaka- 1212, Bangladesh.

» Authorized capital as of 31 Dec 2020: BDT 1,000,000,000 (Taka one thousand million}
» Paid-up capital as of 31 Dec 2020: 250,000,000/- {Taka two hundred fifty million)

**Paid-up capital has been increased to BDT 1,000,000,000 (Toka One thousand million) as
on 13 july 2021.

e Net worth as of 31 Dec 2020: BDT 312,194,085 {Taka three hundred twelve million one
hundred ninety four thousand eighty five)

¢ Shareholding Details:
Share Holding Position

Shareholders %i'-l‘;: c?i:Egl:e No. of Shares

United Commercial Bank Limited 99.999996% 9,99,59,999

Mohammed Habibur Rahman 0.000004% 1
100% 1,00,000,000

Brief on Board of Directors:

Mr. Mohammed Habibur Rahman:
Chairman

Mr. Habibur Rahman is acting as the Chairman of UCB Investment Limited. He has recently joined
United Commercial Bank PLC, {UCB) as the Deputy Managing Director, Prior to joining UCB, he was
Senjor Executive Vice President at Corporate Banking division of Eastern Bank Limited.

Mr. Rahman having vast experience in home and abroad in diverse sectors of banking for over 24 years
worked in different financial institutions like Bank Indosuez, ANZ Grindlays, Standard Chartered,
Toronto Dominion {TD), HSBC, City and EBL. He played a very important role in Corporate Banking

division of EBL and was also the Head of Credit Risk management division.
et
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Mr, Md, Shah Alam Bhuiyan:
Director

Mr. Md. Shah Alam Bhuiyan is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and Deputy Managing
Director of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Alam has a wide experience in the field of Cost and Management Accounting. As a qualified Cost
and Management Accountant he is associated with numerous reputed group of Companies including
Aramit Group, Prior to joining this group, he was associated with Birds Bangladesh Agencies Limited
Chittagong for a period of nearly 26 years.

Mr. Nurul Mustafa Tarek:
Director

Mr. N, Mustafa Tarek is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and has been serving as Deputy
Managing Director of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Tarek, having 26 vyears of professional experiences in Government, Mulktinational,
Telecommunication, Local Conglomerate and financial institution, joined United Commercial Bank
PLC. on 5th January, 2012 as Executive Vice President. He has a long professional track record in
tluman Resource and Industrial Relations, Administration, Project Management, Supply Chain and
Safety, Health and Environment.

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon:
Director

Mr. Md. Abdullah Al Mamoon is acting as a Director of UCB Investment Limited and is the Deputy
Managing Director and Chief Gperating Officer (COO) of United Commercial Bank PLC.

Mr. Mamoon joined UCB on 01/03/2017 as Senior Executive Vice President with over 27 years of multi-
disciplinary experiences in diversified professional domains with Government and Financial
Institutions.

Prior to joining in UCB, Mr. Mamoon served in AB Bank and BRAC Bank Ltd in different capacities that
include Head of Core Business Team, Head of Operational Risk Management, Head of Program
Management etc. He also served in bKash Limited, Kayfin Consultants Limited and Bangladesh Army,
Government of Bangladesh. He served in the United Nations 'Peace Keeping' mission in United Nations
Mission in Sierra Leone (UNAMSIL).

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiquzzaman:
Independent Director

Mr. Touhid Shipar Rafiguzzaman is the Independent Director of UCB Investment Limited and one of
the Independent Directors of United Commercial Bank PLC, He is also a member of Audit Commiittee.

Mr, Rafiguzzaman is a highly experienced international banker with 36 years of professional
experience in the entire gamut of banking, having worked in two multi-national banks across four
geographies. He is a certified risk professional and has extensive experience of working in emerging
markets.

Strictly Private & Confidentiol




Irvestasents Limitad

fimameing Anupines

Tanzim Alamgir:
Managing Director and CEQ

Mr. Alamgir is the founding Chief Executive Officer (CEQ} and Managing Director of UCB Investment
Limited. Mr. Alamgir has a special focus on fund raising for large, local and multinational corporate
houses of the country. He is a seasoned professional having diversified exposure in finance, operations
and strategy for more than 13 years. Previously, he was the Chief Operating Officer (COO) of City Bank
Capital. He has completed numerous first of its kind deals in Bangladesh during his tenure in CBC like
perpetual bonds, bank guarantee backed bonds, preference share of first private LNG terminal in
Bangladesh, first subordinated bond for a state-owned bank {Agrani Bank Limited) etc. He has also
completed numerous other deals like subordinated bonds, zero coupon bonds for a number of
commercial banks and corporates in different industries.

Business Activities of UCBIL:

With its group of versatile financial consultants, UCBIL aims at delivering top-class, customized
investment solutions to its clients to cater to their specific needs and be their long-term growth
pariner. The services UCBIL provide are:

Investment Banking Services:

v Bond Issuance
v Corporate Advisory
v' Mergers and Acquisitions

Primary Market Services:

v’ Issue Management Services
v Underwriting '
¥ Capital Raising and Private Placement

Secondary Market Services:

v Pportfolio Management

&

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secrefary
Mir Akhier Hossain Lid,

Strictly Private & Confidential

41



e straenis Limitad

Fimvarsivrg Aappindss

Status of Debt Securities issued under trusteeship of UCB Investment Limited

Present status of issued debt securities in which UCB Investment Limited is acting as Trustee is as

follows -
p
Date of Value of Repayment o::s::?j;:g
5L Name of the Maturity IM [ssue Completion debt Amount 20, 2021 Default Remarks
Issue Pericd Date of {sDT {BDT (’BDT {If Any)
ubscription million Milki
subserp fon) fition) Million)
NRBC 8ank
Nove Subscripth
1| subordinated | 07years | ngt;r O::ro?n o1 3000 3,000 Nil
gond-1 ' BoIng
Bank Asia
2 Perpetuai Perpetual - N/A 5,000 - 5,000 Nt
Bond
Mercantile
3 Bank Perpetual N/A 5,000 5,000 il
Perpetual P ' '
Bond

Strictly Private & Confidential
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SecTiON XVII: Mobpus OPERANDI OF THE ISSUE

a. Application Procedure

The Bonds shall be distributed through private placement,

Each investor {Bondholder) shall enter into a separate Subscription Agreement with the Issuer and
shall be bound by the terms and conditions cantained in such Subscription Agreement containing in
details the rights and obligations of the investors.

Undertaking to Issue

The lssuer will, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Subscription Agreement, on
the Closing Date, duly execute and deliver to the Bondholder a Bond Certificate attached with the
Conditions, representing the allocation amount of Bonds subscribed.

Undertaking to Subscribe

The Investor will, subject to and in accordance with the provisions of the Subscription Agreement, on
the Closing Date, subscribe and pay the aggregate purchase price for the allocation, in Bangladesh
Taka for same day value to such account as the Issuer designates.

Closing
Subject to the conditions precedent contained in the Subscription Agreement, the closing of the issue

of the Bonds shall take place on the Closing Date.

investor Representation Letter: On the date indicated in the Subscription Agreement, the Bondholders
will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer.

Payment of net issue proceeds: On each Closing Date, of the Bondholders shall pay the purchase price
of Bonds to the Issuer in Bangladesh Taka.

Bond Certificates

Registration: On each Closing Date, the Issuer shall procure that the principal amount of Bonds
subscribed for by the Bondholders for which payment has been received in accordance with the
Subscription Agreement and are registered in name of the Bondholders (with a notation on the
Register and on each Bond Certificate identifying the Issue Date of such Bond Certificate).

Issue: On the Closing Date, the Issuer shall duly execute and deliver the Bond Certificates to the
Trustee for authentication. Promptly following the Closing Date, the Issuer will deliver to each
Bondholder Bond Certificates, duly authenticated by the Trustee and representing such Investor's
entire holding of Bonds.

b. Allotment

On the closing date, to be determined, the issuer shall allot and issue the bonds, in registered form in
a minimum denomination of BDT 500,000 and integral multiples thereof. A bond certificate (each a
“Bond Certificate”) will be issued to each bondholder in respect of its registered holding of each series
of Bonds. Each Bond and each Bond Certificate will be numbered serially with an identifying number
which will be recorded on the relevant Bond Certificate and in the register of Bondholders {the
“Register”), which will be kept by Registrar on behalf of the Issuer.

Strictly Private & Confidential
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Each of the issuer, the Trustee and any Agent may deem and treat the registered holder of a Bond as
the absolute owner of such Bond, free of any equity, set-off or counterclaim on the part of the Issuer
against the original or any intermediate Holder of such Bond {whether or not the Bond shall be
overdue and notwithstanding any notation of ownership or other writing thereon or any natice of
previous loss or theft of the Bond Certificate issued in respect of that Bond) for all purposes and,
except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by applicable law, the Issuer, the
Trustee and the Agents shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.

c. Refund:
Not Applicable.
d. Transfer:

Subject to the terms and condition as to be implemented in the Trust Deed, a Bond may be transferred
to another person in Bangladesh (a “Transferee”) upon surrender of the Bond Certificate issued in
respect of that Bond, together with a duly completed and executed instrument of transfer {a
“Instrument of Transfer”) by the registered holder of the Bond, as transferor {the “Transferor”) or the
proposed Transferee,

A valid instrument of Transfer shall be duly stamped, completed and executed by both the Transferor
and the Transferee. If the Transferor or the Transferee is a corporate body, such Instrument of transfer
shall be executed by the authorized persons of the Transferor or the Transferee, as the case may be.

Upon receipt of the Bond Certificate issued in respect of the Bond to be transferred along with the
duly completed and executed Instrument of Transfer at the specified office of the Transfer Agent,
together with such evidence as such Transfer Agent may reasonably require to prove {i) the title of
the Transferor and (ii) the signature and authority of each of the individuals who have executed the
Instrument of Transfer on behalf of the Transferor and the Transferee.

Upon receipt of the Bond Certificate, the Instrument of Transfer and the other supporting documents
named above, the Transfer Agent, as the duly authorized delegate of the Issuer’s Board of Directors,
shall approve and certify the transfer on behalf of the Board of Directors of the Issuer. If the Transfer
Agent refuses to register the transfer of any Bond it shall immediately provide notice of such refusal
to the Issuer. If the Issuer does not agree with the Transfer Agent’s refusal to approve and certify such
transfer, it shall within 3 {three) Business Days of receipt of such notice from the Transfer Agent, direct
the Transfer Agent to approve and certify the transfer as requested in the relevant Instrument of
Transfer. If the Issuer agrees with Transfer Agent that the requested transfer should be refused, the
Issuer shall, within 30 {thirty) days from the date on which the relevant Instrument of Transfer was
lodged with the Transfer Agent, send or cause to be sent notice of such refusal to both the Transferor
and the Transferee,

Where it is proved to the satisfaction of the Issuer that a duly completed and executed Instrument of
Transfer has been lost, the Issuer may, in its direction, on application in writing made by the Transferee
and bearing such stamp as is required by an Instrument of Transfer, register such transfer on such
terms as to indemnity as the Issuer may think fit. Where not all the Bonds represented by the
surrendered Bond Certificate are the subject of the transfer, a new Bond Certificate in respect of the
balance of the Bonds will be issued to the transferor.

Strictly Private & Confidential M e W ﬂ,
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e. Trading or Listing:

The bonds will be privately placed. However, if instructed by BSEC, it may on a later date be traded on
the alternative trading board.

f. Repayment:

Scheduled Redemption: Unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled as specified, each
Bond shall be redeemed in the amount of each Redemption Instalment as specified below on the
following Redemption Dates on a pro rata basis to the Bondholders whose name will appear in the
register at Record Date.

The redemption of the Bonds will start from the end of the 18th month from the issuance of the Bonds
and each 6 (Six) months thereafter in equal instalment and the redemption value shall be paid by the
issuer on scheduled redemption date.

1 & - -

2 12 - -

3 18 375,659,137 416,500,000
4 24 362,955,688 416,500,000
5 30 350,681,824 416,500,000
6 36 338,823,018 416,500,000
7 42 327,365,235 416,500,000
8 48 316,294,913 416,500,000

2,071,779,815 2,499,000,000

Calculated based on 7% p.a. The approval from BSEC to be taken in a range of 7% p.a. — 9% p.a. to
adopt any market change and to be finalized based on market condition at the time of bond issuance.

Incremental charge at the rate of 2% per annum payable by the Issuer to the Bondholders above the
amount to be paid by the Issuer to the Bondholders on the redemption Date for failure of the Issuer
to make payment to the Bondholders on the Redemption Date.

g. Redemption or conversion or exchange:

This Bond is not early redeemable and has no conversion feature. It will be redeemed as per the
Repayment Schedule mentioned in the earlier point.

h. Details of conversion or exchange option, if applicable:

This is not apphicable for this issuance.

‘(-‘L’\“t_/l-u\ §
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Particulars | Basis nount
Application Fee of BSEC {Issuer) BDT 10,000 10,000
Consent Fee of BSEC {Issuer) 0.10% of the total Face Value 2,499,000
Trustee Application Fee BDT 50,000 50,000
Registration Fee of Trustee BDT 100,000 100,000

. ) 0.1% of total face value, Max
Trust Deed Registration Fee . 1,000,000

BDT 1 million

Credit Rating for Bond (4 years) Approximately 400,000
Trustee Fee to BSEC {4 years) BDT 50,000 for each year 200,000
Trustee, Paying Agent, Registrar At actual (For total tenure of
and Transfe»:‘ Agest Fee : the Bond)( 1,200,000
Arrangement Fee 0.55% of the total face value 13,744,500
Counsel Fee At actual 350,000
Total Cost Excluding VAT 19,553,500
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ANNEXURE 1: AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IMIR AKHTER HOSSAIN
LimITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON JUNE 30, 2021
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level #7 & 10, 37/3/A,
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Financial Statements & Auditor’s Report
For the year ended June 30, 2021
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G. KIBRIA & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS member
an association of
legallyindependent
accounting firms
h ' partnering for sugess

- Independent Auditor’'s Report
To the Shareholders of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

i Report on the Audit of the Financiaf Statements

Opinion
- We have audited (he consolidaled financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED and its subsidiaries {lhe ‘Group') as well as the

segerate financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOBSAIN LIMITED {the "Company’}, which comprise the conschdaled and separats statement

of financlal postion a3 &l 30 June 2024, and the consolidaled and separate statement of profil or luss and olber comprehensive income,

: consolidated and separsle stalement of changes in equily and cansolidated and separate statement of cash lows for the year Ben ended, and
e notes 1o e consofidated and separale financial statements, including a summary of sigaifican( sccounting policies

in our opinion, the accempanying financial statements present fairy, in all material respacts, the Rnancial position of the Company and Group as
i at June 30, 2021, and s financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with international Financial Reporing
e Standards (IFRSs}),

Basis for Opinion

e We nonducted our audit in sccordance with nlemational Standards on Audiling {15As). Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
describad in the Auditor's Respansibiiilies for the Audit of the Consclidated and Separate Financial Stalements seclion of out ceport. We ars
independent of the Group and the Company in accardance with the Inlernational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Elrugs for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have lulfiled cur other efhicat responsibilities in accordance with the 1E58A Code. We beliave

that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate lo provide a basls for our opinion,
: Key Audit Matters
=~ Koy audit mallers are those matiers ihat, I our professionat judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial stalements of e
current pered. These mallers were addressed in the context of our audlt of the financial sialements as a whole, and in forming our opfnicn
L therson, and we do sol provide a separale opinion on these mallers,
Gt
Investrent in Subsidlary ~ Consalidation ant Stand-Alone =~ S L
- Our audlt procedures to mitiata the risk include:
¥ We pedormed discussions with management to understand their procedures and
processes 1o prepare corsolidated Brancial slatements as well as pedotming
- restatement of pror year fisancial information.
- The Company has meognized a new asset worh BOT ¥ We reviewsd supporting documentalion lo ensure the subsidiary met the crledia for
79,800,800 in subsidlary Mir Securities Limited as al 30 June consclidation and management hus appiied the appropriate accounting standards.
2021, This investment represents 53 75% ownarship in the P Wereviewed the consciidation procedures perfosmed by Management. We eviewed
- subsidiary as at 30 June 2021 This is the fist year of management’s afimination of migtcompany balances o ensure accuracy and
- consciidated  franclal  slalements  and  there  am appropriatoness. We also reviewsd the stand-aione Fnancial numbers used to
infercompany fransactions laking place between e two prepare the consclidated stalements to ensute clerical acouracy of conschated
: enifies. Considenny inese factors, the overall ask profiie of finangial statements, )
: this ilem was considersd high and was consigdered 383 4 key ¥ We raviewed Management’s calcufalinn of Non Controlling Interest for all financial
e it mattar. yaars presanted on the statement of financial postion and ensured there weie no
: clencal errors and FRS 10 was applied approprately.
¥ We reviewed management disciosures and notes to the financial stalements lo
ensusa they ware accurale and adequale in regards 1o the requirements of IFRS 10
_ and 1AS 8,
Management has presented separats tonsolidated financial statements as well audited financial stalements: .~

Head Office : Sadharah Bima Sadan (5th Flogt) 24-25, Billius Oramercia Area, Dhaka-1 Bangiades
Branch Office  :Plot 51, Floor-2, Road 14, Block-G, Niketon, Gulshan-1, Dhaka-1212
TEL OFF : 02-223388071, 02-223355324, 48812330, 4881 s Masbaus Sunnah
st ey epan- peet E-mall ; gkibria@gkibrisandco.com, k|br;303@hotmatl com, Web: http: /feidhdayriiecratary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.




Property, Plant & Equipment - =

The Company's consalideted PPE balance as at 30 June
2021 was BDT 4.076 (BOT 3.840 Billion as at 30 June 2020},
Tnis represents 18% of Tolal Assels of lhe Gompany (19%
of the Company as at 30 June 2020). Them is estmation
performed by management in regards %o Asset sselul life,
Based on the reguirement of estimates and the fact that ihis
i3 a major asset calegory, this was determning to be a key
audit matter.

Qur audit pmcedﬁres in&éuded:

P

|3

IS

Cbtain an understanding of Company's internal controls, syslems and processes
aroung PPE.

Perfomed discussions with managament {0 understand their process of determining
agset uselul life.

We performed PPE additicns procedures by otaining supporting documentation,
invoices, and delivesy iInformation as well payments suppon.

We perormed teasonabiliy of depreclation expenses chamed by management to
ensure acouraty and occurence.

We parformed discussions with management and performed clher comoborating
procedures 10 ensurs managements assumplions arcund impairment were
reasgnable,

B Fordisposals of assets, we obtained supporting docurmentation fo determing the cost
and fair markel value of the asset and then reviewed management's calcutations o
ensure ne cletical erors look place to caiculate dny relaled gaing or losses.

otes regardig Proparty, Flant s been included In Nota 6.00 aod No

Revenue Recognition .

Revenue of BDT 3.242 tilon {2,694 tillion for the year 30
June 2020} is teeognized In the income siatement of Mir
Akhter Hoasain Limited for the curment year. ‘ .

Qur audit pracedures included:

Cbtain an understanding of Company’s intemal controls specifically geared

lowards adoption and implermnentation of IFRS 15,

¥ Examine customer conlracts 1o delerming kay arrangements between the
Custemer and Company to enderstand when contiol of the goods
manufactured transfer from Company to Customer,

B~ Reviewing invoices, Shipping Documents and other supporiing

documentalion to ensure revenue recognilion is necurting appropriately

Examine Paymeni decumentation to ensure complstion of mvenue cycieis

docuriented aporopriately

This matenat item is subject fo high inherent risk due to the
comploxity of the syslems and the prasance of individual
customer cantracts which are necessary for proper recording
and identification of revenue.

Against fhis background, the proper application of the
acoounting standards is considered 1o be complex and fo 2
certain exiant bused on estimates and assumptions made by
management

Delalls of Reven&eheco_énlﬁbh_ are iuc_!_gid_éd in u'qw”zi'.'qu' and Accounts Receivable _a_:_'é lhéjﬁqed In Nofe 10.00 fo ﬂaa'?lnaﬁz_‘ifa‘l"&a{gﬁy&n&, s

information Gther than the Financlal Statements and Auditor's Repert Thereon

Management is fesponsible for information other than financial stalements and auditor's ceport, The olher information comprises of the Direclor's
Report, Comorate Govemance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. Wa expect fo receive this olher information aftes
the date of gur audior's report.

Cur opinicn o the financiat statements coes not cover the ofher informalion and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion fhereon,

in connection with our audil of ihe financial stalements, cur responsitifty is to read the other information and, in doing so, censider whether the
othes information is materially inconsistent with the financial staterments or our knowledge obiained In the audit or olherwise appears 10 be
malerially misstated. f, based on the work we have performed on the cther information oblained prior lo the date of the auditor's repori, we
conclude that there 's & material misstalement of (s other information, we are required to report that fact. We have riothing to report in this

regard..
Respensibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparaticn and fair presentation of the financial statements In accordance wilh IFRSs, the Companies Act
1994, the Securifies and Exchange Rules 19587 and other applicatie laws ang reguiations and for such internal control as managesent
delermines is necessary lo enable the prepasation of financial stalements ihat ate free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or ersor.
I preparing the financial slaternents, management is responsible for assessing the Company and Group's ability to continie as a going congein,
disclosing, as applicable, mallers related o going concem and using the going concen basis of accaunting unless management either inlends
to liquidate the Company or Group or 10 cease operations, or kas na reafistic alternalive but to do so.

Those charged wilth governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process,

s Sunnah

Cgmpany Secretary
Mir Akhte_r Hossain Lid.



Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur abjectives are 10 obtain reasonable asswrance about whether the financial slatements as a whole ara free from malerial misstatement,
whether dus 1o fraud or eror, and to lssue an auditor's repor! that includes our opinion. Reasanalie assurance is a high level of assurarce, bt
is ol 3 quarantea that an audit conducted in accordance with 15As will always delect maleral misstalement when il exists. Misstaternents can
arise lrom fraud of arror and are considered material i, individually of In (he aggregate, they could reasonably be expected lo inflierce the
economic datisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and mainfain professional skepficiem throughout the audit. We
alse! i

b Idenlify and assess the risks of material misstatement of he financial statements, whether due 1o fraud of eror, design and periorm
audit procedures rasponsiva fo thoge dsks, and obtein audit evidence that is sufficient and appropdate lo provide & basis for our
apinion. The fisk cf net detecling a material mésstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ane resulting frem errar, 2s fraud may
invatva cotlusion, forgery, intenlional omissicns, misrepresentations, e the override of internal control,

B Oblain an understanding of internal control retevant lo the audit in order lo design audil pracedurss that are appropriate in hs
circumstances,

B Evaivate (he appropriateness of accounting pelicies used and the reasonablenass of accounting estimales and related disclosures
made by management.

B Conclude on the sppropdateaess of management's use of the going concern basis of accourting and, based on the audit evidence
cbtained, whether a material uncerainty exists relaled lo events or condifions thal may cast significant doubt on lhe Group's ability to
continue as a going concem. i we conchude thal a materiat uncentainty exists, we are required to draw aliention in cur audilor's report
10 Ihe related discinsures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequale, lo modify our cpinion. Qur conclusions are
nased on the audit evidence obiained up to the date of our audiler's report, However, fulure evenls o conditions may cause the Group
io cease to conlinug as a going concem.

B Evaluaie the overall presentation, structure and ronient of he financial statemens, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
slatsments represent the undestying Iransactions and evenls in a manner that achieves fai presentalion. We communicale wilh Inose
charged with gavernance regarding, amony cther matlers, (he planned scope and timing of the audit and significan! audit findings,
inclucing any significant deficiencies in intemal control (hat we identify during our audit,

We also provide hose charged with govemance with a slalement that we have complied wilh relevant efhical requirements regarding
indepandence, and to communicale with them all relationships and other malters that may reasanabily be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, refaled safeguards,

From the maliers communicated with those charged with govemance, we delermine those matters that were of most significance in the aedil of
the financial stalements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matlers. We describe these malters in our auditor's report unisss
faw or requiation preciudes public disclosure about fhe matiar of when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should ol
be communicaled in our repdr because the adverse consequences of doing S0 wouid reasonably be expecied to oubweigh ihe pubilic interes!
benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

in accordance with the Companies Act 1954, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant noifications issues by Bangtadesh Secuiilias

and Exchange Commission, we also repar that;
B ‘We have oblgined ali the informalion ang explanations which to ihe best of cur knewiedge and befief were necessary for the purpose

of aur audi and made due verification thereaf,

B I our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and olher statutery books as required by law have been kept by the Group and
Company so far as it appeared Irom cur exarrinations of those beoks;
B Financial stalements for fne year ended 30 June 20201 of subsidiary namely, Mir Securities Umited have been sudited by us angd
have been properly reflecled in Ihe consolidated financial statements. We have expressed an unquaiified opinion fot the company,
B The consolidaled and Ihe separate stalements of financial positign and statement of predit or loss and other comprehensive income
deall with by the repor are in agreement with ihe buoks of acoount and retums; and
B The expendilures incumed were for the purpose of the Group's and the Company's business.
Oale: 26 Qcloter, 2021 AK. Gulam Kibria, FCA (#392)
Dhaka, Bangladesh Engagement Partner
DVC: 2110280392A5948668 G. KIBRIA & CO,

Chartared Accountants
e 4
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2021
Asgets
Non-current assats R
Property, plant and equipment 4 4,075,655,901. 3,840,446,370
Investment in Joint Venture 5 10,403,929,520 10,315,894,731
Investment in Projects ) 551,806,105 527 676,105
411,526 14,684,267 206
Current asseis S
Securily Deposils (Retention Money) 7 732,928 403
Advance and Prépaymenis BA 951,889,504
Advance income fax nel of tax provision g 48,134 478
Invenlories 10 3,525,944,685
Cash and cash equivalents HA 476915521
5,735,813,501
Total assets 20420080, 797

Equity and liabliitias

Shareholders' equity L .
Share capital 12 1,207.715470. 1,000,600,000
Share premium 4042288530 X
Revaluation Reserve 13 B881; 107,539,881
Non Coatrolling Interest 148 -
Relained earnings 144 2 738465,717
3,846,005,569
Non-current liabllities
Deffered tax liabiity 1B ] 3325978 8,325,976
Long ferm loan 16 | “312,131,364,077 13,470,491,349
S712,134,880,053 13,473,817,325
Current lizbilities and provisions R
Shert teem loan {Current portion of long-term loan) 18 873,468,063 2,612,089,785
Deferred LC 17 101,927,962 349,455,672
Liabities for expenses 184 15 55276854 138,742,448
S 030,872,678 3,100,257,873
Total liability ~'47,165,362,732 16,574,075,108
Total equity and liabilities U 121,014,808 20,420,080,797
et Assets Value por Share 2624 3 35.24

The accompanying notes form an integrat part of these financial stalements and are ko be read in conjunction therewith,

By I3 Woolsdtoge A g proope —

Chief Financial Officer Co refary Director Managing Birector Chairperson
Signed In terms of cur report of even date annexed.

G.

AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Parine{{#392)
Dhaka, 26th October 2021 G. KIBRIA & CO.
DVC: 2110280392A5948568 Chartered Accountants

GKCIA21.22/30

: ir Akhler Hossair Eimiled
M&%asbaas Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid,




MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2021

342977000 2694.950,701

Revenue 19 T
Cos! of execution of the contrac] 20 (2,306,555,858) (1,028,782,658)
Gross profit 935721042 766,177,043
Goaeral and administration expenses MA 0 (198,461,469) (144,650,336}
Profit from operations 621,526,707
Non-cperating income 22 13,328,379
Financial expenses 23 (379,083,795}
Profit before tax and WPPF 255,761,281
Contribution to WPPF {12,175,108)
Profit hefare fax from own construction business 243,582,182
Tax expense ‘

Cusrent 24 | (168,613,886}

Deferred 24.2 i -
Totat Tax expense R {168,613,586)
Profit afier tax from own construction business © 91,561,888 74,968,296
Profit afler tax from Joint Venlure 25 " '367,884.,649 300,038,702
Tolal net profit after tax for the year 459,446 837 375,006,997
Other comprehensive income S -
Total comprahensive income for the year o458 446,637 . 375,006,997
Tofal comprehansive income attributable to: L AB2914886 375,006,997
Mir Akhiar Hossain Limited ‘ E 462,940,902 | 375,006,997 |
Non-Conirolling interest P (26,016) -
Basic and Blifutive Earnings per Share 2618 AN 343
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in cenjunction therewith.

le_ L
Chief Financial Officer Managing Director " Chaifperson
Hololswlso Nonlv
¢ v Secrefary Director

Signed in tarms of our report of even date annexed.,

¢ Fx

Dhaka, 26th Ostober 2021 AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Pariner {#392)
DVC: 211028039245948568 G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Mir Akhter Hossain Bimited

g, ﬁfimnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.

GKCIAJ2E-22030




mgind

MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Fortha year anded 30 June 204

Takz Teka . Taka Teka
Balance as at 01 July 2048 1,000,000,000 - 2,363,450,720 107,519,081 2470598601 3470508 601
Profit afler tax for the year 3¢ June 2020 - 74,568,295 . 14,868,295 74,968,205
er tax from Jo . 300,038,707 - - 300038762 300,038,702
Balance 1,000.080,000 T TTURTIRARSTIT - GTENBE - 28M6.005598 - . 3845005,598 "
Hatance s at 01 July 2020 1,000,008,000 . 2,738 463717 107,539,881 2.845,005.5&8 3.846,005,598
fssue of new shares 201715410 10472, 284,530 1,260,000, 060
Profit after tax for the year 30 June 2023 . - 91,561,884 - 91,561,669 91,561,888
Prof 2fter tax from Jeint Yenture - - 357,884,645 - 367,884,649 357,684,645
NCI Portion of Loss In Subsidiary 78018 {26,018} - .
Portion of Equily In Subsidizs . - H000 200,000 200,000
. \DiZZAS0 - 3A9TANRT  ADTSRERT . S 3MSESAMM 0 SSSESLUS.
Tha acoompanylng notes form n Integeat part of these financial slatements and are lo be read In conjunction therewith,
LN

- I PATR T TR \ TN T 2 A\,@@/\-

{hlef Financtal Officer Director Mensging Dlrector Chalrperson
Signed in teons of our repont ol even dale anniexed. G
i

Dhaka, 26ih Oclober 2021
VG 21 10260352A594R568

GROAZT-2I0%

Pated

AK. Gulam Kibrla FCA, Pariney (]
G. KIBRIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

b At Hoesam Limited

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.



Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Consolidated Statement of cash flows
For tha year ended 30 June 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from tustomers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Cash gensraled from operaion

Income fax deducted at sowrce and pald
Net cash generated from operating activilies

8, Cash Hows from Investing activities

Purchase of properdy, plant and equipment 4
Investment in Join{ Venture 5
Investment in FOR

investment in Projecls 6

Net cash used In investing aclivities

€. Cash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment

Cash infow for MSL Shares (NCI Portion}

Issuance of new shares through IPO

Share Premium

Interest Pald 23
Net cash (used injfrom Financing activities

D. Netingreasefldecreass) In cash and cash equivalents (A+B+G)
Unrealized FX Gainf{loss) related to Foreign Currency held

E. Opening cash and cash equivalants
. Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Net Operating Cashflow per shara (Note 26.3A)

810181649

s 2,694,968,403
U (318489547T)  (2764.246,834)
T 4256620 230,751,560
S f495,851) {167,942,147)
T aws03nt 62,808,422
(345,660,992)
(3,534,028,548)
754,972,500
{20,900,0¢ 48,362,602
@I2AE5TT)  (3,076,354,348)
3,372,048,884
1040084530 -
L 425976463y (379,083,765)
TATASS2AETS. __ 7,892,055,089
1,117,659,728 (20,589,836)
BRI ALY y
478,915,521 497,506,358
B 1,_594,’53{;,400 ' 476,815,521
186 0.58

Thé accompanying notes form an integral part of thess financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therawith.

%—-——-——ﬂz_

Ghief Financlal Officer

[anaging Dlrector

by

Hodelsulso W oxiv

Director

Signad in terms of our report of ever date annexed,

Dhaka, 26th October 2021
DVC: 2110280302A5948568

GRCIA21-22/30

G .

LB

aifperson

AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)
G. KIBRIA & CO
Chartered Accountanis

Reir Akhter Hossaln Uimifed

E
4. @;‘Sumah

“Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

STATEMTENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2021

Assels

Nom-current assets

Proparly, plant and equipment
Investmen in Joint Vanture
Investments in Mir Secutities Limited
Investment in Projecis

Current assels

Secusity Deposits {Retention Money}
Advarce and Prepayments

Advance income 1ax net of lax provision
Inveniories

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assels

Equity and liabilitles

Shareholders’ equity
Share ¢apital

Share pramium
Revaluation Reserve
Relained earmings

Non-current llahilitles
Deffered tax liabiity
Long lerm loan

Current liabilities and provisions

Short term loan {Current portion of fong-lerm foan)
Defarred LC

Liabifties for expenses

Total iability
Total equity and llabilitles

Het Assets Value per Share

— D D R

12
13
14

15
18

18
17
18

8.2

a4 075,855,901
1 10403928,520.

3,840,446,370
10,315,894, 731

§27,926,105

14,684,267,206

732,929,403
951,885,504
48,134,478
3,525,944 685
476,815.524

5,735,813,591

) : 1,600,000,000
107539881 107,530,861
S 3908,.318,828 2738465717
.0 5,565,858,710 3,846,005,599
2 2.434.364,077. 13,470,491,340
. 12,134,890,083 13473.817,325
T T 512,080,765
S 01827862 349456672
L B5 47154 138,712,446
T 5,030,638,479 100,257,873
- 47,185,328,232 16,574,075,198
- RINAGE942 20,420,080,797

UENRE

3521

The accompanying hetes form an integral part of these financial stalements and are to be read in conjunction herewith.

Diractor

\»\o&«o\m\w\l{s}%\w’” ~

Managing Director

Signed ift tarms of out report of even dale anoexed.

Dhaka, 26th Qciober 2021
DVC: 2410280392A5948568

GRONZ-22730

G

AK. Gulam Kibrda FCA, Pariner (#392)
G. KIBRIA & CC.
Chartered Accountants

Md. N@S/Sunnah

ﬁcaam

1 Akhler Hossain Limiled

Company Sscratary

Mir Akhter Hossain Lt;;.



- MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
W For the year ended 30 June 2024

Revenue 19 L8,242.277.000 2,694,959,701
- Cost of execution of the contract 20 {2,306,555,858) {1,928,782,656)
o Gross profit Coo 995,724,142 766,177,043
o General and administration expensas 2 {188.054,85 (144,650,336}
_____ Profit from operations 621,526,107
i Non-operating incoms 22 13,328,379
r Financial expenses 23 (379,093,795

Profit before tax and WPPF 255,761,281
T Contribution to WPPF {12,179,108)
o Profit before tax from own construction business 243,582,182
- Tax expense

Current 24.1 (168,613,886)

i Defemed 24.2 -
e Total Tax expense {168,513,886)

Profit after tax from own construction business 74,968,296
: Profit after tax from Joint Ventute ‘ 25 300,038,702
- Total net profit after tax for the year 469853411 375,006,997

Other comprehensive income e .

Total comprehensive income for the year 69,853,111 375,006,957
s Basic and Dilutive Earnings per Share 5.4 S L A 343

The accompanying notes form an integraf part of these financial statements and are lo ba read in conjunction therawith.

Chief Finanaial Officer Managing Director Chalrperson

“o&\o&&\l&ﬁa\.‘ “O%\v’“

Director

Sigried in terms of our report of even date annexed.

GGy,

Dhaka, 26th October 2024 AK. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)
DVC: 2110280392A8548568 G, KIBRIA & GO,
. Chartered Accountants

GRCIAI-22730

M. %Sumah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid,




_ MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2024

Halance as at 01 July 2019 1,060,000,800 . 2,383,458,720 107,539,881 2,470,984,501 3,470,998,601
v Profit after tax fer the year 30 Juns 2020 . 74,988,295 - 74,968,295 74,968,295
. Profit aftec tax from Joint Venture _ - 300,038,702 300,038,702 300,038,702

S0 BTIRARSIAT 107,539,881 2846005508 -

005,508 -
Balance as at 1 July 2020 4,800,004,000 . 2,730,465,717 407,539,881 2,046,005,598 3,846,005,598
lssue of new shares 207,115470  1.042.284,530 1,250,000,000
Profit after 1ax for the year 30 June 2024 “ - 101,968,482 - 101,968,482 101,868,462
Profit after iax from Joint Venture — " . 367,884,849 - 367,884,849 367,884,649
Bi 5 ab 30 7 SN TISAT0 - S E042 2845300 100,208, 018:828 07,539,084 1 o A B 850.TH0 - B ERRB5A. T

The accompanying notes form an Integrat par! of these financial statements and are ! be read in confunction therewith,

AT

M Hednolsulop. tew < W"/
i1 Chief Financlat Officer Any Secretary Director Managing Dirsctor Chairperson
Sl
S Signed in tesms of cur report of even dale annexed.
—
< Dhaka, 26th Oclober 202t AK, Gulam Kibria FGA, Partner {792}

DVE: 211028039245848568 G, KIBRIA & CC.
o Chariered Accountants

- CRCIART-22/30 Page 7 “( Kir Akhler Hosssin Limited
by b Md. Washaus Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.




Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2021

A, Cash flows from operating activities

3510,161649

Cash receipls from customers 2 604,098,403
Cash paid to suppliers and employees (3,144,795,029) {2,764,246,634)
Cash generated from operation .. 485,366,627 - 230,751,569
Income tax deducted &t sovrce and paid - (224,695,851) (167,842,147
Net cash generated from operating aciivities 43,670,776 62,809,422
., Cash llowa from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {345,660,892)
Investment in Joint Venture {3,534,028,548)
Investment in Mir Securities Limited -
Investment in FDR 754,972,500
Investment In Projecis 48,362,692
Nel cash used In fnvesting activifies {912,23_5._5_17) {3,076,354,348)
C. Cash flows from financing activifies
Tota! Loan net of repayment Cm, s 320888
Issuance of new shares through IPO o ";_2_0?,?15;4?_0 -
Share Premium ©1,042,284,530 -
interest Paid A5, 926,163) (376,093,785}
Nef cash (used In)from financing activifies ol 1_‘{45 324,873 2,992 855,089
D. Netincreasef{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B#C) 1,077, 760.133 {20,589,836)
Unrealized FX Gainilloss) refated to Foreign Currency held o .5, 152 -
E. Opening cash and cash equivalents s 476 915 521 _ 497,505,358
F. Closing cash and cash equivalents {D+E) g 554 680,805 476,915,521
Net Operating Cashffow per share {Note 25.3) R & & 0.58

The accompanying notes form an integeal part of these financial statements and are to be read In conjunction therewith,

{},;w)”’v C o f;_gcz):z/”'“

Chief Financial Offlcer naging Diractor == Chalrperson

C y Secretary Director

Signed in terms of our repart of even date annexed.

AX, Gulam Kibrla FCA, Partnet (#3492}

Dhaka, 26th October 2021 G. KIBRIA & CO
DVC: 2110280392A5940568 Ghartered Accountants

4

Mir Akiiler Hossaln Limiled

Md.%asbaas Sunnah

Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd.
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the pariod ended 30 June 2021

1, Legal Status and Nafure of the Company

11
Mir Akhler Hossain Limited ['MAHL" was incorporated as Private Company Limited by shares on July 8, 1980 vide
registration # C-8196/35 with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Fitm under the Companias acl, 1913,

The company in its extra ordinary genesal meeling held on 3rd and 10th January, 2017 made some amendments to
the Memorandum and Arlicles of Association of the cempany with a view 10 converting it inlo & Public Limited
company, increasing its authorized capital, decreasing (he denomination of face value of shares complying with the
Companies Act 1894, which were spproved by the Registrar of Joint Steck Comparies and Firms, Dhaka. On
January 26, 2021, the Company was listed on the Dhaka Slock Exchange (DSE) and Chittageny Stock Exchange
{CSE} hrough Infial Puldlic Otfering (PO},

12 The address of the corporate office of the company is &l Red Crescent Borak Tower, Level 7 & 10, 71-72 0ld
Elsphant road, Eskalon Garden, Dhaka-1000.

13
The company owns and operates a construction business. in addition to working under its own name, MAHL also
executes several construction work under Joint Venturs agresments. The company was also involved in trading of
cigareties, However from July 01, 2017 the company has discontinued its cigareltes business as per decision of its
Board Meeting dated September 20, 2017 with refrospective effect from 01 July 2017 All inventory held for the
clgaretis business wers disposed in the year af book market value resulting in no gain or loss on disposal.

14 Description of subsidiaries and asscdiates
Subsidiaries are entitias controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed lo, or has rights fo,
variable relurns from 4s involvernant with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial slatements from the date
on which control commencas untit the date on which control ceases
Mir Securities Limited
Mir Securities Limited (MSLU') was incorporated in Bangladesh on 2 March 2021 vide registralion ¥ C-168341/2021 as
a private company fimited by shares upder the Companies Act, 1984, The registered office of the Company is
situafed ol Red Crescant Borak Tower, Level #.7 & 10, 37/31A, Easkalon Garden, Dhaka. { is a subsidiary Company
of Mir Akhter Hossain Lid that holds 88.75% cwnership of the Company.
The main obiactive of Mir Securties Limited is to act as a member of stock exchanges, the central depository sysiem
(CDS) comparies and {0 carry on the business of beoker, jobbers or dealers in slocks, shares, securities, bonds,
debeniures, The Company 5 currently in the process of obtaining their Trading Right Entitlement Certificale
{TREC)irom Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission {BSEC)

2. Basis of preparation

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are individual financial statements of MAHL, and have been prepared in accerdance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {FRS), the Companies Act, 1684, the Besurifies and Exchange Rules,
1887, relevant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securties and Exchange Commisslon {BSEC) , Income Tax
Ordinance 1084, VAT and Supplementary duty Act 2012, Reguiations of Dhaka and Chitlagong Stock Exchange,
Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (Amendment in 2013} and Bangladesh tabour Rules 2015, Financial Reporiing Acl
2015 and other applicable laws in Bangladesh. These indivdual financlal statements prasent the financial position and

performance of MAHL and its investment in Joini Venlurss with mulliple enlities.

Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Company SeaiBIBIY s timte
8i Akhier Hossain Lid.

CROM- 22003




These financial statements have been prepared on going concarn basis. Unless olhenwise specilically mentioned,
histarical cost principle has been followed for the purpese of the financial slatemenls,

2.2 Structure, confent and presentation of financial statements

Being the general purpose financial statements, the presentation of these financial stalements is in accordance with
{he guidelines provided by 1AS 1: “Preseniation of Financial Stalements™. A complete set of financial slatements
COMPIiSES:

i} Consclidaled and Separale Slatement of Finanaial Position;

i) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income;

i) Consclidated and Separate Slatement of Changes in Equity;

iv} Consclidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows,

v} Notes to the Cansolidated and Separate Financial Stateraents, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and sther explanalory information to the financial stalements,

23 Basis of consalidation

{i} Subsidiaries

The financiat slalements of subsidiary, Mir Securities Limited (MSLY has been fully consolidaled as Mir Akhtaer
Hossain Limited {MAHL'} directly confrols more than 50% of the voting rights of MSL, The accounting policies of MSL
have been aligned wilh the policies adoplad by Mir Akhtar Hossain Limited.

{if} Non-controfling inlerests ‘

Non-conlraliing interest (NCE) is the equity inferest in MSL not aftributable to MAHL. NCI is calculated at MSL's
proportionate share of identifiable nel assels at the date of acquisition as per para 19 of IFRS 3. Business
Combinations . MClis presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, separalely from the equity of the
sharaholdars of MARL as per paragraph 22 of IFRS 10: Conselidated Financial Statements .

In aceordance with paragraph B84 of IFRS t0: Consolidated Financiat Statements, the Group aftributes the profit or
loss and each component of the other compeahensive income to the owners of the parent and te the non-controliing
inlerasts evan if tha results in the nan-confroliing interest having a deficit balance.

{iii} Loss of control ‘

When MAHL loses conlrol over it's subsidiary, it derecognises the assels and liabilitins of the subsidiary and any
relaled NCI and ofher components of the squity. Any resufling gain or loss is recognised in the profil or loss. Any
interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured al air value when control is lost.

{iv) Intragroup transactions

inlra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arfsiag from inka-group
transactions, are .elimindted in preparing the consolidated financial statemenis. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with equily accounted investees are eliminated againsl the investment to the extent of MAHLU's interest in
the inveslee. Urrealised fosses, if any, are aliminated in the same way as unrealised gains hut only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment,

23 Investmentin Joint Ventures

in addiion to the Companys own conglruction business, the Gompany will form joint ventures with other
organizations to execute customer contracts. The invasiment in these joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity method. Under the equily melhed, the investment in the joint venlures are initially recognised at cost. The
carrying amount of the investmenis are adjusted to recognise changes in the company's share of net assets of the
joint venlure since the acquisition dale

24 Basis of measurement

Under the historical cost, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair vaiue of the
consideralicn given to acquire them at the time of acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds
1ecaived in sxehange for the obligation, o in some circumstances ( for example, income taxes), at the amounis of
cash or cash equivalents expected (v be paid {o satisfy the liability in the normial course of business.
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25  Functional and presentational currency

These financial stalements are prepared in Bangladeshi Taka (Taka/BDT.}, which is belh the company's funclional
and prasentational currency. All financial information has besn rounded off {0 the nearest integer.

28 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformily with IFRS, requires management to make judgment, estimales
and assumptions {hal affect the reported amount of revenue, expense, asset and liabililies and the accompanying
distlosures including disclosures on conlingent Babiliies. Uncertsinties about these assumptions and estimates could
resuit in outcomes that require & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in future periods.

Estimates and underying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to atcounling estimates are
recognised In the period in which the estimales are revised and in any future periods affested.

In particular, information about significant arsas of assumptions, estimatiens and judgments in applying accounting
poficies that have the most significant effect on fhe amount recognised in the consotidated financial statemants are
descrbed in the following noles

Mole - 2.2 Basis of conselidation

Nels-23and 5 Basis for using Equily Method

Nole - 2.7 Going Cosicern

Note - 3.2 IFRS 16 Leases

Note - 3.4.3 Depreciation and usefid ife duration of assels
Mole - 3.5 impairment of Assets

Nola - 3.9.2 and 15 Delerred tax asselbHability
Nole- 3.9.1 and 24 Provision for corporate lax
Note - 3.13 and 35 Conlingent Liabilities

Measurement of Fair Value
When measuring the fir value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable dala as [ar as possible.
Fair values are categorised inlo different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inpuls used in the valuation
lechniques as follows:

Level 11 quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assels or fabllities

tevel 21 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, efther diractly (i.e. as prices} or indirecty (i.e. derived from prices).
teval 3 inpuls for the asset or fability that are not based cn observable market data.

27  Golng concern

As per IAS-1 para 25, 2 company is required to maks assessment al the end of each year to assess ifs capability to
continue as & gaing concern. These financial statements have been prapared an going concem basis, The company
has adequale resources to continue its operation for the fareseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to
adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statemenis, The current resources and credit facilifies of the
company are sufficiant to meet the prasent requirements of its existing business,

impact of Covid-12 Pandemic

Similar to all other organizations, MAHL was also not immube 1o the impact of Covid-18. There were significant delays
in the completion of several un-guing projcets during the curent year and prior year. As a resull, there was a
significant reduction in revenue racognized the Company for the year ended 30 Juna 2020 (which was the first year of
the pandemic), With the partiat improvemant of the pandemic in the courlry and vaccination reil-outs, the overall
economy has slarted to recaver, This impact can alsc be seen in the financial performance of the Company with 20%
increase in revenos for the Company compared o the prior year. The Company has managemed to eam a positive
Cperaflng Cash Flow which shows that the overall fiquidity posilion of the Company is slil sound. The Gompany is
always monloring the market, industry partners and the overall economy for any potential futura impact of this

pandemic. %
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28

2.10

2.1

212

213

RGN0

Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance wilh as per 1AS 7: "Statement of cash flows" under direct
methed as prescribed by ihe Bangladesh Securifies and Exchange (BSEC) rule 1887 A reconclliation of Net
operating cashitow from operating activities under the indirect method has alsa been prepared in accordance with
Glause Mo, 5{2)e) of Nolification No. BSEC/CMRRCDIZ006-158/208/Admin/81 Daled 20th June, 2018 (Gazelle
publication date: August 8, 2018},

Materiality, agjgrega!ion and off setting

Each material item a3 considered by managemeni significant, has been presented separalely in the financial
statements. The Company reports separalely both assels and liabifities, and income and expenses unless fequired by
an applicable accounting standard o offsetting reflects substance of the fransaction and such offsetting is permitted
by applicable accounting standard. Mo amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to sat off the
amounts and intends to settla on net basis

Reporting period

This financial period of the company covers one (1) year from 0 July 2024 to 30 June 2021,

Compliance with Financial Reporting standards as applicable in Bangladesh for the Company

The foliewing IASHFRS are apolicable for the preparations of financial stalements for the period under review

1AS 1
A8 2
457
IAG 8
A5 19
145 12
IAS 18
A5 17
IAS 19
JAS 21
IAS 23
1A 24
IAS 28
A503
AS 37
IFRS 9
IFRS 7
IFRS &
IFRS 15
IFRS 18

Prasentation of financial sialements
lnventorles
Slatement of cash flows

« Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimales and errors

Evenls after the reporting period

incoms {axes

Property, plant & Equipment

Leases

Employee benelils

The effacts of changes in foraign exchange rales
Barrowing costs

Related party disclosures

investment in assotiates and Joint Ventures
Eamings per share

Provisions, contingent ligbifities and contingent assels
Financlal Instruments

Financial instruments, disclosures

Operating Segmenls

Ravenue ffom conlacts with customers

Leases

Accrual Basis

wir AKnter Hossain Limited prepares iis financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual hasis
of aceourting. Since the acsrual basis of accounting is used, the Company recognizes ilems as assets, liabilities,
equity, incoma and expenses {the elements of financial statements) when they sallsfy the definitions and recognition
criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework,

Comparitive Information

Comparative informalion has been disclosed in respest of 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2020 in accordance with 1AS 1:
Prasentation of Financial Statements for all numeric information in the financial statéments and also the raralive and
descriplive information where it is relevant for understanding of the cument periods of financial statements.
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214 Current versus non-currrent classification

The Company presents assefs and fiabilities in {he stalement of financiaf position based on current/non-cument
classification. Assels and linbilities are classified as curent when they are expecled (o be realized, setiled, sold or
consumed in a normal accounting cycle or within twelve months after the reporiing period. Assets and liabililies that
are hetd pamarily for trading are also cansiderad current.

215 Standards lssued but not yet effective in Bangladesh

Lo The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but nol yel effective, up lo the date of issuance
of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below,

IFRS 17 Insurance Conlracts

In May 2017, the 1A3B issued IFRS 17 Insurange Coniracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting siandard for

insurance contracts covering recognition and measuremeny, presentation and disclosure. Once effestive, IFRS 17 wil

replace [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005, IFRS 17 is effective for reparfing pericds

f beginning on or alter 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required, This standard is not applicable to the
s Company and will nol be adoplad.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the "10 per cent’ {esi for derecognilion of liabifities
P As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements 1o IFRS standards process the JAASB issued amendment to IFRS 8.
—r The amendment clarifies the fees thal an antity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantiatly different froem the lerms of the original financlal liability. These fees include only
Iose paid or received between the bormower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
or after the beginning of the annual reparting pericd in which the entity first applies the amandment,
The amendment is effectiva for annual reporling periods beginring on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption
P permitted. The Cempany witl apply the amendments {o financial liabiftios that are modified or exchanged on or after
it fhe beginning of the annual reporting period in which the enfily first appiies the amendment, The amendments are nol
expecied o have a matedal impact on the Company.

Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to IAS 8

In February 2021, the JASB issued amendments to 1AS 8, in which | introduces a definitien of secounting estimates’.
The amendments ¢larify lhe distinclion bebween changes in accounting eslimates and changes in accounting poficies
i and {he corraction of ermors. Also, they cladfy how entifies use measurement techniques and inputs to develop

- aceotnting estimates,

The amendments are effective for annual reporling periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply lo
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimalas that ocour on of after the start of that pericd.
Earlies application is permitled as fong as this fact is disclosed. The amendments are not expacled lo hava a material

impact an the Company,
; 1 Significant acuounting policies

The accounting fiolicies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presentad in these financiat
i slatements,
- 31 Shareholders' capital - paid-up capital

: Paid-up capital represents the lotal amount of shareholders capilal that has been paid in full by the ordinary

bl shareholders, Helders of ordinary shares are entitted to receive dividends as declared from time {o time.
N 3.2 lLease transactions {IFRS 16)
- Starting 1st July 2019, IFRS 18 has been adopted and all leasing arangements except those having less than 12
. manths of useful lite and underying asset values considered low value when new, have been sapitaiized as “right to
[ use” assets with a corresponding financiat liability on the balance sheet
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Leased assels arp capitalized from the start date of the lsase sgraersent at the present value of the future leased
payments, based on the rate of interast entered in the assel master dats. Low value and short term leases
{<12months) have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operafing pofit as rental costs.
l.ease reassessment and lease modificafion to incrense/decrease the value of an assel depending on a change in
scope of lease agreement can be made i necessary.

The asset is written off on a straight-line basis over the fenure of the lease agreements. Hence, the uselul fife of any
lease assels depends on the number of periods the assets can be used. The useful iife of such assets are degendent
an individua! agreement and can vary from ane agreement lo another

For the Current Year, the Company entered into {or had already existing) twe (2) lease agreemenls. These lease
agrerements were renta leases for the Company's two office premises. For both of these leases, both the lesses and
lessor have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the othar party and also without any panally being
imposed by the other parly. Therefore in line with Parapraph B34 of IFRS 16, both of these leasas are not considered
{o be enforceable,

Since these agreements are vof considered enforeable, they do net mest the definifion of a conlract under IFRS 18
and thus does not create a right-of-use Asset. Hence, MAHL has recognized the sent paid lor their premises in fing
with their previous practice under 1AS 17 which is recognizing a rental expense in the statement of profit o loss,

Since MAHL's rental agreements did not meet the definition of IFRS 16 right-of-use asset, there was no impacien the
financial statements due o the adoption of this atcounting standard.

33 Employee henefits: Provident Fund

Provident Fund

MAHL maintains a defined contribufion plan (Employes Provident Fund) for its eligible permanent employees. The
sligibility Is delermined by according o the terms and conditions set forth in the trust deed and nides. The company
subscribes to a contributory provident fund for ifs permanent employees which is adminislered by a Board of
Trustess. As per [AS 19, in a defined contribution plan, the entily pays fixed conlributions into a fund but has no legal
or constructive obligation to make further paymenis. Qbligations for contribution to definad coniribution plans are
tecognised as an employee benefil expense in profit of loss in the period duting which relaled services are rendered
by employess

Workers' Profit Partlcipation Fund (WPPF)

In accordance with 1AS 19, an entily shall recognize the expecled cost of profibsharing and bonus payments if the
enlity has a present legal or constrctive cbligation to make such paymenls and reliable measurement of the
obligation can be made. The company makes the provision of WPFF @ 5% of ils net profit before tax ater charging
such expense as WPPF in accordance with Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 as amended in 201,

The Company does not hava any policy b provide Defined Benefit Employement Benefits and therefore the Company
does not maintain 2 Gratuity Fund, Consequently there is no provision or gratully -expenses recognized by the
Company.

34 Property, plant and equtipment
341 Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment (PPE} is recognised as an asset if i is probable that Ruturs economic benefits
associated with the assel will flow lo the enlily and the cost of the item can b measured reliably.

Property, piant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impalmant losses, if
any. Cost includes expendifure that s directly altributable to the acquisition of the assets, bringing the assels to 1be
location and cenditicn necessary for it o be capable of operaling in the manner intended by management,
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342  Subsequeni costs

The costs of replacing part of an item of property, plant and squipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the cempany and ils costs
can be measured refiably. The costs of the day to day servicing of property, piant and equipment are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and otrer comprebensive income as incurred.

343  Deprecfafion

Dapresiation is recognised in the stalement of profit of loss and other comprehensive income on a redusing halance
method over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment, Oepreciation of an assal beging
when it is available for use, ie. whan it s in the lecation and condition necessary for it to be capable 4f operating in
the mannet intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earier of the dale that the asset is
classified as hetd for sale {or included in a disposat group that is classified as held for sale} in accordance with IFRS §
and the date that the assel Is deretognised or sold. No depreciation is charged on leasshold lend and capitat work-in-
progress. Depreciation is calcufated and charged ca all olter propery, plant and equipment af the iollowing rales on
cost or valuation, considering the estimated useful fives of lhe assets:

30-Jun-21 A0-dun-20
Land 0% (%
Plant and machinary 15.60% 15.00%
Spare parts Cffice equipmant 10.00% 10.00%
Furniture fixtures and fitlings 10.00% 10.00%
Shuftering Malerial ' 20.00% 20.00%
Molor Vehicle 20.60% 20.00%

Gain or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recagnised in the statement of proft or loss and olher
comprehensive income as per provision of 1AS 10: "Property, plant and equipment™.

Depreciation has been afiocaled o the differant projacts on the basis of uses of the assels .

MAHL recognizes two kinds of spare parls: parts which are considered long-term assets and paris which are
considared inventory. In addition, there are some spare pards which are used over multiple years and Lhey are used
on the field to sarvice olher capital equipment. These parts are used aver multiple years, are of very high vatue and
are held for use in the production of geods or setvice, Since these ltems are large, high value and used over multiple
years, they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment, as per paragraph 6 of IAS 18 and thus are presenled
as fixed assels and nol inventory

344 Revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment

When using the revaiuation model, as per IAS 18: Property, Plant and Equipment paragraph 31, afler recognition as
an asset, an item of propery, plant and equipment whose fair value shall be measured reliably can be carred at a
tevaiued amoun. If PPE and revaluations shalf be made with suffiicient regularily to ensure that the carrying amouni
does not differ materialty feorn that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporiing pericd.

The company revalued its land by an independent professional firm namely Nurdl Farsk Hasan & Co., Chartered
Accouniants, crealing 8 ravalualion surplus of Taka 11,08,65.857 . The valuation report has been prepared and
Iraated in accerdance with Intemational Accounting Standaeds (AS} and iMernationat Financial Repoding Standards
(IFRS) and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The revaluation report was prepared based on tha
financial position of June 30, 2017.

The increase in the carrying amount of fevalued assets is recogaized in the séparale component of equily under the
head of revatuation surplus. However, the increase is recognized in profit of Ioss account i the extent that i reverses
& revaiuation decrease of the same sssels previously recognized in profit or foss accaunt. There wers 5o intome
recagnized for the current {or any such reversals. Since the assel which was revalued (Land & Land Developments) is

not depreciated, there is no transfer of revalsation stiplus {o equity done by the Company.
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35  Impairment
351 Recognition

The carrying value of the company's assets, other than inveniories, are réviewed al each stalement of financial
. position dale to determine whelher lhere is any indication of impairment. if any such indicalion exists, the assets
s recoveratle amount is estimaled. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the assel or its
cash-generating unit excaeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of
profit of loss and olher comprehensive income. For the assels that have indefinite useful fife, the recoverable amount
is estimated at each stalement of financial position date,

Mo indication of impairment was observed in the pariod ended 30 June 2021,

352  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverabie amount of an asset is the greater of net selling price and value in use. The estimated fulure cash
fiows are discounted to their present value using discount rate thal reflects the current market assessment of [he time

vaiue of money and ihe risk specific 1o the asset, For an assel that dees nol generale significantly independent cash
_ inflows, the recaverable amount is delermined for the cash generating unil to which the assat belangs,
bt 153  Reversal of impairment
I An impairment loss recognised in priar pericds for'an asset shall be reversed If, and only i, there has been a change
G in the estimates used fo delermine the asset's recoverable amount since the tast impairment loss was recognised.
An impairment loss Is reversed only to the extent that the assel's carrying amount does not arceed the catrying
w amount that would have been delermined, net of depreciation or amortizalion, tiad no fmpaifment loss been
recognised for the assetin prior years,
: There was no raversal of impairment in the perted ended 30 June 2021
38 Capital work-in-progress
W Capital work-in-progress reprasents ihe cost incurred for acquisition andior construction of fems of property, plant
and equipment that wese not ready for use at the year end and ihese are stated ai cost.
o 37  Firancial lnstrumenis
As per FRS-7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosure” all finansial inslruments are presented in @ way 5o that users are
L snabled to evaluate the sigrificance of financial instruments for the Company and nature and exlent of risks arising
N from firancial insiruments lo which the enfity is exposed during the pariod and how the enlity manages thse risks.
P Investments in fixed deposits
= Investments in fixed deposits are shown in the financial statements at its cost and interest income is recognised as
{hey become due,
.,..., Cash end cash equlvalenis
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances and deposits with licensed financial institutions thaf are
\-__ readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.
Advances
(- Advances with no staled interest are measured at the original amount if the effect of discounting s immaterial.
- M. ésbaus Sunpah
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MAHL has adopted IFRS 9 for the current perind as this standard has become effeclive. In previous pericds, the
anlity used IAS/BAS 38 o account for their financial instruments, The adoption of IFRS 8 did not have any impact en
the Company's financial stalements as there were no changes in the Company's classification of the existing financial
instruments {all remained measured al cost). As per IFRS 9, a financial instrument is measured at cost if they are
held with & business madel whose objective is hold assels and collect contractual cashfiows and the conlraciual
terms give rise lo cash flows on specific dates which are only payrents of principle and insterest on lhe oulslanding
peinciple. These two crilerias are met by all three instruments above.

38 Borrowing costs

As per requirernent of 1AS 23 Borowing Costs, directly altribulable borowing costs are capitalised during
construction period for ail qualifying assets. A qualifving assel is an asset thal necessarily takes a substantial period
of time 1o get ready for ifs intended use or sale. The borrowing costs thal are direcily atirbutable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are those borowing costs that would have been avoided if the
expenditure on the gualifying agset had rol been made. All ofher borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

38 Taxation

Tax on the stalement of comprehénsive incoma for the year comprises currenl and deferred lax, Income fax &s
recegrised in the statement of comprehensive incame except to the extent that it relates to items recognised diractly
in equiy, in which casé it is recognised in equity.

391 Current lax

Current tax is the sxpected tax payabie on (he laxable income for the year, asing lax rales enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adiustment to lax payable in respect of pravious years.

382  Deferred tax

Deferred lax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and lighilities for financiat
reporting purposes and the amounts used for laxation purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided
for: the inftial recognition of goadwill, the initial recognition of assels or liabilities that affect neither accounting ror
taxable profit oifes than in a business combinalion, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extant hat they wilt probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on
the expected manner of reafisation or sefliement of the camrying amount of assats and fiabilifies, using lax rales
enacled or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date, Deferred tax assets and liabiities are offsel if there is a
legal enforceatsie right to offsat current tax fiabilities and assets, arid they relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority on the same taxable enlity.

A deferred tax assel is recegnised only to lhe exlent thal it is probable that fulure taxable profits will be available

against which the temporary difference can be ufilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the refaled tax benefit will be realised.

310 Inventories
3101 Stocks
Inventoriss represents conslruction material and supplies I, red, cement, sand | slone, files, bricks, pipes, elactirical
. goods ele, awalting use in this production process . Therefore, the campany complies with the principles of 1AS-2
invanlories™ and tecognise inveniories at cost using weighled average cost formula and measurta the sams at
repoding date at lower of cost and net realisable value,

3192 Stores

Spara parts and miscellanaous items are valued at the lower of cost and net realiza{)lg value,
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310.3  Contract Asset - Work in Progress & Gontract Liabilities

Contract Assal: Work-in -process represents performance obligation completed by MAHL Gut for which consideration

is not yel due (since the cusfomer has not been billed). In accordance with parageapgh 107 of IFRS 15, this is

recorded as an assel [FRS 15 allows a Company to use allernative deseription to represent Contract Asset In the
: statement of financial position {paragraph 109). Therefore contract asset is presented as "Work in Progress” in the
s statement of financial positicn.

MAHL does not operate or use sales agenets who receive compensation in the form of commission from the
Company. Rather than agents, the Company has human rescurces engaged in business development The
compensation of these employees arm not directly related Yo aquisition of any single contracts bul ralher incurred
peridocally in the form salaty and wages. Therefore the Company dees not record any conlract assets in relaled fo
cusiomer contracls regarding costs incurred [0 obtain contracts which is in fine with IFRS 15 Paragraph 91.

Contract liabifites represent payments received for consideration not yet completed. The Company only bifis their
clients for work compleled afler 8 survey is completed by the Customer 1o confirm the stage of work completion, The

Company only recogrizes revenue alter this process if completed and only then wilt the Company bilt their customers,
: Consequently, no payment Is ever received before an obligation is completed and hence there is no Contract
E . Liabilities on the financial statements

311 Trade and other receivables

i Contrasts recelvable represent the amounts bifled on completed eansteuction contracts . In accordance with JERS 15,
had the receivable amount represents MAHL's right io considerafion thal is uncondilional. The consideration is
T unconditonal due to the fact that the service has been completed and {he customer has been billeed for the services
provided. Conlract receivable asset should be distinguished from Work in Process which represnis contracts assels
where MAHL has completed their performance obligation but payment is nol yel due {since the customer has nol
been hillad yat). There are further details in Contract Assel: Work in progress is Note 3.10.3

. 312 Foreign currency transactions

The financial stalements are presented in BDT which s company's funclional currency. Transactions in foreign
N cunencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Menetary assets
and fiabilities in forsign cumencies af he date of stalements of financial position are lransiated inlo 1aka at the
exchange rate prevaifing at thal date.Nen-monetary items that are measured in terms of histodeal cost in a foreign
currency are ranslated using the exchange rate al the date of the inilial transaction. Non-monetary tems measured at
fair value in a foreign currency ase translated using the exchange rate af the daté when the fair value was delermined.
Exchangs differences arising on the setilement of monelary tems o on ranslaling monstary items at fhe end of the
reparting pericd are recognised in profil o loss a per 1AS-21 the Effests of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rales.

313 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assats
Provisions
; A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constnictive
s obligation as a result of past events, and it is probabls that an outflow of economis bensfits wili be required io seltle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ohligation.

Contingent liabiiities

Contingent lishifities s a possible obligation that arises from the past events and whose existance will be confirmed
only by the ocourance of non-accurange of more uncertain future events nol wholly within: the conlret of the entity, or

o d preser tc}bi Qal of t at arnses wom [}353 evel ;ts but 5 !lot eC-Gg Hsﬂd because:
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i a) it is not probabia that an outfiow of resources embegying econsmic benafits wilt be required 1o selfie the obiigation;
or

b} the amount of the ohligation cannot be measured reliably.

“ Contingent Assets

A Canlingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existance will be confirmed oniy by
the ateurance or non-occurance of more unceriain future events nof wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent liabillies and assets ate nol recognised in the statement of financial posiion of the Company. They are
disciosed in the noltes to the financial statements.

- 314 Revenue recognition

Under (FRS 15, revenue is measured under a b step peogess. The § step proces includes:

1, ldentification of contract

2. |dentification of performance cbigation

3, Delermiration of fransaction price

4, Allncation of fransaction price to performance obligation

= 5. Salisfaction of performance obligation

Through a & step process, the Company identifies a confract with ‘a2 customer and {he condract details the
consideration amount That is to be received from the customer in relurm for distinet performarice ebligations that is 1o
be performed by the Company. The parformance of these obligations are fullfled through the transfer of goods and
senvices (o the customer. :

As MAHL cperates in the construction business, fafilment of their conlraots invelve providing goods and services of
varied nature in a given contract. However the nalure of these seivees is such that they are nol distinct individuatly
but rather cumulztively makes up one single distinct delivearble {siace the customer cannol enjoy the benefits from
those goods or services on their own}. Therfere he consideration {o has been agresd in the conbract is afinbuled lo
the that ane deliverable rather than aliocating them to individual goods or services since they are nol dislingt from one
anather.

The peformance cbligation related to MAHL's construclion contracts are satisfied over-ime. MAHL uses the oulput
method lo delermine the eolity's prograss towards compilete satisfaclion of a performance obfigation over time. MAHL
uses the oulput method because it provides a true and fair presentation of the value fo the customer of the goods and
services transferred to dale relative ta the remaining geods and serviges promised under the conlract,

et As described abave, the Company adopted IFRS 15 using ihe full refrospective method. Adoption of IFRS 15 did not
lead to any changes in the sevenue recorded in previous pericds. Revenue was recegnized in fine with the Company's
progress of completion in prior years and the consideration to be received did nol involve vanable alements or
mttipte performance obligations.

315 Contract Cost

Contract costs are costs that are incrementat 1o oblaining a contract with a cuslomer or costs thal are directly related
to fulfiing a specified customer (Fulfilmen cost). Contract cost is capialised as an assot and amortised in 2 way thal
is consistent with the transfer of the relaled goods and service.

316 Interest expenses

inferest expense comprises interest expense on overdralt, import lpan, demand foan, finance tease and term loan, All
inlerest expenses are recognised in the stalement of profit or foss and other comprehensive income when it accrues,
inlerest expenses is aflccaled to the different projects and joint ventuses on the basis of koan used.
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317 Earnings per share
Basic samings per shars

The company presents basic eamings per share (EP3) (or its ordinary shares, Basiz EPS Is caloulated by dividing the
profit or foss atirbutable to the ordinary shareholdars of the companyby the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding at the year end as per 1AS-33 " eamnings per share”,

Diluted carnings per share

No dituted eamings per share are required fo be caloulated for the year as there was no scape for dilution during the
year under review,

318 Related pariy transaction
Pariies are considered to be related if one of the parly has the ability 1o confrof the other party or execise significant

influence over the pary in making financial and operating decisions, The company carred out fransactions in the
ordinary course of business on an arms length basis al commercial rales with its related parlies.

319 Events after the reporting date
Events after the repariing data that provide additional information about the company's position al the reporing date

are reflected in the financial sialemants. Events after the repoding dats that are not adjusting evenis are disclosed in
the notes when material.

320  General

Previous year's numercal informalion, naratives and descriplive information in the Bnancial statements and
accompanying notes have been disclosed and rearrangedireclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to
curent years presentalion.
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5, Investment in Joint Venture

This amound represents the company's Investment in the project
with foreign coflaboration | 10403929520 }1 10,315,804 731 |
10,403,928 520 10,315,894,731

Name-of the Joint Verture Nature of Business
HALLA-MAH-SEQKWANG WV Construction 796,016 542 859,971,559
Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV Congtruclion 3,004,590,686 3,235,381,400
Mir Akhter-Kemaihalte: JV Construction 429,336,740 1,484 985,585
Mir Akhler-WMCG BV Construction 871,828,159 924 137,347
Hego-Mir Akhler JY Construclion 1,047,597 383 1,065,626 581
Halla-Mir Akhler J¥ Conslruction 2,883,132828 2,755,742 248
Mir Akhier-CAMCE JV Constniction 715,862,328 .
GRCC-MAHL BV Construclion 545 464 854 -
10,403,928,520 10,315,894,1%
HALLA-MAH-SEOKWANG:

Three enfities viz; Halla Corporation, Korea, Mir Akitter Hassain Lid., Bangtadesh and Seckwang Development Co. Ltd.
formed a Joint Venlure Underiaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract to perform the construction work of Cox's Bazar
Airport under the Civit Aviation Authonty of Bangladesh,

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV:

Two entities viz; Samwhan Carporation and Mic Akfiter Hossain Lid., Bangladesh formed a Joinl Veniure Underlaking
{Partnership at will) based on a contract for improvement of road from Dulfa Mari raad to Tangail {22.4 Km.) from 2-Lane o 4-
tane including structures and performance based maintenance works on improved 4-lane road from Dulla Marl Road to
Tangail (22.4 Km ) and Consbruction of 6 (Six) Nos (3-14) Siored Residential Buliding (100 S8, Each unil) including civi),
internal & external sanitary & water supply and eleclrical works, suppQly & Installation of lift, Generator, eleciric subslation
and fire fighling system elc in Block-A of Dhaka Elevated Express way {DEE) projoct,

Mir Akhtar-Komaihaltes JV:

Twa entities viz; Kemaihaltee Lid. and Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid. formed a Joint Vanlure Underaking {Partnership at wil) based
on a confract No. PW-02 for Construction of 16(Sixteen) Nas. Bridge at Rajshahi Zone of Western Bangladesh Bridge
improvement project.

Mir Akhter-WRCG JV

Two enlilies viz; Mir Akhter Hossain itd. And Wishan Municipal Construction Group {AMCG) furmed a Joint Venture
undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for the construction of 7,35 km road from Rajghat to Mehaoriguna in

Mohashlchali upazilla of Coxsbazar,
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s Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Twg entiies viz; Henan Highway Engineering Geoup Co, Lid,, Republic of China and Mir Akhter Hossain Lid. formed 8 Joint
- Verdure Underiaking (Parinership at wilf) based on a contract for part-4: Improvement of road from west side of
Bangabandhu Bridge to Halikumrut intersection (19.80 km) lo a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving vehiculer traffic
{EMVY'T} tane on both sides & structures and par-2: performance based maintaince works on improved 4-lane highway from
west side of Bangabandhu Bridge to Hatkumna intersection (19.80 km} fo a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving
vehicular trafiic {SMVT) lang on both sides & sructures under the SASEC road connaglivity proiect-Il: Improvement of
Elenga-Hatikumnd-Rangpur road to a 4-lane highway, ICB Mo.; SASEC-IICBMP-1AWP 06 {LOT 2).

Haila-Mir Akhter JV

- Twio eniities viz; HALLA Corporation , Republic of Korea and  Mir Akhler Hossain Lid,, Bangiadesh formed a Joint Yeniure
Undertaking {Parinership at will) based on a contract for rehabilitation of road from Badarkhali naval pofice station to

i Yunuskhali {Ch. 30+ 339 ta Ch. 36+ 123} including new 680 m kohelia bridge, strengthening of existing runway and taxiway al

B OSMANT INTERNATIOANL AIRPORT , SYLHET and conslruction of §85m long PG box grider bridge box over Bakkhaii river
at Kusturi Ghat tnder sadar upazila of Cox'shazar Dislrict

CRCC-MAHL WV
i Two entities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain itd. And China Rallway Conslruction Bridge Engineering Bureau Group Co. Ltd. formed
& Joint Venture underiaking (Partnership at will) based on 3 contract for the construction of Construction of Broad Gauge Rail
- Line from Madhukhali o Magura Via Kamarkhali
MIR AKHTER-CAMCE JV
“_, Two entilies viz; Mir Akhter Hossain fd. And China CAMC Engineering Co. Lid. farmed a Joint Venture undertaking
{Parinership at will) based on a conlract for the Strengthaning of Existing Runway and Taxiway at Shah Amanat international
L Airport, Chittagang.
Legal Status of all Joind Ventures:
i The fegal status of the joint venlure is a Parnership at wifl because it was crealed only lo carry oul a pardicular consiruction
projects as per contract, bul in accordance wilh the provision of Section - 2 (20} BB of Ingome Tax Qrdinance 1984 is status
. is a Company though it does nol have any consequential sffect under this Ordinance,
6. investment in Projects
Balance as at 01 July 527,926,105 576,208,797
- Add: Addition during the year 39,900,000 .
567,826,105 576,208,797
. Less: Refund during the year - (48,382,682
. Balance as at 30 June 567,026,108 527,926,105

e »
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7. Security Deposits {Refention Money)

Security Deposils
Balance as at 01 July
Add: Security deposits retained by the smployer
l.ess: Refund during ihe period
Balance as at 30 June

Prepayments
VAT refund:
Cpening
Add: Additions during the year
Less: Refund during the yaar;

8. Advance & Prepayments

Advances {o employees against salary
Advances {o suppliers

BA. Consolidated Advance & Prepayments
Advanee & Prapaymenis - MAHL
Advance & Prepaymenis - MSL
Less: intercompany Elimination

8, Advance intome lax

Balance as &l 01 July

AT on lmport

AIT on Contract revenue

AIT on 1PO & STD accounts

AT on tha registration of Car and Vehicle

Less: Provision for fax
Balance as at 30 June

10.  inventories

Stocks

Work-in-process
Raw materials {Nole-13.1)
Goods-in-transit

GRCIAZ1-20130

713,960,073 743,670,554
149,673,865 115,923,418
{76,534,700) {145,624,899)
787,098,238 713,959,073
18,970,330 40,744,548
- {21,774.218)
18,970,330 18,970,330
806,068,568 732,929,403
© 2,206,787 2,865,630
938,415,189 949,033 874
940,641,976 951,689,504
540,641,976 451,489,504
30,000,000 .
{271,569} -
570,370,207 951,889,504
48,134,478 48,806,217
26,895,435 41,830,415
186,201,958 122,020,389
1,638,215 1,204,843
7,159,242 2,786,500
269,830,328 216,748,364
{220,057,635) (168,613,886)
49,772,684 48,134,478
1,740,101,845 1,567,132,876
1,895,339,200 1,632,486,556
617,370,329 136,325,253
4,252,811,374. 3,525,944 685

&

Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Compagy Saciala insed
Bir Akhter Hossain Lid,




10.1 Details break-down of Raw materials:

Cement 221,541,230 210,007,889
M.5.Rod 238,231,520 212,696,818
Stone Chips/Boulder 461,247 800 403 463,489
Sand 482,714 570 433,374,149
Bricks 5,833,690 §1,246,780
Sanitary Material SR 821,200 4,123,580
Wood & Plastic Door L EEESI0 678,900
Tites 328,180 212,40
PVC pipe,RCC pipe & 5.8 Pipe -5 3823840 3,840,800
Bitumen w45 521 450 54,125,730
Cremical S B322 590 #,823,680
Hardwara Material 1,477,820 16,823,470
Eteclrical Material 8,862,540 9,817 460
GP Gheet -5,922 350 8,715,400
Holo Block 477 850 1845210
Thai Aluminiurm 655,240 874 250
Others 516,888,560 402,212,580

Total 1,832 486 556

1,995,339,200

Due lo large volume number of items of stocks, # is difficull to quantify each items in a separate and distingt calegory.

Therefore, it is grouped under the suitable head.

11, Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand (Nole- 11.3} 14,430,642 33,513,150
Cash at banks
Cash at bank { Note-11.1) 1,170,208,269 105,405,975
Cheque in hand { Note-11.2) 370,041,684 337.996,39
1,540,250,163 443,402,371
1,554,630,805 476,815,521
114 Cash at bank
Cash at bank MAHL 401,869,763 105,405,975
Cash at bank IPQ aecount (BDT account) 767,713,712 .
Cash at bank PO account (USD converted fo BDT) 624,854 -
i 1,170,208,269 105,405,975
11.2 Chegue in hand
Project Name
Rajshahi New Road(RNR) 159,341,312 41,196,320
Reliance insurance Limited o A7,Tre,354 .
Nalor Baghatipara Bridge, NBA : - 5,920,373
Patenga Container Terminal-Ground lmprovemsant-(PCT - 41,887,991
Residential Model Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk Dhaka ' - 13,050,100
RHD Sythel Road Projset, SRP 32,774,867 25,534,151
Dhaka Airport {DAP) a 14,819,723
Chitagang Development Aulhority, BAKALIA - 56,865,275
Kanchpur Meghna Guimti Bridge, (OSJ1 Jv) . 138,822,483
Jamuna River Dradging Works, JRDW 61,745,184 -
Munshiganj Badge, MSEP 78,307,197 -
370,041,894 337,996,396
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Cash in hand

Project

Head Office

RAJUK, Utlara Dev. Projeat, DHAKA
Uttara Residential Apariment Projact
OSJi JOINT VENTURE

Refiance Insyrance Limited

Chittagany Develepment Authorily, BAKALIA
Malarbari Power Plant

RHD, Shylhet Road Project{SRP)
Dredging Work Madaripur, DWW

Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB

Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW
Muashiganj Bridge, MSBP

Kushtia Shilpskala Academy (K8A)
Ghaka Airport (DAP}

Bangabandhu Bridge RHD (BBTL)
Dawiatdia Basantapur Road, RHD (DBR)

Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank MAHL { Note-t1.1)
Cheque in hand { Note-11.2)
Cash in hand (Note- 11.3)

Cash af bank - MSL

1,468,103 .
: : 1,356,200
523,540 1,535,420
C BT840 1,012,500
.. 859,632 1,478,600
R 185,680
R 184,000
2,855,820 3,855,400
Ty 1,457,900
Sl e 2,783,290
3,655,120 .
835630 .
531,476 2,520,100
2920417 #,644,200
312500 3,720,360
e 4,678,500
14,430,642 13,513,150
1,170,208,265 105,405,975
370,041,884 337,996,396
14,430,642 33,513,150
39,899 595 .
1,594,580,400 475,915,521

A
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12, Share capital

Authorised _
200,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each -2,000,000,000 2,000,060,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
120,771,547 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each | 1,207,715470 | 1,000,000,000
1,207,715,470 1,000,000,000

Sharehalding position of the company

Nominal value (Taka) Percentage of holding {%)
30-06-2021 30-08-2026 30-06-2021 30-08-2020
Sponsors/Directors 536,670,000 586,670,000 48.88% 58 67%
Institutions 47 136,540 . 3.80% 0.00%
General Public 573,938,830 413,330,000 47 52% 41,33%
1,207,715.470 1,000,006,000 100.00% 100.00%

On 28 January 2021, the Company raised total proceeds of BDT 1.250,000,000 through initial Pubfic Offering ({PQ). Overal
the Company issted 20,771,547 shares with nominal value of BOT 10.00 per share. The Company secognized an increase in
Share Capitai of BDT 207,715,470 and share premium of BDT 1,042 264 530.

13.  Revaluation Reserve

Revaluation resesva 110,865,857 110,885,857
Less: Defarrad tax liabiliies on revaluation reserve - {3,325,976) {3,325,976)
107,539,881 147,539,881

14.  Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 July ' 2.738.4685,717 2,363,4658,720
Pecfil fransferrad from statement of comprehensive income 101,966,462 74,968,265
Transferred from joint venture business 367,884,848 300,038,702
Halance as at 30 June - 3208318829 2,738 465,717

14.A  Consolidated Relained earnings

Balance as at 01 July . 2.7384B5117 2363 458,720
Profit ransferred Irom MAHL Business (MAHL) 101,968,482 74,068,288
Less: Loss in MSL aftibuled to MAHL {10,380,558) -
1,587 905 -
Transferred from joint venture husiness _ 367,884,849 300,038,702
Batance as al 30 June 397,938,211 2,738,485,717

148 Hon-Contoliing Intrest in MSL

Balance as at (1 July -

NCt Portion of MSL Comemon Share Equily 200,600

NC1 Portion of MSL loss for the year _ {26,018) -
173984 -

4
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15 Deffered tax Habililies
The company has recognised deffered tax Gabilities on revaluation surplus complying with the Infernational Aczouniing
Slandard (JAS-12).
There are no lher sources of deductibte/taxable lemporary diferences for MAML, Historically, the Company's depresiation
expense for accounting purposes have been in line with depreciation expense recorded for tax purposes leading to no
tempurary difierences. MAHL's joint venlures which are recorded using the equity methed also does not lead o any
taxable/teductible lemporary difference since the Joint Ventures are taxed a5 a separate entity. All distribution of profits paid
to MAHL are done on an afler-tax basis and iherelors there is no instance where a lemporary difference can anise
Revaluation surplus 110,885,857 114,885 857
Tax rate, as per Section 53H of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984 read with
Rule 171 % 3%
Defferd tax Habilites 3,326,976 3,325,976

16.  Loan from Financial Institutions
Sacial Islami Bank Lid. 1,510,777 691 1,501,630,658
Shahjalal Istami Bank Lid. 1,581,546,424 2,024,448 658
Dhaka Bank Lid. 1,976,868,854 1,783,008.413
United Commercial Bank Limited 2,276,686,362 2,125 424,679
Jamuna Bank Limited 665,740,893 1,476,498,356
Uttara Bank Limited 627,218,368 503,751,240
BRAC Bank Limited 805,806,087 631,055,278
Pubali Bank Limited - 7,453,158
Standard Bank Limiled 934,884,568 1,277 437,585
Al-Arafah Istami Bank Lid, 1,204,325,180 740,385,869
Migland Bank Lid. 358,700,492 338,135,494
Medhumoti Bank Lid. 719,819,347 859,157,899
Mutua! Trusl Bank Lid, 1,581,827.928 1.303,714,975
NRB Commercial Bark Lid. 841,630,556 £89,460,649
Dulch Bangla Bank Limited 1,862,100,300 $10,679 893

17,004,832,140 16,082,581,104

Less: Short term Loan {4,873,468,063) {2,612,088,755)
{ong term loan 12,131,384,077 13,470,491,348

16,4 Social Islami Bank Lid.

This represents the amaunt outstanding against lerm loans laken from The Sccial Islami Bank Limited on various dates for
execuling the profests and improting the equipments and olhers. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of
700%-800%pa .

46.2  Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd.

This représents the amount oulstanding against term loans taken from The Shahjalat 1slami Bank Limiled on various dates
for execuling the projects and imperiing fhe equipmients and olhers, These loans are repayable with interest af the range of

7.00%-9.00% p.a.

Md. Masbas Sufinah
Company Secratary
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16,3  Dhaka Bank Ltd.
This represents the amount oulstanding against ferm leans taken from The Dhaka Bank Limded on varous dales for
axacuting the projests and imperting the equipments and others. These loars are repayable with interest af the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a.

164  United Commercial Bank Limited
This represants the amount culsianding against term loans {aken from The United Commercial Bank Limited on various

dales for executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the
range of 7.00%-5.00% p.a.

16.5 Jamuna Bank Limited
This represents the amount outstanding against term loans faken from Jamuna Bank Limited on various dates for executing
the projects and imporing the equipments and others, These loans are repayable with inferest at the range of 7.00%-
8.00%p.a. ‘

166  Uttara Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Ullara Bank Limited on various dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. Thesa loans are repayable with inlerest at 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

167 BRAC Bank Limited

Thig reprasents the amount oulstanding against term loans taken from BRAC Bark Limiled of various dates for exaculing
the projects and impording Ihe equipmenls ard others. These loans are repayable wilh inferest at the range of 7.00%-8.00%
p.a,

16.8  Pubali Bank Limited

This represents the amount aulstanding against term loans laken fiom Pubali Bank Limited on varous dales for executing
ihe projects and imporing the equipments and olhers, These loans are repayable with inferest af the rangs of 7.00%-6.00%
pa.

168  Standard Bank Limited

This reprasents the amaunt outslanding against term loans takeo from Standard Bank Limited on various dates for executing
the projests and importing the equipments and others. These foans are repayable with interest at the rangs of 7.00%-0.00%

pa

16.10  Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited

This represents the amount culstanding against term loans taken from Af-Arafah {slami Bank Limited on varlous dates for
axecuting the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interesl at the range of
7.00%-8.00% p.a
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16.11 Midland Bank L4,

This represents the amount culstanding against term loans taken from Midland Bank Lid, on various dales for execuling the
projects and importing the equipments and athers, These loans are repayable with Interest at the range of 7.00%- 9.00% p.a,

16,12 Shimanto Bank Ltd.

This sepresents the amount oulslanding against term loans taken from Shimanto Bank Lid. on various dates for axecuting the
projects and importing the equipments and cthers. These loans are rapayable with inferest at the range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.13 Modhumoti Bank Lid,

Thig represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Modhumoti Bank Lid, on various datos for executing

the projects and imporiing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with inferest at the range of 7,00%-9.00%
p.a.

16.14 Mutuai Trust Bank Lid,

This represenis the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Mutual Trust Bank Lid, on various dales for execuling :
the projects and importing the equipments and cibers, These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-9.00% i
p.a .

16.15 NRB Commercial Bank Lid.

This tepresents the amount oulstanding against term loans taken from NRB Commaercial Bank LI, on various dales for
exesuling the projects and importing the equipments and olhers. These loans ara repayable with intarest at the range of
7.00%-9.00% p.a,

16.16  Dutch Bangta Bank Ltd.

This represents tha amount oulstanding against term loans taken from Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the prajects and importing the equipments and olhers. These foans are repayable with inferest al the range of
7.00%-5.00% p.a.

4647 Security

(a) Personal guarantee of alt the Direclors including Managing Director of the company.
(b} Existing charge on immaveable property, moveable property, book debts and floating assets {present and future} of the
company duly registered with RISCAF.

{¢) Moda wise post dated MICR chequas for each fimil separately in favor of 1he bank to be oblained through an underiaking
o the effect that these have been provided by you for repayment purpose.

{d) Fresh usual charge documents (mode wise) duly stamped and filed in. %

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretar

ary
Mir Al e oind
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17, Deferred LC

SL | lfem Name 80T Value
1 |Stone 36,443 550
2 |Motor Crader 8,796,000
3 |Slone ) 3,277,711
4 |Stone 282,160
5 |Sione ' 1771208
g8 |Slone 3,298,693
7 |Lab Equipment 1,468,600
§ [Stone 2,360,153
g |Mator Grader Parls 2.513,76G0
16 |Stone 887,735
11 |Stene 2,815,787
12 |Slone 3,313,080
13 |Woven Geotextile 8,634,573
14 [Geogrid 3,247,566
15 |Stona 3,311,504
15 {Bentanite powder ‘ 2534483
17 1iSlone 3.313,050
18 |{Slone 3,297 258
19 {Slons 2,775,529
20 iSlone 3,299,503
21 iSlone 3,305,851
Total 101,827 962

18, Liabilities for expenses

Satary & Alfowances 43,345,900 28,184,180
Audit fees 350,000 350,000
Legal Fees 140,060 100,000
Director's Remuneration ~ 5ec,0o0 160,006
Tetephone & Fax Bill T 12,380 42,690
Electrical 8ilf 101,600 63,067
Repair & Maintenance {(Machinery) ' 65,700 103,000
Repair & Maintenance (CAR) 63,600 80,100
Repai & Maintenance (Equipment) 16,320 17,630
Office Rent 1,835,177 1835178
GAS & WASA Bilt ' . 3,200 36,220
Payabia to Suppliers ' 10,066,713 15,000,000
Stationery T 45,200 14,860
Newspaper & Postage 1,040 4,050
Office Maintenance Charges _ 21190 26,780
Fupl & Lubricant o 15420 130,500
PF Coniribution S 30,200 2524033
Conlribution to WRPF 28,280,414 92,269,258

55,242,184 138,712,448

418A.  Consolidated Liabililies for expenses

Liabiliies for expenses - MAHL 85,242,154 138,712,446

Liabilities for expenses - MSL 306,158 .

Less: Inlercompany Elimination | {271,869) -
65,276,684 138,712 446

Md. Fus Sunnah
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19, Revenue
#  Project Name (Details of Revanua Is shown in Annexure - 1)
1 RHD Sylhel Road Project{SRP} 1,057,260,712 333,788,187
2 Chevron Bangladesh (BD)Biock Twelve Lid, 75,109,472 20,818,400
3 Kushiia Shilpakala Academy (K5A) - 52,608,262 35,361 443
4 Maizkandi-Boalmari Gopalgan] Road(MEG) R 3,784,254
5 Matarbari Power Plant(MPP) RS = 8,126 465
B  Kanchper Bridge.Narayengong (KMGYOSJI 185,267,024 1,047,095,692
7 Patengha Container Terminat Ground Improvement (FCT) 31807018 188,299,385
8  Rajshahi New Road(RNR) C 244271432 242,060,753
9 Uttara Construction Buliding Project{t/TTARA) 163,615 4,887,025
10 Residential Model Town (3rd Phase) Rajuk Dhaka S 15,819,080
11 Nater Baghatipara Bridge, NBB - 20,092,949
12 Chitagang Development Authority, BAKALIA 66,564,000 78,181,000
13 Relaince Insurance L4, 135,821,135 63,533,136
14 Gawlatdia Basantapur Road, RHD (DBR) - 237,882,065
15  Dredging Work Madaripur, DWM - 1,245,526 14,891,467
16 Bangabandhu Bridge RHD {BETL) 141,628,399 132,160,002
17  Dhaka Aipart (DAP) 359,525,326 188,237,708
18 LGED, Gapalganj, BAPARD (Kotafpara) 84,046 421. -
19 Multarpur Bridge, AMBP 89,821,505
20 Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW 337,821,160
21 Jamuna Rait Bridge Project, JRBP . 46,182,487
22 Mynshigan] Bridge, MSBP 95,026,905 :
Total Revenue 3,242,217 400 2,694,959.701
20.  Cost of execution of the contract
Ogpening slock of construction material 1,832 486,556 1,635,458,010
Development and materal expense (Nols 23.1) 1,711,877 572 1.951,084,708
Cost of construction material available during the pariod 3,544,484,128 3,586,542,718
Closing slock of construction materiak 1,085,339,200 1,837 456,556
Cost of constrution matertal consumed during the perod 1,549,124,928 1,754,056,162
Direct expenses (Note 23.2) 940,300,898 890,605,172
Tatal cost of construction in process 2,489,524 827 2,644 664,334
Ooening Work in Process 1,657,132,876 841,254,200
Closing Work in Process 1,740,101, 845 1,657,132 876
Total Cost of execution of the contract '2,308,555,858 1,928,782.658
20.1 Davelopmant and material expense
Easth filfing and development work 3,852,400 64,821,560
Materiat cost 1,708,125,172 1,686,263,148
Less; Vat Refundable - -
Total Devalopment and material expenses 1,711,977,572 1,961,084,708

Md. Masbaus Sunnah

Compagy Seqrslany,
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2.2

Direct expenses

Profect Expenses 1,744,820 1,812,560
Carriage Inward - 826,320 1,235,980
Fuat and Lubricant 03,675,719 86,766,520
Bank charge/Others charge by the Empoyer IO W 8,951,836
Satary & Wages 420,428,480 404,127,820
VAT (Note-23.2.1) L D51,756.412 212,876,745
Depreciation {Nate-04) 166,820,408 171,832,611
Total Diract Expenses 540390 8O 890505172
2021, VAT
VAT Deducted from Construction Business “{78,196,533 99,426,560
VAT Deducted from Imper! Stage 73 559, 879 113,448,785
Totat VAT 251,756,412 212 876,745
21, General and administration expenses

Staff Salary & Aliowance 142 485915 103,252,763
Board Mealing Fee 92,{}00 -

Direclors Remuneraton 9,240,000 1 680,000
Advertisement 88,720 145,200
Printing & Siaticnery . 182,400 178,320
Tender, Prequalification/Enfistment 358,230 482,100
Office Rent 71,848,578 24,772,368
Fees & Choarges 478,350 465,200
Traveling & Tour 148,570 320,550
Telephone & Fax Charge 389,230 512,300
Posfage & Telegram 28110 32,150
Fuel & Lubricani 1.67_2,800 1565480
Repair & Maistenance (Machinery) 789,264 1,236,930
Repalr & Mamienance {(CAR} 756,220 1,680,710
Newspaper & Pericdicals 12480 48,570
Efatinical Charge 1,219,466 768,680
Conveyance 218180 268,500
Enlertainmant 255,680 488,750
Uriform & Liveries 65,470 78,960
Security Services 212,560 165,400
insurance & Premium 3,614,114 6,235,000
Donation & Subscripion/Zakal 441,200 126,500
Business Promotion 71,420 85,230
Head Office malnleance 228,510 302,380
Medical expanses 433,690 447 500
Repair & Maintenance (Equipment) 220,100 210,420
GAS & WASA Bilt 446,463 475,880
Site Office Maintenance 326,320 321,470
Audit fe 350,000 700,000
Legal Fea - 1,680,000 1,200,600
Tolal General and administration expenses 188,054,895 144,650,336

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company B eeretaln e
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214,

22

23

24,

244

Consolidated General and administration expenses
Géneral & admimsiration expense - MAHL

General & adminisiration expense - MSL

Total Consolidated General and administration expenses

Non-operating income

Interest income {STD Bank Interest)
Interest Incorne {IPO Bank Interest}

FOR Inierest Income

Financial expenses

Inferest Expense

Foreign Exchange (gain)loss - Redlized
Foraign Exchange (gain)ioss - Unrealized

Bank Charges

Less: Inferest charged fo Joint Venture Parinars:

a)  HALLA - MAH - SEOKWANG JOINT VENTURE
b} SAMWHAN-MIR AKHTER JOINT VENTURE

¢} MIR AKHTER-KOMAIHALTEC Jv

d)  Mir Akhler-WMCG JV

g}  Hego-Mir Akhter JV

fi  Halla-Mir Akhter JV

g) CRCC-MAHL J¥

h} MR AKHTER-CAMCE &V

Financial expenses charged
income tax expense

Current fax {nole-25.1)
Defarred iax (note 25.2)

Gurrent tax

1) Construction business income {as per 820 incame)
2) Inlerest income on FOR

3) Interest income on STD acoount

43 Intergst income on IPO account

5) Excess taxes related io vehicle registration

Total current tax expense

188,054,895 144,550,336
10,406,574, .
198,451,469 144,650,336
- 153,953 74,012
16,228,213 .
R 13,264,367
746,382,166 13,328,379
1476762418 1,316,659,987
L 431804 7,832,838
102970 (344,434
756488 855,361
1,478,083, 781 1375,003,752
16,325,189 .
271,269,195 396,136,744
10,428,677 75,676,036
116,109,101 45,082,906
98,663,782 28,976,846
392,120,374 400,037 425
81,432,934 :
66,783.461 :
1,052,132,770 545,909,957
425,921,011 379,003,795
168,612,886

220,057,635

320,057,635 168,513,886

212,898,383 163,950,804
Lo 4535628
34,839 24,054

3,651,348 ~
3,473,255 :
220,057 635 166,613,886

The cureni {ax expanse is calculated as per Section 82C of the Income Tax Ordinance 1984 which described ihe minimum tax fo
be paid by the Company. Therefore no further sffective tax rate recenciliafion is necessary.
As per Paragraph 81(C) of 1AS 12 ncome Taxes an explanation of the relationship between fax expense (incoma) and accounting

predit is provided below:
Net Prodit before tax

Income Tax Rale - 22.5% [A]
Income Tax deducted al Source {B]

Minimum fax U/ 82C of T Ordinanca 1984 - 0.6% of Revenue [C}

tncome Tax Provision for the year: Higher of (A, B & C}

322,026,097

72,450,872
212,898,393
19,453,662

212,898,393

243,582,182

79,164 209
163,550,804
16,249,728

163,950,804

Md. MasbauerBurmasn Linted
Company Secretary
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242 Deferred tax
There were no lemporary differences befween carrying amount of assels and lishilites for fnaniat repuring purposes and the
amounts used for taxalion purpeses. Therefore the company did rot record any deferef 1ax lishilies or assels apart from the
reviualion regerve [hat is deseribed in Note no-17.
Details of the camying value of fixed assels {bolh fax and accounting value) are provided below:
Depreciation for ax (as per 3rd Schedule U7 17166,828,408 171,832,611
Deprecialion as per Actouting 166,829,408 171,832,611
Temparary difference: L R
Since there is no femporary difference between the deprecialion charged for 1ax and accounting purposes, here is no faxable
iemparary difference in the carrying value of the fixed assels for tax and accounting purposes. There is one source of lemporary
difference which is caused by the revaluation of land which has already been recognized by the Company (BOT 3,326,976). Since
there is no change in the valug of land {boln lax and accouniing), thera is deferred lax expense recegnized for land in the current
year,

25, Profit after tax from Joint Venture
Name of tha Joint Vanture
HALLA-MAH-SEOKWANG Jv 107,354,215 3466473 :
Samwhar:-Mir Akhter JY 1,823,000,488 113,882,829 124520190
Mir Akhler-Komaihalles JY 783,745,026 5,635,225 16,164,359
Mir Akhler-WMCG BV 808,634,529 46,568,318 18,461,161
Hego-Mir Akhler 3V 674,786,863 35,281,127 3,614,158
Halla-Mir Adhler JV 2,766,381,517 134,008,865 138,768,794
Mir Akhtar-CAMCE JV 387,544,014 5,503,816 -
CRCC-MAHL JV 540,332,600 20,518,195 -

7,878,748,952 367,884 649 300,038,762

26, Price Sensifive information:

26.1 Eamnings Per Share:
Net profit for the year 468,853,111 376,006,897
Number of shares 108,231,798 108,231,799
Basic eamnings per share {EPS} 4.30 3.43

Opening Balance

106,000,000

100,000,000

lssuance of new shares

20,771,547

160

9,231,798.67

120,771,547 108,231,799

*The EPS of the previous corresponding period has been recalculated with the current total number of shares after cungidering

issuance of new shares,
o Diluted eamings per share
: No diluted EPS is caleataled for the period as théte was 1o scaps for dilution during this pariod.
-
- Md. Masbaus Sunnan
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- 26.1A4  Consolidated Earnings Per Shara:
‘ Consolidated Net profit lor the year 450,448,537 375,006,557
i Numbar of shares 109,231,708 109.231,7%49
Consolidated Basic earnings per share (EPS) 4.21 3.43
- 26.2  Net Assets Value per Share
Net Assels {with revaluation) +5,5665,858,710 3,845.005.599
Number of shares 109,231,795 39,231,793
- Nat Asset valua per share (NAVPS) 50858 35,21
; Net Assets {without revaluation) 5,458,315,629 3738465717
. Nurmber of shares 109,231,799 108,231,760
= Net Asset value per share [NAVPS) 43.97 34.23
26.2A  Consolidated Net Assels Value per Share _
L Nat Assels {wlh revaluation} 5,565,652,136 3,848,005, 553
Number of shares 108,231,759 109,231,799
Consplidated Net Asset valus per share (MAVPS} 50.86 38N
- Net Assels {wilhout revaliation} 5.446,112,25 3845, 005,505
Mumber of shares ‘ . 109,231,768 109,231,798
L CGonsoiidated Net Asset value per share {NAVPS) ' 49.88 35.21
= 26.3 Het Operating Cashflow per share
Net Operating Cashilow 243,670,778 82,808,422
n Number of shares ‘ . 109,231,759 108,231,759
- Het Operating Cashilow per share (NOCFPS) 2.2 0.58
- 2634 Consolidated Net Operating Cashflow per share
: Nat Qparating Cashfiow 203,670,371 f7 806,422
e Number of shargs _ 109,231,798 359,231,768
Consalidated Net Operating Cashflow per shars (NOGFPS) i.86 0.58
. 26.4  Reconciliation of net operating cash flow:
- Net profit before tax 322,026,007 TENEIRE
- Adjustment for: Profit after by fram Joint venture 367,884,840 00,038,702
intarest expenses . 425,921,011 374,083,745
i Incesmie fx paid {221,695,851) {167,842,147)
Dapreciaiion 465,261,108 475,837 406
i g Changes in Inventoties {726,866.688) {1.041,450,132
v Security Deposits {13,138,165) 51,485,693
‘w Advances and prepayments 11,247,528 137,000 454
_ Defatrad LC {247,527,710) (346,730,585)
-1 ialities fir e¥panses (83,470,252) 31674048
b 241,670,778 62,800,422
o Md. Mas;zyéus Sunnah
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- 26,44 Reconcitiation of net operating consolidated cash flow:
et profit belore tax TO3,819.523 243,562,182
o Adjustment for; ‘ Profit after tox from Joird venturg 367,884,649 360,038,702
Interast expenses 425,921,011 379.083,795
Ircome tag paid (221,685,851} {167.242,147}
Depreciation 469.291,193 475,857 408
= Changes in: fwventories - (726,866,688 {1,041,180,132
Becurity Daposis {73,139,185) 51,485,659
L Advances and prepaymens 118,480,803) 137,000,454
o Deferred 1L.C {247,527,110) (348,710,585)
b Liabitites for expenses (84.435,793) 31,574 048
' 203,570,370 62,809,422
ot 21, Capital Expenditure Commitment

There was no credit faclity avaitable to the company undar any contract, other fhan lrade credil availabie in the ordinary course of
business and not avatled of as on 30.08.2021 .

28, Paymaent of Forelgn Currency

The company incurs foeign curreacy expenses hrough Import of Machinery & spare pards of the machinery and import of Raw
et Matenals

Mo other expense included consuilancy fe, royally, lechnical expert and professional advisory fee, inferast, elo. was Incurred or
paid in foraign cusrencies except as siafed above,

= 29. Foreign Exghange Earmad

Compnay has no foreign surreney income dwing the year sxcept lumover of Joint Venture Partnership which has Deeen disclosed
in hair respeative separale accounts.

Mo other income including consuffancy fes, rovally, technicd exper and professional advisory fes, inlerest, ele. was incurred ar
paid In foreign curtencies excent g5 slated above,
._... 30, Commission, Brokeraga or Discount against saies
Mo commissicn was incurred or pald to distnbulors, sgents nor any broksrage of discounts were incurred of paid against gales,
W 3. Segment Reporting
_ The Company operates under one single business and gacgraphic segment. As 4 result, separals segment réporting is not
Dt necessary
- .
32, Refated party transactions (as per 1A5-24}
- Cirectors Remuneraton Dirsclor Salary and Festival Bonus 680,000 180,600
. it Telecom Lid. Commen Remal Expenses £80,059 -
_, Details of Transactions: o
Ns fies eni ; . Adjus - g Balance
- Directors Remuneraton 580,000 7340000 {7,840,000) 560,000
i Mir Telecom Lid. 580.059 8,720,710 {6,720,730) 560,059
of schedula X|, pant-lt para 4 of the companies act 1884
[ . ' ¢ . Remuneration. ' :
i Rir Nasir Hessain Managing Dirsctor 4 300,060 800,000 500,000
Mr Shama-g-zehesr Director & CCO t 970000 320,008 2,240,000
3 4
- Md. Maddob?
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f Total 1 7,840,000 |

in addition, as per requiraments of Paragraph 17 of 1AS 24, the Company provided compensalion o key management persenngl
witich includeds Chief Financial Officer

3-June 221 3-June 2020
Kay Management Compensation (excluding Directors) 14,739,710 16,536,528
Period of payments 1o Directors from 01 Jidy 2020 to 30 June 2024, The abtve directors of the company werg nol paid other Bian
the sbove remureration.

a. Expenses raimbursed 1o the managing agent- N

b. Commisakan of olher remuneration payable separately to 2 managing agent or his associates- Ni

¢. Commissicn recaived of receivable by the managing ages! or his asseciates of buying agent of other concams in respect of
condrasts entered inte such with (he company - Nif _

d. The money value of the comrants {or the sate or purchasa of goods and materials or supply of services, entered info by the
company with ihe managing agent or his associates dunng the fnancial year- Nil

e. Any other pergufsities or benefils In cast or in kind slaling -Nit

f. Dther aliowances and commission including commission-Mit

33 Attendanca status of Board Mesling of Directors
During the period from 01.07.20 1o 30.06.2024 there were 4 {four) Board mesling were held. The altendance stalus of all the
meeting Is as foffows: : -
1 [Mir Masir hossain Managing Diracler 4 4
2 |Mrs. Sohefa hossain Direclor 4 4
3 |Mrs. Mahbuba Hessain Director 4 4
4 |Mr Bhama-g-zgheer Biracior and CO0 4 4
5 |Md Fard Uddin independent Director 4 4
6 |AKM Faizer Rahman Indapendant Diregio 4 4
7 |Prof. Dt $uhammad Shariat Ullah Independant Direglor 4 2
8 [Prof Nausheen Rahimen independent Cirector 4 2
34 Status ol incoma tax assesament
201920 202021 Assessmehs under pmce
21819 2019-20 Assessment completed and settled
201748 2018-19 Assessment completed and seltlled,
201817 201718 Assessment completed and seified.
201518 201817 Assessment completed and seffled.
35 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets .
Them is a conlingent liability of Tk. 77,890,736 in raspect of tax claim in the assessment ysar 2012-13. This matler has been
appeated lo the honourabla High Coud 4rdl is still pending,
36. Number of employees engaged
Totat number of employees having annual salary of BDT 36,000 of above ench was 1957 as at 30 June 2021 and 1680 as at 30
June 2020,
3. Events after repofting date
Thara is no adjusting and non-adjusting post batance sheet event of such importance, nan disclosurs or resogrdtion of which wous
affect the abiiity Lo ihe users of {he financlal statements to make proper evaluation and desisians,
Md. Masbaus Sunnah
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38 Details of Lease Agreement:

___ The company does nol have any asseis of labliities undar finanos lease agreements. The company’s operalions rent their facidies
under a ron-confrefing oparaling lease. The fofal lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2629 was TK, 21,848 574 {also
included in Nete 21),

s, Qperating Debt

[ 1) Debt considered good in respect of which the company s fully secured ;

Tre deblores oceunred in the ordinary course of Dusiness afe considered good and sacured.

{11} Debt considered good for which the company hold no security other than the deblors personal security

Theee Is no such debt in this respect as on 30 Jung' 2021,

& (1N} Debt considered doubihul or bad

bt The company doss nol make any provision for doutHul debls as on 306 June™2021, because of the fact that salesiexport are heing
rmade on reguiar basis with fixed malurly dales.

{1V Debt due by directors or olher officers of the company

There is no such debt in this respect as on 30 Jupe 2028

(V) Debt due byitrom Common Management
b The company has no mealvable rom sister companies under comman management. For more detatls refated lo this receivable,
o refer lo Nete 32 *Relaled Pady Transactions”.

40 Financiat Risk Management

The Company is exposed fo risks of varying degraes of significance that could atfect ifs abdily lo achiave its slralegic objectives.
The main objectives of the Company's dsk managemend process are to ensure that risks are propery identified and the capilal
base & adequale in refation 1o these fAsks.
Tre Company is exposad thiough is operations 1o 1he ftilowing financial risks:

A Interest rafe Risk

B, Currency Risk
o A. Interst Rate Risk
= The Company's exposure ta the risk of changes in inferest rates retates primarfly 1o (he Company's loans payable. An incroase of
1% in the averags interast rate for the Campany would result in approximately additional expenses of BOT 10,874,664 in the
current year
B. Currency Risk
Tha Company's cash flows are impacted by cumency movemens as a significant pordon of the Company's raw maledals are
purchased in US dollars. Ar increase of BOT 1 and 8BT 2 in the US dollar to BDT exchange rale would have resulled in an
estmated decrease to net income of approximalely BOT 8,752,162 and BDT 13,504,324 respectively in the currant year,

41 Date of Authorization:
The Beard of Direclors have aslhorized these finahciat statements on 26.10.2021,

fMd. Masbaus Sunnah
Company $ouehiapyHoman Linied
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhter Hossalin Lt
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DUE DILIGENCE CERTIFICATE OF THE TRUSTEE

The Chairman
fangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

SUBIECT: ISSUACNCE OF ZERO COUPON BOND OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LEIMITED WORTH GDT 2,499 MILLION.
We, thie upder-noted trustee 1o the above-menticned forthcoming issue, state as foflows:

1, We, while act as trustee to the above mentioned issue on behall of the eligible iavestors, have
wxamined the draft information Mamorandury, legal and other decuments and materials ss relevant to
eur declsion; and

2, on the basis of such examination and the discussions with the isseer, iV's directors and officers, and
ohor agencies; independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the lssue and the
centents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer;

WE CONFIRM THAT:

3} Allinformation and documents 53 are relevant to the issue have been received and examined by usand the
draft 184, draft Deed of Trust and deaflt Subseription Apreement forwarded to the Commission hag beer
approvad by us;

b} Woe have also examined all documents of the assets to bae charged with the Trust and are satisfied that the
assets bear the value, e and charge status as disclosed in tha ivy;

¢} While examining e above documents, we find that all the requirements of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission {Debt Securities) Rales 7021 have hewn complied with;

d} W shall aci as trustes to the issue as mentiened above as pers provisions of the Desd of Trust to be execnted
with the Issusr and shall assume the dulies and sosponsibilities as described in the Beed of Trust and in the
iy

e} Wo shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission {Debt Securitios) Rules, 2021
and conditions imposed by the Commisston as regards of the bisue; and

{}  The shove declarations as uneguivecat and lrrevocable,

For Trusiee-

,,_—-L:—(-’F"”

Tanzim Alamgiv
Managing Director and CEQ
UCH Investment Limited

Date: Devemnber 23, 2021
Place: Dhaka

Dudss Corler (b Flaod, Pot-CWE-0a-1 R Mo—34, Gilshen Avecs, Telia— 37,
Fermolf sgpod Bt riveslmad 4o W RaivWuid-Rnesheentoem

Strictly Private & Confidential
Md. Mashaus Sunnah

Company Secrafary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.
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ANNEXURE 3: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUE
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Company Secretary
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CREDIT RATING REPORT
On :
ZERG COUPON BOND OF TK. 2, 499,00 MILLION
© OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

REPORT' RR/49 175 /21

This is 3 eredit ratiig report as per the pmv_lsfans af _t'fae Credn Rating Companies Rules 1895, The rating will be vabd for

. one year from the dake of declaration, After the above perfod, the rating will net- carry any validity unless the instrumient -
. pees for rating . surve.‘ffance
L ww.crislbd.mm R :

C&_I‘SJ., followed " Bond :Rating - Methodology | publishéd _In (RISL website

ToA (Indlgative) o D
“rbecember 27, 2024
"--Décember-ZG_,*ZszZ -

Issue Rating (Zero Coupon Boné) =

xssue RAT’ING mmom E"'

I '_-CRISL has ass gned ‘A+’ (!ndlcative) ratmg (prnnounced as “A" p!us inciicatlve} to Zero_.
{“:Coupon Bond of Tk, 2,499.00 milllon. of ‘Mir ‘Akhter Hossain Limited, The above rating has !
"‘been assigned In consideration of some strong fundamentals of the lssue such as good return -
" from investmei, tax benefit-ete. However, the above factors are constralned, to some extent, :
. by the. feature of the bond which lncludes unsecured and hen- convertlbie debt nstrument G
"etc."' : . S

2.0

Securities rated in:this r:ategory are. adjudged to be of good credit quahty and offer’ adequate :

- “safety for tmely repayiment of financial obllgations. Pratection factors are considered variable - :
_ _and maorg susceptible fo changes in circumstances than securitles a hi gher—rated categones S

"‘xssus FEATURE: PROPOSED 2ERO COUPON BOND OF MAHL

3.0

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (MAHL) will Issue Zero Coupon Bond hereinafter referred to as

‘ZCB or “the issue”) of Tk, 2,499.00 million (833 no. of bonds of Tk.3.00 million each lot}.

‘MAHL wili Issue above bond to pay off its existing loan liabilities as well to invest in working

capital through a private placement basls to potentlal Investors such as Banks/Non-Bank
© Financial Institutlons, Insurance Companles and Corporete Bodies, Mutual Funds, Asset - .
© Management Firms and high net worth individuals etc. The hond Is conditionally secured, &

nonconvertibfe and fully redeemable in nature. The indicative discount rate is expected to be

- within the range of 7% - 9% per annum. However, In case of late redemption or on faifure 1o .
make timély payment, there will be incremeantal charge at the rate of 2% pér anhum payable =
by ‘the lIssuer to the bondholders, above the amount ‘o be paid by the lssuer to the

bondholders on the redemption date. The bond wilf be redesmed in 6 Instaliments {having ~

“equal amount of TK, 416,50 ‘mitlion} starting from the énd 6f 18% months of the date of =
“issuance followed by six months interval thereafter, Coupon Payment of the bond will be paid =
‘half yearly on the coupon payment dates at the end of each coupon period. A Subscriber shall - -
have the right to fréely transfer the ZCB upon. fulfifment of certain formalities,. IDLC Finance . -
. Limited wil)- act asa Lead Arranger and UCB Investment antted will act as 2 Tmstee of £he_ e
.bonds. SR )

' ISSiUER SUMMARY MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

M Akhter Hossaln Limited (MAHL} ls a buiidlng and cavil constructioﬂ company and a major R
" “goncern -of Mir-Group. The Group consists .of -several business units having exposure in
" Tetecom, Cement, Ceramic, Real Estate;’ Pawer, ICT sector etc. The Graup started its jourmey
in 1968 ~with Mir . Akhter Hosslan "itd, “as-the flagship company ‘under ‘the prominent o0

‘entrepreneyr late Mr, Mir Akeb Hossain, from Inception, every concern of the Group has beer =

. ‘operating with good reputation and positive brand jmage. MAHL was initlally established asa .

- partnership company in 1969 which |ater converted into a private insited company in July. 18,'_
. 1980, Subsequently MAHL was converted into'a Public Limited Company on January 10,:2017,7 o
1In January 26, 2021; the company went for initial public- offering and the shares of the

company are listed wlth both the bourses of the country-Dhaka Stock Exchaiige (DSE} and

Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) -under N category, The company Is ‘operating with -
~Tk.2,000.00 milllon of authorized capital and Tk.1,207.72 million of paid up capital as on @
'Sﬂptember 30, 2021, The rmssion of . the company Es to provide quahty and super!or_serv(cc—:s e
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B capacity, responsible of hiring competent -subcentrjacts and value for safety and customer
satisfaction,  Equipped with ‘sound production facilitlés, the company successtully executed

holding) whith ‘has. mcorporated from . March 02,2021,  Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain, a renowned -

f _Leve] -7 &10, 37/3/.6’«, . Eskaton Garden, Dhaka 1000

3:_-_iocated at Red Crescent Borak To

: _j4o ' xssuskcmznxr RATING '

- CRiSL has reafﬂrmed the Long Term rating o 'AA (pronounced as douhle A minus) and the
“Shott term rating to 'ST-3" of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited (MAHL) on the basis of fts audited
financlals up to June 30, 2021 .and other relevant quantitative and Gualitative information up
. to the date of rating.’ The above ratings have been reasslgned after due conslderation to Its
fundarmentals | such .as increase In financlel performance, average liquidity, sound
Infrastructure facilities, strong Group support, experientced management team etc, However,
the above ratings are constrained, to some extent, by factors such as debt based capital
structure, significant competition in the market, risk of project completion, etc.
The Long Term rating indicates that entities rated In this category are adjudged to be of high
quality, offer. higher safety and have high credit quality. This level of rating Indicates a
.. corporate entity with a seund credit-profile and without significant problems. Risks are modest
‘and may vary shightly from time to thme because of econoniic conditions. The Short Term
~ rating .indicates good certainty of timely repayment. Liguidity factors and company
Cfundamentals are sound. Although ongoing funding needs may enlarge total financing
" requirements, access to financial markets is good with small risk:factors,

‘CRISL also views the company with "Stable Outlook” believing that the company will be able
“to maintain its fundamentals-with the same trend in the foresegable future,

5.0 TRUSTEE YO THE ISSUE_

B Background of Trustee -
_'UCB Investment Limited (UCBIL) is a fully owned subsidiary of United Commercial Bank.
J Limited (99,96% shareholding by UCBL ‘and remaln:ng 0.04% by UCB Capital Management
L), It-was Incorporated In 3% August, 201t as s private limited company under the
Companies . Act- (Act XVIII} of 1994, .t obtained full-fledged Merchant Bankef & Portfolio
Management license from Bangtadesh Security and Exchange’ Commission on 5% October,
- 2020. The authorized and paid up capltai of UCBIL stood at Tk.1 0{)0 00 miilion and Tk.250. o0
mililon respect vely

. ”i“he: company has been inaugurated on 29th November, 2020 ané under the firm.guidance of
the founding CEQ, Mr. Tanzim Alamglr, the company aims to play 2 vital role In bridging the
gap In professional financial managemant services in the country and the gap befween

.. dnvestors and investment opportunities, The sérvices of UCBIL are Bend Issuance, Corporate
- Advisory, Mergers and Acquissticns, Issue Managément Services, Underwriting, Capital Raising

- “.and Private Placement, Portfolic Management etc. The registered address of the company is
_-._Buius Center, Road 34, Plol:' CWS- (A) 1 Gulshan aVeﬂue,. Dhaka-1212,

o 5 2 _ Roles and RESpuﬂSIblhtiBS of the Trustea
“The Trustee has the foiiowing duties and powers In cmnnectlon with the Trust:

“w ' “To ack on behalf and for the exclusive Interest of the investors;
. & - To ensure compliance of the isster as per the requirements of Bangladesh Securities

e | Pa e20f 13 o7 and Exchange Commilssion (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021; : '
L 9 <! S = To monitor timely payment of all dues of the issuer to the Investors in terms of the -

diverse projects like construction | of. International - standard Roads & Highweay, Bridges,
Industrlal Complexes etc. “MAHL ‘has “ong. subsidiary “hamely Mir -Securities Lid, (99.75%

- ~husinessman, is the Managing Di rector of: the company. ‘!‘he Head Office of the company ls n
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‘5.3

' 5._4

' -'Ind_i_vidual
“indlividual
. additional party in such proceedings for such purpose.
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- OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

1M or. other terms and conditions. of the lssue of securities under Bang! adesh
: Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021;

e Tolensure création of charges by the issuer over. collateral secuntles and obtalnlng_

- pthet securities or guarantees i favour of the trustes;

o o To enforce its rights, over the ¢redit enhancement or canateral securitles and other':g:?:f' :

- securities or.guarantees when itis necessary to.do;

e ‘Call the investors’. meeting. and enforce the decisions. Within such tirne of any defauit i :
i Cor any-act of the issuer which may affect the lnterest of the lnvestors Bs spec:ﬂeé ln‘ i

~“the deed of trust and in the IM;

- » . Delay in.payment of any dues by the |ssuer, which is nat approved by the trustee
7 shall be ireated as flnal default, in such a case the trustee shall enforce its rights ¢

© overthe credit “enhancement or collateral securities and other securities or
: guarantees of the issuer observing due legal process and thereafter the trustee shall
dispose-pif ‘the same to pay the pmceeds proportionately to the investors after
" deduction of costs related thereto,
cw . In case the delay is approved by the trustee for & certain pericd upon any reasonable
' ground, the trustee shall ensure repayment of the dises within the approved delay
. period along with interest for the deloy period ot a rate of 2% {twg percent) per
o . .anhum above the usual rate of return of the debt Instrument;;
- = In case a downgrade of credit rating (i,e. below the rating trigger) of the issue under
' survelifance rating, the trustee shall ensure the collection of risk premium from the
- Issuer-or originator for the investors as per declaration in the deed of trust or IM,
‘almed at securing the lerder claims from the borrower's higher risk jevel;
e .The trustee shail submit an annual compliance report to the Commission regardlng
: . the activities of the Issuer Inchuding repayment of dues to the investors;
w - The trustee shafl take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors
’ within one month of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the
Commission informed about the -number, nature and other particulars of the
complaints received and the manner in-which such compiaints have been redressed;

- _ + - The trustee shall be liable to sue or to be sued on behalf of the investors:

. = Provided that If any loss Incurred due to negligence of trustee in case of Hitigation or
' recovery process, the frustee shall bear the loss;
" » .. The trustee may, If required, inspect or ¢all for books of acceunts records, registers
‘ of the issuers and the trust property to the extent necessary for distharging its
ongatron, .

Events of Default: The Trustee shall not be bound to give notice to any person of
the execution of the Trust Deed or to take any steps fo ascertaln whether any Defauft of
‘Bvent of Default’ has happened dnd, untll it shalt have actuat knowledge of express notice to
the contrary . o

_ 'Rights__, Duties And Obligations Of The Investors

. Binding Obllgatlon. Investors/bondhalders are. Eequired to enter into a Subscription -

Agreement with the issuer and be bcund by the tarms and condltmns of that agreement

.Severabiiitv of mndhotders Dhiigattons. The fallure to perform obisgations of the .
-Bopdhdlders under the Subscription Agreement and other agreements with identical terms o
. -shall. not affect the. obli gataans of the Issuer tcwards any other Bondholder(s) under other »
S .identn:al agreements. - - Lo _ .

Right. Each :Béradholdér W:EI be ehntied to 'prot&ct and enforce 'its
rights independently without. the need for other Bondhaider(s} to be jained as

3 Powers: The Bondho%ders shail be abse to hold meettngs wuth such power and scope as
pmviderj forin the Tiust Deed ERINT ) B L
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.Issue Bond Certificates: Issuer shatl duiy execute and deiiver bond certificates to the .
bondholders w:th cand;tzons attached . -

S Subscnptmn. The Investors wIH subscnbe and pay the. aggregate purchasa prlce en the
.~ “Closing Date for the allccatlon, n Baﬂg|adesh Taka for samie day value to such account as the_
: Issuer designates, subject to the provaslons of the Subscrlptmn Agreement Sl

: .""_Cempliance‘ The: Bcndhoider(s).are obligated to comply w:th all appf[cabie Iaws and
e _.reguiattoﬂs of Bang]adesh o )

'Indemnity The Issuer shali fully indemnlfy me Bondholder(s} from and agalnst any expense,

-Joss, damage ‘or liabillty which any of them may incur as per provisions of this trust deed in
" gonnection with the enforcement, protection .or preservation of any right or claim of the
" Bondholders under the Transaction Documents,

. Payment: The Bondholders will execute and deliver a letter addressed to the Issuer In the
form. attached “as - {Form of ‘Investor Representation = letter) of the Subscription

- Agreement on the date specified. They are further obligated to pay the purchase price of
Bonds to the' Issuerin Bangiadesh Taka in the manner provided for on each closing date,

) ‘l‘ermmatwn. The Bondholders can give a termination notice to the Issuer at any tme on or
prior to the Closing Date If the Issuer falfs to perform any of Its obligations under

* the ‘Subscription Agreement, if any of the conditions precedent s not satisfied or waived by
‘the Bondholders on the Closing Date, of In the case of force majeure, Upon service of such
notlce Issuer will be discharged from its obligations except for its liability in relation to
expenses related to the Bonds and except for any labllity arising before or in relat on to such
termination and Bondholder would also be discharged from performance of their respective
obligations under the subscrlptmn agreement

: Protecﬂan of EInterest: "’{’he Bondhoiders are entitled to have their mtérests
- protectedipreserved by the Trustes

's.o UTILIZATION OF ISSUE PROCEEDS & REDEMPTION SCHEDULE

“Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. is expected to receive a net discounted amount up to Tk, 2,071.78

- million considering 7.00% discount rate from the sale of the Zero-Coupon bond, The band

proceed shall be useéd to refinance a portion of existing high cost liabllities {(75%) and for

working capltal tnvestment (25%). The company has outstanding loanh of BDT 17,004.83

_milfion 25 on lune 30, 2021. Dependency on bank finarcing i a major concern for MAHL,
: MAHL s dependence on bank ﬁnancing will ciecitne to-some extent thmugh issuance of ZCB,

L 0 INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The Bangladesh bond market is stiil In lts tnfancy, One of the main functions of a band market
.15 to provide long-term finance by créating alternative sources of finance through the capital
‘market, ‘From the Investoi's point of view, the main purpose of the bond market is to provide
- 5table source of income to the investors against the volatile capstal market, The Bangladesh
i capital. market is yet to be developed asthe required platform to create such a bond market is -
~ absent. Besides, the Investors are more interested In short term gains instead.of walting for a
stable return. However, the Infroduction of Basel III rmay create a new avenue among the
. ‘bankers fo issue bonds under Tier-l & Tier-I1 capitel to support its capital requirement,
- Bangladesh Bank alréady circulated the Issue principies of the above bonds. Bangladesh Bank

T ; S has fixe -up the maximum deposit rate at. 6%, which create the demand of bond due to its

~higher. retum

| ' " President ant CEO
Y Emtlﬁﬁ Ifsmnation and S
a __a';;s Sunna
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_ __The tocal currency pond mark&t n AS[B, increased significantly by 12.7% to USD 5,370 billion

. An.FY2018 from.USD 4,771 gllifon in FY2017. China dominates the Asian local currency bond

. markel With 47% share, followed by South Korea (22.25%) and Japan (13, 46%). -Indonesia-
o {0:54%), Phlilppines {0.40%), Vietnam 10.06%) 8hd. .Bangladesh (0.30%]) have smailer-bond .-

i omarkets. as compared fo other Asian’ countries. The.presence of the secondary -market has: >~
i played a'vital role In the development of the bond market in-Aslan countries, As a percentage. -
ol GDP, A 2018, South Korea had the Iarge&t corporate debt market (73% of GDPY followed -
7y Malaysia {46% of GDP), In. Indfa, the corporate bond. market is 16% of GDP. In Indonesia, =
1 B7% of the total outstandang bonds are. traded in. the secondary market, fo[lowed by 70% in
!ndia. '

' _-The corporate bond market in Bangladesb is almost non-existent, w!th only two bonds listed
In the prime bourse at present namely APSCL {Ashuganj Power Stations Company Lid.) Non-
+: Convertible and fully redeemable coupon bearing bond of Tk.6000.00 million, belng getting -

the permission from Bangladesh Security and Exchange Commission (BSEC) in the year 2020,

. Another listed ‘bond is IBBL Mudaraba Perpetuat Bond (first perpetual Sharlah based
-instrumnent); worth of Tk.3000.00 millon and getting the permission from BSEC in the year
2007, To strengthen the bond market, BSEC has recently issue ®Debt Security Rules 2021"
- covering the‘ public private placemeant related issues, default and transition matrix statistics of
the credit rating companies along with hotches wise default status.

‘Sofar, a good number of commercial banks have issued a subordinated bond. Countries’ first

subordinated bond is issued by The Brac Bank Ltd. worth of Tk, 3000.00 miflion (Tk. 2700.00
million from the private placement and remaining Tk.300.00 from public Subscription), s
getting the flrst permission from BSEC in the year 2010, to strengthen thelr additional Tier 11
capital base. A subordinated bond is a debt security. It is referred to as suberdinate because
debt providers (lenders) have a subordinate status concerning the normal debt. It is also
known as a_subordinated loan, debenture, or junior debt that carres a lower-priority claim on
the issuer 5 income or assets than that of other debt,

A Few of the banks also declared to Issue bonds under Tier-1, The market analysts are also

“hopeful that such an Issue will boost the other banks in issuing Tier-] bonds because the
“subscribiers will earn a stable return from the Tier- bond in the face of the existing volatifity

of the capital market, CRISL, however, views that a good number of mutual funds and other

* Fis ‘may include the bond in. their portfolio for risk minimization through asset.diversification.

Due to the increase of the Asset Management Comparnies, they will be very much interested

o add Tler-l bonc!s in their portfo%io as Fixed Income Securitles,

Perpetuat bonds of banks often y!eid a higher fate than the interest on fixed deposits. The City

-Bank Ltd: and The Jamuna Bank Ltd. (both have been getting the first permission from BSEC)
-as well as One Bank and the Mutual Trust Bank’s as non-shariah based instruments in the
- year 2020 for-issuing of TK.400 crare-each to strengthen their additional Tier 1. capital base.

Only a few banks are going to lssue pérpetual bonds te meet thelr long-term  capital
requirements as well as strengthen the Tier 1 capital base. Like other bonds, even perpetual
bonds come attached with the risk of liguidity, credit risk, and Interest rate rlsk If you are to

: .Envest in perp'etuat bon'ds, then ym’n have to keep in mind these aspects.

| "Page 5 of 13

'.:Infrastructure fnances A new category of mutuaE funds can be created m th

'As per the Gl{:bai Infrastructure Hub report Bangladesh needs £608 biliion of investment’ in _
Cinfrastructure sectors - -water, electricity, telecom, ports, alrports, rali, and road - from 2016 - .
to 2040, However, current trends indicate $417 bllllon of investment is possible in the -
-aforementioned ‘sectors, thereby leaving a gap of $192 billion in investments in the period

2016-2040, “This ‘gap In the top three sectors, power, telecom, ‘and water sectors, s $100 .

E bnmon $41 bHIion and $40 bilfion respectlveiy

‘These pmjects are mostly fmanced thrcugh the government's own fund and multilateral and
. bilateral funding agencies. But If the government can develop a.fraiméwork for meeting the -
_ funding gap. of those projects by Issuing long term Infrastructire bonds, & new asset-class'can

be created.. This -might alse attract forelgn portfollo investments. which specialize -in
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. -._wi'ﬂ invest Ih that type of bond. Considering the current interest rate scenario and the current |
" state of capital market, the bond market can emerge as a knight, Banks, NBF1s and Merchant . -
':banks can enhance their fee- based Encome by work ng on hond Issuances and cover for the s

' ':_"_f'in the capltaE marke_ S

o -'The Bangiadesh bond market has been inactive over the years on accnunt of severa! :ssues RS
" that have acted as barriers for-issuers and investors alike, From the jssuer's point of vlew, the oow

- cost of issuance of bonds in Bangladesh Is ‘significantly high {1,5%-2% of the total issuance ©

“yalue as compared {0 appmximateiy 0.2% cost of issuance of bonds in India). Besides, there

- g ‘an @bsence of tax-beneflts or other incentlves far the Issuers raising funds via the issuance

- iiof debt securitles, According to The Income Tax Ordinance 1984, any Income derived from
*zero-coupon bonds by a person other ‘than a bank, an insurance company, or & financial
institution is exempted from tax. The tax benefit is only'appllcabie if the zero-coupon bond {if

Jssued by the banks, financial inst:tuuons, and other companles) ls approved by BSEC or
Bangladesh Bank, " -’ o _

The reguiators lack the necessary lnfrastructure to perform dise diligence of the application
-received from the Issuers, As a result, it takes six months to one year for the Issuer to Issue
~bonds. This acts as & major barrier for a project developer who wants to raise funds via the
“bond market in a short time. Due to the lack of avallability of long-term financing options, the
“project developers either avail funds through bridge financing or avail long-term financing
from NBFls and banks at interest rates of 15% to 18%, which substantially increases ‘the
ovérall project cost, The jong-term debt market has witnessed a lack of participation from
institutional investors as well as Individual investors. Institutionaf investors like barks,
insurance companies, and mutual funds prefer to Invest In high return low-risk debt securities
‘offered by the governmaent instead of the fow return-high risk bond market. The confidence of
‘general investors in the private sector s still low because of the lack of regulatdry regime,
lack of awareness, and failure to service the Interest and principal payrent obligations in the
past by the issuers, Furthermore, due to the lack of a benchmark yield curve, the presence of
a secondary market is almost negligible, Overall, the long-termi debt market is yet to ermerge
as an effective |_nvestment avenue {0 lafge and small Investors as well ag position ltself as an
attractive avénue for the companies to ralse funds through the issuance of debt securities,

‘8.0 CORPORATE CONSIDERATION OF THE ISSUER

8.1 - Board of Direatnrs ) .
The Board of Directors consists of eight (08} members and led by Mr, Mir Nasir-Hossain as the
Managing Director of the Board with his prudency in the business arena. The Board mainly

- reviews the overall activities of the business and gives necessary strategic guidelines for
onward policy implementation, A brief details of the board is delingated below-

Name - Academie Quaiification ‘Position In the Board .
Mrs. Sohela Hossain M.A {Fhilo.}) Chatrman
Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain B. Com {H} M.Com MD
Mrs. Mahabiba Nasir B.A Director
Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer MBA ‘Director & CCO
Mr, Md. Farld Uddin M.A {Modern History) Independent Director -
Mr. A.K.M Faizur Rahman Masters{Bridoe Engineering) | Independent Director
ﬁ??fh Dr. Huhammad Sharlat | Ph,D(Econamics) - Independent Dlrector
. Pruf Naushaen Rahman MBA(Flnance) - Independent Director
B2 Curporate Managemant _ *
T _ . The corporate management including overail business o;:eration of the company s headed by
e r——— : Mr. Mir Nasir Hossafn, Managing Director, In the management team, Mr. Nasir is aided by
L . Executive Directors, Project :Engingers ang. cfflcers. Managing Director s empowered with
T S ,sufﬂment ﬂnancial admin stratwe and busmes}g cieiegatlon. Mereover, officia different .

'_';-f’é-l.il?iﬁ_ I -
. Pyt

% e

i Akhter Hossain L
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clevels  have been .given requisite buslness delegation. The Head Office management s
- segregated Into diffefent divisions and Is headed by experienced & qualified professionals who .
Searesuecessfully carrymg ‘out various tasks towards achieving the company -gost as well.as
- Group -objectives. Various ‘divisions. at ‘Head office -include Engineering, ?lanning and CO- 3
o 'ordmation, Pmcurement Admm!stratwe, and Accounts dwislon. U

o Name L o T Besignation =
D5 M Ml Nastr Hossaln ST e T e Managing Director e
Mr.:Shama-e-Zaheep o AR o Director & COO - L
$r Azizgl Hague o S b S Executive dlrecior (Technical)
Mr. Md. Golam Mostofa IR TV Sr. Executive director (Meck,)
Mr. Syed Rasheduzzaman : ) Sr, Executive director {(Endineecing}
Mr. Manik Kumar Biswas Sr, Executive directar {Project)
‘Mr. Md, Momtazul Karim Khan - Executive director (Planning & Co—ordlnatlon)
Mr. Md. Ashraful Islam : Executive girector {Project)
. Mr..Parymat Kumer Sarker, FCA Chief Finance Officer
8.3 Human Resources Management

. MAHL provides competitive compensation package fo Its employees. Among other fringe

benefits it 'has the practice of creating provident fund for employees, As of September 30,

+.2021, MAHL's had total 1967 personnel as a technical, professional and other supporting staff
and permanent workers, The company also has contractual staff and temporary daily basis

workers. MAHL has the expertise and technical know-how to handie assighed tasks efﬁclentiy

" and effectively at ali times. Performadce evaluation and career development through tn-house

apd outslde training program seems limited in the company.

. 9.0 BUSINESS & FZNANCIAL PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS QF THE ISSUER

6.1  Business Profile _ :
MAHL I5 widely focused in the construction business, which Includes construction of

© international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges, Industiial Complexes like Factory buildings

of “$ugar, Pharmaceoticals and Textile Wiils, Office Complexes, Functional Bulldings,

- International . Standaid Hotel. Buiidings, -Auditoriums, Academics, Food and Fertflizer

warehouse etc. The clients of MAHL consist of Government, Semi-Govt., Private and Public
company, Associations, Foreign Embassies etc. The company has successfully completed a -

-good rumber of high vatued pro;ects at-all central points over the country

8.2 Infrastructure and Construction Facllities
The company is-wel equipped with construction and infrastructures facilities, The company

“has adequate equipment to handle more than 40 projects at a time. Besides, in order to

support its ongoing activities, MAHL has contractual arrangement with different construction
companies to outsource work in times of necessity, Major items of construction equipment

B includes Mixture Machine, Nozzie, Vibrator Machine (diesel & electric), Water Pump, Water

. Bound infrastructure .
facllities

| page7eriz | o

Tank, Submersible Pump, Drill machine, Generator, Grinding ‘machine, Audit-Stéel shutter,
Column shutter; Beam shutfer ete, The company has been adding construction equ_iprne;nt o

- .its pperation every vedr totope with increasing volume of business, The company has its own

architects for. design purposes. Technical collaboration of the company is obtalned from

reputed international companies for execution -of large projects financed by international

financlal organization Jike WB, ‘ADB etc: However, large local projects having complicated
nature and types require formation of the company by Joint Venture (3V), Consortium, and

.- Association, with ‘defined Share of participation by each party. MAHL has the expertlse and
technical know- how to handie assﬁgned tasks eﬁ‘“cientty and effectwely at all times,

9. 3 Completed Projects : ' ' o
The company has successfully cempleted various high%y prestigious projects and handed those
over to their clients, During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated 5 new projects such 8s Jamuna Rail

‘Bridge, Jamuna river dredging, Munsh:ganj bridge ete, frorm which it generated Tk.634.90
_million revenue, Moreover, the company continued the Work on 12 praject from the. previous
: }year which generated TK. 2 789 38 msmon revenue DR . '
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.4 - Ongoing Pmiects _
- As of November. 11, 2021 the company ‘has 30 on- qolng projeits Totai values af these
- projects.:stands at Tk “60,956,86 million, : Among the .‘on-going projects, “14 projects ‘are
S glrrentiy campletad ‘mare than B0O% with. ‘the _vaiue of Tk 25 961 77 mli!ton whlc:h are
i _expect&d 1o he’ compieted wmun next 2 =3 years LR T '

T Va030-31 ] V261936 | EVI0isin ] -

-} Revenue (Fn miman Tl( ) T W P X1 2,694.96 4,267.04
‘I Gross Profit {in milllen TK, ) s R : 935,72 766.18 1,432,243
Net. Profit - from own ccnstructlon bus%ness {ia . 81.56 74.97 200,50
mithion TK.Y :
Met Profit after tax from Joint Venture (in mthcm 367.88 300.04 431,99
Ik}
Total Net Profit after Lax {in million Tk, } 459,45 37501 632,49
Grogs Profit Margin (%) ) 28.86 |- . 2843 26.53
et Profit Margin (%) = - . 14,17 13,92 14.82
Cost to Revenue Ratio (%) 71.14 71,57 73.47
| Administrative & Seliing Exp. to Revenue Ratio . 6.12 5.37 5,73
% . )
Fihance Cost ko Revenue Ratlo % : 14.14 14.07 B8.47
Return on Average Assets After Tax (9%} : 2.43 2.00 ) 4.27
1 Return on Average Equity After Tax {%) : 9.77 10.25 - 20.05
Return on Average Capital Employed () U . 2,62 | . 2.44 o 5.52

The overall financial performance of MAHL has been found to be good during FY2020-21 as

the company reglstered a revenue growth of 20.31%. MAHL has been recognizing its revenue

“on bill recelved basis, During FY2020-21, MAHL initiated 5 new projects from which it

-generated Tk.634.90 miflion and contmued the work on 12 project from the previous year

which .generated Tk.2,789.38 million revenue .Consequently, the gross profit increased by

22.13%. Thaugh the admin and finance cost Increased, the net profit increased by 22.52%

due to increase In income from joint venture. As a resu[t all the profitability indicators such as

TR T . RetUrn on Average Assets (ROAA) and Return on Average Capital Employed (ROACE)

. “eoodfimancial 0. 0. - inicreased as the growth of return was comparatively higher than asset and pet asset growth.

Cperformanca. . '_Moreover, MAHL: has 30 ongoing ;Jrojects with a vajue of Tk. 60,956.86 miilion, :

. 'While analyzing the cost efﬁcnency of the company, CRISL ohbserved that the cost of services
. to revenus ratlo remained stable. On the other hand, the administrative expenses and finance
- -gost ratio-both incréased from previeus year resulting 19.59% growth in cost of execution of
: contraz:t

: CRISL has also considered the Unaudited Flnanciai Statements for 1% Quarter of FY 2021- 22,
. As per the unaudited accounts, the revenue stood at Tk, 810,14 million (Tk.216.35 million for
1% Quarter of FY 2019-20) and gross profit steod at Tk,235.83 million.Net profit significantly

- dropped to Tk, 67.23 million against Tk.104.40 million of the same period of FY2020-21 ciue
:to dec:rease in income from jolnt venture

{redit Rating | a‘mmaimn and Servicas 114,
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.77 s6 . Capltal Structure and Solvency -

| Debt based capital
< structure U

* O Average liquidity

‘A% on June

{Th tn milion}

A Particulars . Ag onJune | Az on Jung.

A SRR e “ 30,2021 | 30,2020 30,2088 [
Clrrent aggets o T s -07,673.60 | - -5,735.81 i BEGAR]
“Less Current llabilitles 0o r s S B 03067 1 i3,100:26 4 S3518,524 o
Net Current Asset oo 1 2,642,93 T 635,56 - 2, 14%,87 | o

~ {"Addf Non-Currentassets -~~~ = "~ 15,047,41 14,684,271 31328781
S capital Employed © o T e o 17,690.34 |° 17,340,82 ] - 13,472,647 "
{Financed by & v T R SR
=L L Equly o j . R
w2 | Pald up capital 1,207.72 1,000.00 1,000.60 -
Retained earnings 3,197.94 2,738.47 2,363.46
{ Share fremivm - 1,042.28 - 2am

‘| Reserve & Others 1067.71 107.54 107.54
Tetal Equity §,555.65 3,846.01 3,471.00

1 Non-Current Liabllitles: - i

{ Long Term Ligbilities ) : : 17,5134.69 13,473.82 10,001.64
Total Equity B Non-Curren} Llabilities 17,690.34 17,318.82 13,472.64
Laverage Retlo (X} - o 3,09 4,31 3.89

1 Debt Service Coverage Ratic (X) - 2.99 2.89 4,04
Interest Coverage Ratlo (X) 2.60 2.43 3.64

1B.76% share premium and 1.94%

“financed its projects through bank loans therefore, total liab
by 3.57% In the form of shart term as well as long term debt, However, the leverage ratio

- 'MAHL is operating with debt based capital structure, The capital structure
- -company has 75.55% debt (of which 29.31% In short-term and 70.65%
" 24:45% equity. The equity ple comprised of 21.74% share capital, 57,56% retained earnings,
reserve and othars. As a construction campany, MAHL
flities of the company increased

revealed that, the
in jong-term) end

decreased due to higher growth in equity compared to the. growth of liabllitles, Both debt

. service coverage ratio and interest coverage ratio Indicake that the company has the
. capabilities to pay off its debt obligation. ' o

9.7  Liguidity and Fund Flow Ahalysis

3 xE | ‘Page 9 of 13

Indicators Fy2020-21 FY20i9-20 FY201B-19
Current Ratio {X) C 1831 1.85 1.61
Guick Ratio (X) L 0.68 0.71 .80
Opercating Cash Flow {Tk, In rpilllon) 203.57 62.81 1,287.76
Net Working Capital {Tk. I million) . 2,642.83 2,635.56 2,143.87
Operating Cash Flow to Current Debt Ratio (X3 : 0,05 - 0.02 0.37

after the work is inspected and met the required guality. Mostly,
_ bills within 30 days after submitting ‘the biils. On the other hand, the work
.. raquirement of the company varies in fine with project works and the company has been

Being a constrisction company, MAHL needs funds for purchasing construction
. ‘other -administrative "costs -of projects ;and has .been maintaining
requirements as weil as liguidity from bill received, shol
loan and trade credit facility from supplier, Generally,
“work order and submits the bill based on completion¢

materials and

_ fts working capital
rt term bank financing, Inter-company
the company starts work against the
f work. The company recelved the bills

the company received the -

‘enjoying bank loan facilities for meeting its requirement. Af present, the company is enjoying

. representing 45.45% of project value, .~~~

“accepted level due to holding high inventory for its business. While analyzing
" CRISL found that the opersting cash. flow increased In FY2020-21 gs the cash recelpts
customers Increased by 20.54%,. However, the operating cash flow t0 current deb
been found moderate as the company has significant amount of current Jiab Hiers
Cof shorttermoan, -0 e Sl

JAer Hosealn

“foan liabifity .of Tk.' 27,706,52 miion against the ‘project ‘value of Tk.60,956.86 million gty

" The liguidity o_f the Comparly has b_eeh fotind to be average due to positive cash flow and net
‘working capital, The: current ratio. also found to be average but the quick ratio Is befow than
‘the cash flow,

from
¢ ratio has .
g the Torm. -

ing cepital
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_ PROJECT ED BONQ RED.EMPTIGN CAPRGITY

: 3_0 1 .:.

: Rapavment Scheﬂule & Redemptlon c:apacitv S E
= The bond “will “be redeemed in B installment - (having equat amnunt c:f TK, 416 50 miiiion}
o starting from the end of 18" manths of the date of issuance followed by six months intervai S
Vi -.thereaf:er. The redemption schedule at dlscount rate of ’7 00% Es glven below. B -

Face vajue of

i : '!'ota! issua R,

chayment Issue Prlce Face Value : Np 'n_f bo.nd L 1
perlod | - (s0T) | (epT) | Issued et *‘ﬂ‘ﬁ,f:;‘; n.
e ol 75 16289 7-83,333.33 4,998 375.66 416,56
24 4 72,6209 '83,333.33 4,998 362,96 416.50
30, 70,184.43 - B3,333.33 4,998 350.68 416.50
36 _67,791.72 ©83,333.33 4,998 338,82 416.50
42 65,499.25 83,333.33 4,998 327,37 416.50
48 .. 63,284.30 - .83,333.33 4,998 316,29 416.50
| Total 414,321.77 500,009.&(2: _ - 2,071.78 2,499.00

Ligz ESTIMATED RETURN FROM THE BOND

The investors.are Jikely 'to get good retdrn from thelr investment In ZCB. The raté df return

wiil. be 7% annually, The coupon payment wii be made semi-annually where the first payment

will be due on the date falling elghteen months after the Issue date. The reinvestment

opportunity for the bondholders may make this bond more attractive. The bond hotder will get

‘the.tax benefit out of their investment in ZCB as per prevailing tax rules,

11,0

113

RISK MANAGEMENT

Tssue Related Risk :

“11.1,1 Transferability Risk
Transferability risk arises when the bondhoider faces difficufty to sell the bond. As the bond is-
Jssued under private placement’ and is not proposed to be Hsted, the bondholcﬁers are exposed

to easy transferablhty risk,

11.1.2 - Redeinmption Risk

" The.annual redemption for each sénes of bond’ requEres Tk.416. 50 million at every 6 month

after: the eighteen months of issue date, CRISL views that bond redemption at & certain date

-may put ;nressure onthe cash ﬂow of the company o . e

11,:.3 Suburdination Rlsk

- There Is no specific charge creation over the fixed or floating assefs of the company against

~the bond issue whereas the other lenders will get priority on first charge basis over the fixed
- and floating assets of the company, 1n this case, the bond holders are strategically becoming
.subordinated to those lenders, Se, for any default In ann repayment bondhﬂtders will, not get. _

_1-pnarity over other lenders.

: '-11 1.4 Regulatory Risk .- : : : ' .
.-2CB are now-a tax free instrument to some éxtent, Due ta the tax IncentIVe, Investment in :
““bonds. fias become attractive, However, there Is ‘a risk that Government ‘may change the -
poliey-In future. Any change either In the form of withdrawatl or reduction in tax incentive. -
“scheme will affect the expected return of the potentsal investors MAHL has ro such proviston :
o compensate the investors In such event :

AREATR
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SRR § B 1,5 Late. Pavment Risk .- - ' el ' o
<o Late ‘payment tisk arises “from deiay l;’i payment of bond redernptmn In case af laz:e R
- repayment, the ‘issuer shall pay a .compensation on late payment of 2% higher than the = =
interest rate and be payable on the amount not paid on. due date up | taH the date of. actuat-" "
yment Hence' the lssue :s Iess'ex;msad to 1ate payment risk : S R

L 11 2 1 Project Campletton Rlsk : ' ' L
2o The: Buccessful ‘mplementation .of the project deperads ‘on the abthty of the companys'-l
-constraction of ‘the facilities, weather conditlon, labor and supply of raw _rmaterlals within due
time. “Moreover, the Bangladeshl «construction industries have been directly and indirectly
- -affected by th'e_nngoing measures taken by the country's government to tontrol the spread of
- ~the corona virus pandemic. The unprecedented measures have suspended the -constructian
“works of all mafor Infrastructure projects, ‘worth more than US330bn, including the Padma
- Bridge, Rooppur nuclear power plant, Matarbas] power plant, Karnaphull river tunnal and
" Dhaka metro rail. One of the reasons for the suspension of construction works Is that, neither -
“foreign nor locat employeés ean work under :he prevailing sntuation, which will defiritely slew :
' down the progress of the projects.

-11.2 2 Price Fluctuation Risic : ' - ! R :
Prices of construction materials such as Iron cement, concrete are incréasing in rec:ent years,
rapidly., As MAHL has to complete the project works wathin stipulated time frame at fixed
contract price, it 5 exposed ta price ﬂuctuation ﬁsk

. 11.2,3 Market Rlsk ’ :
Bangladesh has high potential for infrastructure Industry market, Already | manv players are in
© the Industry and MAHL has stable position in the ‘market. However, the entry ‘barrier in the
- market |s not acute and several construction companies are coming in the business each year,
. Entrance of new competitors wéil create unhealthy competltlon in the market affectmg the
. existing mari(et share. S . . .

i1, 4 Raw Materials Supply Risk - ' ' o

. - Though 'MAHL has backward linkage {construction materlals such as brick, cement, concrete,
. tiles ete)) to support the eonstruction works it sources the construction materlals from open
- 'market. Any supply gap in both §ocal ancf InternatfonaE market rmay hamper the project
comp{etaon in due trme : o ;

ﬁiuzai’far Bhaed, romarcs
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! '-.-_12 0. OBSERVATION SUMMARV

._Ratlng (:amfarts Rafing-Con_;g;jns:_ R
Issue o § : !ssue. Coi K
Good retim from inveﬁtment : 1 Ainsecired debt instwment :
BRI _Dlve:‘slﬁ_catlon ot funding souree- : .subordmatlon to-bank ability & KRR
| Tex benefit In'case of h""ﬂ“g by C‘”P"rate em:ity' Na speciflc policy to accumulate hcmd redemption i
; : -1 fund
: R R S ISsue'r:'
1”‘“’”' L i - Levered capital structure
Good financial per‘formance L : Dependengy on bank Fnance
Sound production facilities - - Project completion risk
‘Experlenced management team “ | Stress fiquidity . arisen from - futiure gash flow may.
5”"“9 G""UP S”F’P‘?“Jt S e i | amfectbond redemptlcn
. __'Bs_:'s_ln.esa_a_OPpoﬂ'unit{es: Coo i Business Challenges:
assues S T rssue .
Development of Cap}tal markat in Bang!adesh «1 Lower market depth of Bangladush bopd market
Changes in Guvt. mgulations SR oo | Mostly dependent an Institutional  Investor for
. : : slibscription :
Issuer: ’ S o assuen _ . _ .
Exploring export market © [ Lack of government supportive policies
Further product diversification Global Instabllity
R . i R Increased competitlun Inthe market
Cost cnntm§

' ‘END OF THE REPORT

_'(Infannaﬁcn used hereln is oblainad from seurces t)eﬁeved to be accurate and relfable, Hawever, CRISL does not
guarantee the accuracy,. adequacy or .completeness .of any information and is not rasponsible far any etrors or

Jomissions or for the results ebtained from the use of such informiation. Rating is an opinion on credit quality only

- and is not 3 recommentlation to bay oF séft.any securities. All rights of this feport. are neserved by CRISL, Contenrs )
mray be used by news meafz and researchers with due aclmaMedgement) : :

‘[We bhave examined, prepared, finalfzed and issued this repart wlmour compromising w;th the matters of any
" conflict of interest. We have alsé compiied with all the requirements, policy pmcedures of the BSEC rufes as
© prescribed by the aang!adesh Securities and Exchange COmmfssftm ]

"?‘m?afia Aad, FCMAFCS
) Prasident and CED . _
- el R_a;;ng_ Infirmation dnd Services Lid,

| page.1zor13 |
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Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
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CREDIT RATING REPORT

On

ZERO COUPON BOND OF TK. 2,499.00 MILLION
OF MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

RATING SCALES . .
LDNG-TERM RATING OF DEBT !NSTRUMEN‘*’S

SEFINI“FION

oo
(nghest
SHafety) -

'mvestment Grade

i 'Secuntles razed ln this categnry are'adjudged tfa be of highest r,rednt quainty This
level of rating Indicates highest Jevel of safety for timely:payment ‘of interest and
: prlnclpal ‘Risk Tactors are negiigible and nearest to risk free government securities,

“(Bouble A) -
{High Safety}

Securitles rated in this ‘category are adjudged to be of high credit quallty and offer:
higher safety. This Jevel of rating indicates a security with sound credit profite and
without significant p:'oblems. Protection factors are strong, -Risk ls modest but may
vary slightly from time to tithe because of economlc conditons,

A4, A, A-

_Single A

{Adequate
Safety)

Securities rated In this category are adjudged to be of good credit quality and offer
adequate safely for timely repayment of financial obligations. Protection factors are
gonisiderad varlable and more susceptible to changes In drcumstances than securities
In higher-rated categorles.

‘BBB+, BAY,
BRB-
Tripie B
{Moderate
‘Safety)

Securitles. rated 'In this catedory "are_ adjudged to offer moderate safety for timely

1 repayment of financtal obligations, This level of rating Indicates deflclencies In certaln

protectlve elements but still considered sufficlent for prudent Investment. Risk factors
are more varlable In perlcds of economic stress than those rated In the higher

‘cateqories.

BB+, BB, BB-

Double B
{Inadequate
Safety)

Specuiativa Grade .

Securitles rated In this categgry are ‘considered to be of speculative grade but
deemed lkely to meet obligations when due, Present or prospective financial
protection factors fluctuate according to Industry conditions or company forturies.
Qverall quality may move up or down Freguently within this category.

B+, B, B
Single B
{High Risk} -

Secyrities rated In this category are consldered te be of highly speculative grade. This
level of rating indicates high risk assoctated with- timiely repayment of interest and
principal,” Financial protection. factors will fluctiste widely according to econamie
cycles, industry conditions apd/or company fortunes, Potentlal exists for’ frequent
changes in the rating within this category or into s higher or loveer rating grade,

CCC4,CCC,
cee-
{Vuinerable)

Securities rated in_this ¢ategoery are currently vulnerable to non-repayment, and is
depandent upon favorable busingss condltions for the obiigar to, meet ks financial
commitments-on the obligation.

CC+,CC, CC-
- (High
Vuinerable)

Securii_.ies rated In this category Is currently hlgh vilnerable to nof-repayment.

4,6,
{Near.to
Defauit)

Secuntie_s rated in-this category are cons:dered to. be near to defaulf, Pmtectloa
factors are scarce. Timely repayment of Interest and principal s possible only
favorable circumstances continue. : S

o
{Default)

Default Grade -
pefaulted debt obligations, Issuar failed to meet scheduled prlnclpal and/or interest
payments. -

[eage1zoriz]

Huzafa ki roapcs
Presigent anf CEG
zt Rating §nfwma&wa aﬁd 39f¥1£5 L.




Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

(ristagera Regianal Gitoa  Epe Wstad Paint 47 oo, §18, Yur Abmad Fosd fear O BranGitingl, Chittagong
Teh B8O -FRATTES-G. Fax B5-031-2867T04, Evail il Berish oy, Wed | wwnidsicd.tom

January 17, 2022
Ref: CRISL/OP/RR/759/22

Managing Director

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Red Crescent Borak Tower,
Level-7 &10, 37/3/4,

Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

Sub: Submission of Final Credit Rating Report and Bill

Dear Sir,

In terms of your letter of appointment to rate your esteemed grganization, we are pleased to submit
herewith our final report of Zero Coupon Bond of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited. We offer our
sincere thanks to you and the members of yaur company for the heartiest cooperation extended to us
while carrying out our responsibllities.

With best regards

shmag FCMA, FCS
President and CEQ~

Mid. Masbaus Sunnah

Compaty Secretary
pir Akhter Hessain Ltd,

Head Cificg : Nakehi Homes {4t & 58 Flood), 914, Segun Bagicha, Dhake- 1000, Bacgladesh, Tel | BA024515807-8, 515034, 0515838, Fat: 8202556 5783, Bl s ergdbiBorisibd com, Web | wepworizludoom




Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

Chittgnng Reghonad (ifioe : Epin Hiehad Point {§™ Flaar), 618, Nur Abmed Ressd ear Gid B Offic), CRitageng
Tl - B-I1-2R57TBE-D, Fa 1 58-000 2057784, E-mal - it Bl org, Web s wawiwerleid com

First i5CHOR01 12043 Coring Crad Bty Compiny i Ragiadech Operating Sioce 1988

December 22, 2021

Managing Director

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Red Crescent Borak Tower,
Level-7 B10, 37/3/A,

Eskaton Garden, Dhaka-1000.

Ref: CRISL/OP/Ques/588/22

Subject: Questionnaire for Credit Rating of your esteemed organization

Dear Sir,

Pursuant to the MOU signed, we are pleased to form a rating team comprising of the following

professionais to take up the assignment with immediate effect:

1. Md. Anowar Hossain
2. Sanzida Begum

Team Leader

The team member will mainly maintain contact for necessary information to finalize rating, We are
enclosing a Questionnaire for providing necessary Information on your Company. It will be highly
appreciated If you kindly provide us the required information as per questionnaire within 10 working

days,

With best regards,

Yours sincerely,

Muzaffar Ahined FCMA, FCS
President and CED

Enclosed.; as mentioned above

ﬁl’\dl\wb .

Md. Masbaus Sunnab

Company Secrefary
Mir Akhter Hossain Lid.

" Hasg Ofice Heishl Homas {4t & 50 Flow), 6714, Segun Bagicha, Dhaka-1000, Bangadach, Ted 1 £8-0253152078, 8515004, 510838, Fax  B3-02-855 5783, E-mad . cristhd & i corm, Web . wawwerisieed com




DISCLOSURE AS PER RULE 8(b) of BSEC NOTIFICATION NOVEMBER 17, 2009,

We, Credit Rating Information & Services Uimited {CRISL) while assigning this rating to Zero Coupon
Bond of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited hereby solemnly declare that:

! We, Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL) as well as the analysts of the
rating have examined, prepared, finalized and issued this report without compromising
with the matters of our conflict of interest, if there be any;

And

(it) We have complied with all the requirements, policy and procedures of these rules as
prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission vide No,
SEC/CMRRCD/2001-27/01/Admin/01-41 dated November 17, 2009 In respect of this
rating, '

Muzaffar Ahmed FCMA, FCS
President and CEO

Credit Rating Information & Services Limited

775

Md. Masbaus Sunnah
Company Secrelary
Mir Akhter Hossaln Lid.
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ANNEXURE 4: CREDIT RATING REPORT OF THE ISSUER

Md. Mashaus Sunnah
Company Secretary
Mir Akhier Hossain Lid,

Strictly Private & Confidential
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Address;
CRISI .

“Nakshl Horoes

T A B Ry

A Segunbag[;:ha, LT
=i Ohaka-1000 =
LoFel: 9530991~ .

Email:”

" Raﬂny Contact

M, Astrul Hug
‘Chief Rating orﬁaer
'wmwm ;

Ana!ysts. W
Md, Anowar Mdssafm -

gﬂg_yz g@g gfﬁd £om
;San'dda .Begum -

" sannida@orisitd.com.
‘Entity Rating -
Long Term: AR~ .
Shert Termy 5T-3 -

Outlook: S{aﬁie,

MIR AKHTER
HOSSAIN LIMITED

- AcTIVITY
- Constructiaﬂ service.
U bATEOF o

L INCORPORATION
CJuly 18, 1980

| MANAGING DIRECTOR
M Nasir Hossaln

S EQUITY
v TRE, 555 &4 mﬁ!ron

- TOTAL A;S_SETS‘ :
Tk.22,721.01 miltion

Fax; 68-02-953-0995 S Outiook T T SR
R Sy on | Bank i-ac!ut!es Rattng
: -j-ms&zhk@cris!bd cmm _

Dhaka’ Bank Ilmlted

Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
Flest [50 5001 * 2015 Cartifisd Credf} Rating Compary in Bangiadesh Operating Since (985

CREBIT RATING REPORT
on
MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

' :_REPOR:T: RR/49174/21

This i5 a credit ra!ing report as per me provisions of tﬂe Credit Raf:ng Companies Rules 1996 CRISL's entity rating is vallid °

. ane year for fong-term rating and § months for short termy rating, CRISL'S Bank foan rating (bir) is valid ane year for tong o

. -term fagilities and up-to 365 days {according to tenure of short term facilities) for short term faci.fmes Aﬁ‘er the sbove -
. pariods, these ratings wiil not. Larry any . validity unfess the entity goes for,swvedfance L .
b .CRJSL Ial.lnwed C‘orpmfe Rartmg Hemnu’aloay pub&fshed l'ﬁ CRISL wwbs:ﬂe www,criﬂbd«;om N

Date of Rating. December 27, 2321 I o I L
: _ i ' Long Term .
- :...‘Aﬁ; - .

Valld up to: December 28, 2022

Entitv Rating

Stable

: -3'Made ot’ Expusu:\es (Figures in mmlon)
HWCLL-TK.2,650.00 -
ST FWCLL-T.3,900.00

BankfFi =

Al-Arafaf;

\ fskami -
timiited s

Bank Asia Limited

FWOLL-TI.1,600.00

BRAL Bank Limited

RWCLL-Tk.4,630.00 - -

*WCLL-Tk.4,550.00

NRB  Commerclai ~Bank | *WCLL-Tk.2,600.00
Limited ' T )
‘Uttara Bank Limited *WCLL-TK. 820,00
Unlted Commercial “Bank | *WCLL-Tk,4,900.00 &
1 Lirited L MATEQ-TK.206,70 -
Shahjalal - Islami - Bank | *WCLL-Tk.4935.28
Limibed - - ) | SATLO-Tk.8.06

:: ' *W(.LL Wo:klng Capitat Loam Umn *2TLO- Term Loan Uutstanding

e

Jamuna Bank Umlted
- *2TLO-Tk.351,28
FWCLL-TK.708.00
*WCLL-Tk.3,679.00 -

Midiand Bank Limited
Mutyal Trust Bank Limited -

*WCLL-TR.2120.00
*2TIO-Tk, 557,32

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Social Islami Bank Limited | *WCLL-Tk,3,950.00
: - : FETLO-TK.50.83
‘Modhumot] Bank Limited | *WCLL-Tk,2,1060.00 bir AA-
~ | *TLG-Tk.B.16 _
Standard Bank Limited 1 *WCLL-Tk,2,450.00 bir AA-"
*+TLO-Tk.1,289.36

RA'YI‘O N ALE

< CRISL has reaffirmed the Long Term rating ta ‘AA- (pronounced as dcuble A mmus} and the b
:Short term rating to '§T=3' of Mir Akhter Hossain Limited {MAHL) on the basis of its audited =
finaricials up to June 30, 2021 and other relevant quantitative and qualitative information up <
.. ko the date of rating. The above ratings havi been reassigned after diie consideration to jts " 1°
“fundamentals such 8s good financial performance, average liquidity, regular loan repayment' o
“status, sound. infrastructure facilities, strong Group support, experienced management team.

ete, However, the above ratings are constralned, to.some extent, by factors such as debt:_ff-

: basad capitai structure, dependem:y on bank finance, risk of project completion etc.

. The, Long Term fating mdicates that entities rated in this category are adjudged to be of hcgh L
- 7. guality, offer higher “safety ‘and have ‘high -credit quality, This level .of: rating indicates B
- ‘corporate: entlty with a sound credit profile and without significant’ pmbiems ‘Risks are modest i
oand may vary sisghtly from time to time because of economic. conditions “The ‘Short: Ter'
- ~rating indicates' good - tertalnty -of -timely ‘repayment.:
fundamentals are “sound..Althouigh Jongeing ‘funding needs may enlarge ‘total financing:

: requlrernents, access tc ﬂnancial tmrkets s gooci Wlth smail rlsk factors L

quu:dlty factors and company:

4 : CRISL a%so views the cnmpany with “Stabie Dutiook” beE:eving that the campany wlii be ab!e g
- to ma{ntam Its fundamentais with the 5aIme trend In the foreseeabie future e

N Pag.e 1of 14 SRR
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Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
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CREDIT RATING REPORT
. On .
MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

3.0 cowomm PROFILE o

. __-:2.1 : The Gen&sis
- Mir Akbler Hossain. Limi
“iMie Grobp, The Groy

“riAkhter Hosslan Limited as the ﬂagshlp cornpany under the promment entreprenedr !ate ar,
sopkeh Hossain --j_F:‘om Ingeption, ‘every toncern ‘of ‘the, Gruup ‘has heen.operating
©repukation an
"in 1969 which !ater converted Into a. private fimited company in July 18, 1980. Subs
MAHL was cnnverted ‘Intea ‘Pdblic Limited Company .on Janary:10, 201?.- :
- 2021; the Company: went for initial public offering and the ‘shares ‘of the company are. Tisted
“with both the bourses of the country-Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock™
“Exchange - (CSE) under ‘N’. category. ‘The authorized capital and pald up capital stood sak
“Tk.2,000,00 ‘million and Tk.1,207,72 million respectively as . on September 30, 2021 The |
'mlsslon of the cormpany is to provide quality and superior services through: the integration of =
“excellent desrgﬂ solutions, dedication to sustainable and egonomical capacity,: Tesponsible o
‘hiring compstent subcontracts ‘and value for safety and custorner satisfaction. Equipped, with

" construction of international standard Roads & Highway, Bridges, Industrial Complexeai_etc
: in March 02 2021.

' Mr‘ Mir NaSir Hossain a renowned buslnessman, is the Managmg Dtrectcr uf the company “The
" Head Dffice-of the company Is located at Réd Crescent Borak TowerLevet 7 &19, 71 72 OId':

_Being a public limited - listed company, the ownarshlp of MAHL Is- belng hefd by spansnrs,-.--
- institutional shareholders and general public, The sponsors of the company. held 48.58%
. shares by 4 sponsors, followed by 3.90% shares by “local institutional 'shareholder,
~47.529% shares by general public at as on June 30, 2021. Although the shareholding patterns -~
- ‘portraits diversified shareholding status, the overall decision making and. management contral -

- 30, 2021

" -‘3 o CORPURA‘{E GOVERNANCE

3. 1 Board of Dlrectnrs ' :

_ “The Board of Directors consists ‘of e%ght {08) members and led by Mr. M Nasir Hossa;n as. the__.
" Managing Director of the Board with his prudency In the business arena. The Board. malnly'
‘reviews “the ‘overall activities of ‘the business and gives necessary .strategic gusdeitnes fo

3 _'-onward potfcy imptementation. A brief detatls of the board Is. dellneated beiow- .

'is: a build ﬂg and ‘civil, construction company and a major co_ :.e
ists of ‘several business units having: exposure In Telecon,
eramic, Real Estate; Power,: ICT- sector ke, The Group started its’ journey in:

th good
positive ‘brand image, - MAML was initially established as a° partr;ership cpmp

sound production “facilities, “the company ‘successfully executed ‘diverse - projects” ‘like

MAHL has one subsidsaw namely Mir Securlhes Limlted {99. 75% halding) which im:nrp _rated

Eiephant Road, Eskaton Gan:fen Dhaka-1000.

2.2 Ownership Stmcture

nd E

has remained In sponsoe’s hand, Moreover, the current share holding position is consisted of
48.58% by Spensor/D rector, 3. 74% by instttutlons, and 47 68% by pubhc as. on Novembe

Posluon tn the Board e

08 members Goard

Name : Academlc Qualmcation

Mrs. Sohela Hussa!n | M.A{Philo.y - ) Chairman
{_Mr. Mir-Hagir Hossaln - B. Com (H) M. Com MD
] Mrs, Mahasbuba Nasly 1 BLA {Hon 5) Direr:mr i
1 Mr. Shama-e-Zaheer =~ © ] MBA i o 'Direcmr&COO

Mr, Md, Farld Uddin "

A (Modem History}

: Independent Dlrectﬂr-

" M. AJKGM Faizur Rahman

MBA

Independent Director -

Ullah

Praf, Or, Muhammad Shariat

P D(Econemics]

| Independent Director. -3, _

Prof. Nausheen Rahman

| Pagezofi4 |

MBA {Finance)

lndepenﬂent Difector
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N Etpenenced managemeﬁt

tvam_.

The board held 4 rﬁeetlng’s during FY2020-21. The .company has three-member. Audit’

“auditors for removing the' lrreguiarities referred to it. The ACheld 2 meetlngs during Y202
©21. The Nomlnatlon and 3-Remuneration Lommittee. (NRC) is formed with three memb_ers ing
B 1jaiso headed by Mr

- Executive Directors, - Project Engineers. and . officers. Managing "Director ‘is empowered: with
. sufficient " financial, ‘adminlstrative “and business delegation, Moreover, officials ‘at”differen
“rlevels have Tbeen tiven . requisite “business -delegation,” The  Head ~Office: management._

. segregated Into different divisions and is headed by experlenced & qualified professionals who

is given beiow- L
Mame - o . 1 Designatlon T s
L _Mr. Mir Nasir Hossain o E 1 Managing Dlrecter S L e B
‘| Mr, Shama~-e-Zaheer - : . 4 Elrector & COO L
Mr, Azlzul Hague - . L : . "] Br, Executlve: éirectcr (Techr;lr:al)
Mr, Md, Golam Mostefa . © oo .Sr. Execulive director (Mech:) .
Mr, Syed Rasheduzzaman . 3 Sr. Execubive director (Engineenng) :
Mr. Manik Kumar Biswag N 1 -5r, Executive director {(Project) =
Mr., Md, Momtazul Karim Khan N Executive director (Planhing & Co- orﬁmat!on)
Mr, Md. Ashrafiid Islam . Executive director (Project)
1 Mr. Parymal i(umer Sarker,-FCA . Chief Finance Qfficer
3.3 Human Resoyrce Managernent )

- “benefits #t has the practice of creating provident fund for employées, As of September 30

B4 . MIS and Internal Control Mechanism

: 4 0 SUBSIDIARY OPERA‘HON

Credit Rating Infarmation and Services Limited
First 190 8009 : 2015 Cortilad Sredit Raling Compary » Bangladash Opevating Since 1995

CREDIT RATING REPGRT
o On
MIR AKHTER HQSSAIN LIMITEm

‘Committee (AC) headed by Mr, Md. Farid Uddin, Independent. Director as the ‘Chairman: AC
Teviews the ‘compliance Jssues and recormends course -of action to ‘interral and externa

d.Fard Uddin as Chairman NRC haid one meetmg duringthe pericd

chpora o .anaga _ant

M, Mir: ‘Nasir Hossain, Managing Director: In the- management team, Mri Nasir Is ald'e by

are Successfully carrying out varlous tasks towards achieving the company -goal- as well:as:

. Group objectives. Various divisions -at Head. office include ‘Enginéering, Planning and Co-
- grdination, Procurement, Adm!nistratwe and Accounts diwsian A brief of managemen team'

MAHL provides competitive ' compensation package to its- emp!oyees. Among ‘other: Ermge"'

2021, MAHL's had total 1967 personnel as a technical, professional and other supporting staff':
and permanent workers, The company also has contractual staff anhd temporary ‘daily *hasis ¢
workers, MAHL has the expertise.and technical Know-how to-handie assigned tasks efficiently :
‘and effectively at all times. Performance evaluation and career deveicpment through In= rhcuse. :
and outslde trainlng program seems li m:ted in the company : :

The IT & MIS system is still in the developing stage and the management has the pianning to g

- 'develop and build enriched IT department. MAHL is using QuickBook Pro, Tatly for: Accodhting,
. -Auto CAD, MS Project elc. for preparation of -Bills, and many. other packages for daily worlcof
- the -office. - The company has -sgparate internal aud!t department excluslvety 1o justify ‘the

. ﬂﬂancial and business transaction : , i .

o The company has one. fuliy controlied subsidiary company namely Msr Secunt!es Limitsed (MSL)
- incorporated In March 02, 2021 to carry on the business of broker or dealers in capital market.
o The comparny has: obtained Trading, ‘Right - Entidement ; Certi ficate (TREC) from’ DSE: S Total
1 iregistered Buthorized capital of MSL stoad at Tk, 200.00 mit!ion and paid up. capital. of Tk, 0,
- cmiflion as on June 30,2021, Mir Akhter Hossaln Limited (MAHL) held 99,75%. shares" '

. ts busifiess. On the Gther hand “tha co:m::any incurred. some adm}nlstrative “COSE which _'::
-resulted net loss of Tk.10.41 riftion, MSL -has total asset of Tk, 69 90 mlti:on against which [
'has tatak I|abi|it|es of“!‘k 0 31 mi!ilon as on June 30 2021 B : RS

| Paga3of 14
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_;5 2 Op-ratlonal Strategy T, A
“MAHL: operates ‘their: projects under a. set Of strategies as impiemented “Hy ‘the campany _
management, ‘Operational strategy of the company Is segregatecl into pre construction’ -stage,
- “construction. stage and."post ‘construction -stage, The tompany has a good: comblnatlon 0
“backward and forward linkage. Presently the capacity of servicés 6f the company.is “high ‘i
- -cormparison with its peers and the company atterngpts to secure prestigious projecis-by. forming
 “joint venture with forelgn construction companies. MAHL has the plan to_participate in the
“eonstruction of rallway track,” dredsing .of nver, censtruction of eﬁiuent treatment plant fcr B
'-tannenes, ccnstructson ef fiyover etc : SN

©.ppon the study of the EOQ and specification. The planning “and -scheduling department i§ =

- .headed by planning and scheduling engineer who  carry. cut’the -detalls of inventory g
" “matertals required for the project, The Tequired materials are prccured theough head office

-purchase department, Major construction materials are procured and stored atsite in sufﬁclent_ -

5.5 . Infrastrnctura and Construeﬂon Faclllt[es P L
“he mmpany is well ‘equipped ‘with construction.and infrash‘uctures facitltles. _The company
“hag adequate: equipment 1o handle .more than 40 projects at -a ‘time.’ Besides, in order to
.. ~support its pngoing activities, M&HL ‘has contractual arrangement with: different tonstmctwn
- .companies 1o outsource work in;

" Tank, Submersible Pump, Pril ‘machine, ‘Generator, ‘Grinding machine,” Audit-Steel’ shutter,
. Column shutter, Beam shutter ete. The company has been zdding. constriction, equnpment to.

Page 4 of 14
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© FistiSO 00T 2018 Contifad Credl Rating Gompany in Bangladesh Operating Sincy 1883

CREDIT RATING REPORT
on
MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

_ '_"5 :l. Busine sPrnf‘le g : i
:_MAHL is widely . focused in the . canstruct[an Business,.: wh ch Inctudes construdlb_
-'lnternatlonal standaid ﬂo&'
" of Sugar, . Pharmaceuticals
. international Standard Hotel: Buildings, Auditoriums, cademlcs, Food. angi Fertﬂazer warehol
Leke, The clients ‘of MAHL conhsist “of - Government, Semi-Govt, “Privatear
- Assoctations,: Forergn Embassies etc, The company: has successfuliv" ompiet
: of hlgh vaiued projects at aﬂ centra! poants over the muntfy.

The overali project management of MAHL stari:s w:th a project plann!ng where the.total project
‘scope s determined arid defined. Severai meetings are- arranged for decls[on ‘making-ahout
‘the first blush plan. Technical scope Is established and basic areas of -performance -and..

- responsibiiities are pmposed and approved by the participants and the top managerent. “Then

. ‘where the prospective profit and loss relating to a project is determined. Somé related factors

. ‘scheduling process s carried ‘out to .co-ordinaté the -overall “projeét, ‘Immediately. after.
“scheduling, aitocatlan of resources is properly done. Regular monitoring process is carnedout
.in the projects. Periodic inspection -of accounts from Head OFfi ce is done as. we}I as total
Lprocess is revuewed under the senlor management of. the campany

5.4 Pmmrement Strategy S ' VLRI
- MAHL has separate “procureément policy with local -and imported materials, Pmcurement
-materiats include civil worlis, Tarmiture fabric, furniture polish matertals, carpet with undérlay;.
‘firefighting component, electrical. and mechanical works and communication equipment etc,

C. o procures raw matena! and other accassones at dlfferent stages of construction from different -
ﬁ'supp!iers. _:._:' ’ . . RO )

sHighway,; Bridges, Industrial Complexes ke Factcrry budid
nd - Textile Mills, Office. - .Complexes, ‘Functional: ‘Bulidinos;

5 3 Pro}ect Management

an estimatlon of cost:and allocation of resources are mada in the form of project budgeting -

like inflation, differential changes In cost factors etc. are adjusted with the budget, Then

Procurement policy of the company starts from receipt of the construction drawing as well a5

yuantity "so that progress of work Is hot ‘hampered at any stages of “work, “The company

tl_mes of ‘necessity. ‘Major. items of. construttion equipmen

includes Mixture  Machine, “Moz =, Vibrator Machine (diesel ‘& electric), Water Pump;-Wate

its operation every year Lo cope wlth Increasing volume of business, The' company has. its own

reputed . international- companies - for executlon of iarge pm}ects ﬂnanced by intemak,ional'--_-' "
.._.rnanciai organ!zationlke WB, ADB etc. RS . L




Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
First 190 8001 : 2015 Contiffed Cratiit Rating Company i Bangladash Operating Sinen 1436

Settiny glodnd standard ¢ nationnd fovct

CREMT RATING REPOR‘T
on -
- MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITEID

However, large loca! prejecis having complicated pature and types require fermatian of the o

- tompany Cby.Joint Venture - (3¥), . Consortium, and -Assaclation - with .defined “share’ of

‘. -participation by ‘each’ party “MAHL “has 'the .expertise ‘and techmcai know“hcw to hand!e
BEES ass!gned tasks eff‘cientiy and- effactively at all times,. L

“with desfgn ef eiactrgcal .F.nglneer and Es operated by Hcensed e%ec’trlcian, Before the sta of
“construction, achi nery s checked. thoroughly to protect it from any ‘hazardous:situation. To
‘have- Safety ‘against fire diring progect, -adeguate number of fire extinguisher and fire exit is
. kept, A proper system of entry lnto the project area-Js: followed with a slgning reglster and

3 -securlty guards, S . _ . R

6.0 i:RojECT DETA]’:LS

6. Completed Projects
~The company has successfully campleted various hlghly prestiglous pmjects and handed ho )
- over to thelr cllenls, During FY2020-21, ‘MAHL initlated 5 new projects such. as Jamuna Rail
Bridge, Jarmuna river dretging, Munshiganj bridge -ete, from which It generated TK.634,90"
milllian revenue. Moreover, the company continued the work on, 12 pro]ect from the prawous
- year ‘which generated Tk, 2, 789 38 msEllon revenue, e

6,2 Ongoing Projects
As of November 11, 2021 the company has 30 on- golng projects, Totat vaiues af:t
“projects ‘stands at Tk, €0,856.86 million, Among -the on-going projects, 14 projects are
“currently completed more than 80% with the value of Tk 25 961 27 mi iiion whtch gre expected

i:o be completed wlthin next 2-3 years o .

Goad number of mgafng
’ pmjects :

20 xpo FUND u*rxuzﬁ.'rzon

E in order to expand tne busins:ss, MAHL floated its share thrcugh IPO ta ralse fund of Tk
1,250.00 riliion from tha capital market, The fund will be used for ‘investing ‘in_capital
_mach!ner es, Joan repayment and . 1P0 expenses T‘he detaits 0f IPO fund uti!:zatio

_ November 30 2021 15 brleﬂng b‘*!ow.-._

. 1,25000 ]

«

(45,85

: . : v Tk in miflion
C{ Purpose or_utilizstlon o .| Amipunt as per ‘!‘otall “Utilized utll!xed “Total Un~ 000
L N SR Pmspectus Amowmnt - (%} utitimd-.'-_-_
B : ) ) Amnun‘t*- S
i Heavy Equipment : 503.00 : - “0.00 0300
- 1_Aggregate Processing Piant . C 274804 =a= .00 127 00'
~ 1 Asphalt Plapt o oo 46,75 C46.75 | 100,00 - :
“i| Congrete Batching Plant 3740 4 ) s 0.00 i 3? 40
S Warehouse and Warkshop 100,85 1 - _ 92,55 91.87- it R
C1 Repayment of Bank Loan. -~ 400.00 400.00 100.00 - e
srof Estimated 1PQ Expense -35,G0 : -35.00 '108.00
7| Total IPQ Proceeds "~ . S 574,40

. {redit Rating Infarmath




Setting ¢ledad dudad af watissad fesed

" Good fimancial
performance

| Page 6 of 14 .{,}L\M

8.0 FINANCIAL PERFC)RMANCE

Credit Rating Information and Services Limited
First 150 8001 : 2015 Carlilied Credit Rating Company in Bargladash Oparating Sinca 1965

CREDIT RATXNG REPORT
on
MIR AKHTER HQSSAIN LIMITED

i Finaﬂclal performance analyss le. based on consolidated ﬁnancials of the company The
- - company reported consolidated financial statemeénts as well as separate F nancial statement
' line with Bangladesh Accountlﬂg Standard and 8B gutdenne. SR

}Indlcator P

W2920—21 : FYZDIB-ZO" : FY2018-19 i

1 Revenue {In mlillon TK ) : S T ©.3.242,28 |02 804 06 ] ol DRT.04°
i} Gross Profit {in milllon TK) L IRRERInD N I T 2 Ry 41 0% 1 e R Vi Ky B
“of Net: Prafit rmm own constmctlon busmess (in muuon 1: COLE6 L7497
Lo TR S SR
‘t Net Proﬁt aﬂter tax l’rom Jalnt Venture (in miliion Tk ) R -.36'? BB 300,04 (-
Total Net Proflt after tax (in mllllan TK.) ] 45045 375 0%
Gross Profit Margin (%) : : 28,86 |- 28.43
Net Profit Margin {9%:) o . ) 1417 1 - :.13 92
| _Cost to Revenue Ratia (%) .~ . 71.13 71.57 .
Administrative & Selling Exp. te Revenue Ratio 9% ) 6,12 " 5.37 578
Financa Cost tp Revenue Ratlo % : : 14,14 - 44,07 TR 47
Return on Average Assels After Tax (2%) : 2.13 2,00 4,27
1 Return on Aversge Equlty After Tax {%) : .77 : 10 251 - 20 05

; Retum on Average Capital Emn?oyeé (%) - _' " 2.62 - 2 44 o 5 53

_ .The overatl ﬂnanc}al perfcrmam—e of MAHL has been found ko be geod durmg F‘r202€}-21 a5 the
- company registered a revenue growth of 20.31%. MAHL has been recoghizing: its reveniie on
-~ bill recelved basis, During FY2020-21, MAHL Initiated 5 new profects from which it generated :

"revenue ratio remained stable, On the other hand, the administrative expenses and. finance
_cost ratlo both Increased frorn prevlous year resultlng 19, 59% growth in cost ot execution of- :

" CRISL has aiso'ccnsidared the Unaudlted ﬂnancsai Statérnént:; for 15‘ Quarfef of ?Y'2021"'22 N

“dropped to Tk.:67.23 million against Tk.104.40 m;iiion of the same period Gf FYZBZO 21 due to
. decrease in éncome from ja nt ventureA : : 2

Tk.634,90 ‘mililon - and ‘continued the work on 12 project: from the “previous ‘year-which -
generated TK.2,789.38 miilion revenue .Consequently, the gross profit Increased by 22.13%.

“Though the: admin and finance cost Intreased, the net profit |ncreased by 22.52% due ko =)

increase In income from joint venture, As a result all the profitability indicators such as Return o

“pn Average Assets (ROAA) and Return on Average-Capital Employed {ROACE) Increased as the e
“-growth of return was comparatively higher than asset and net assat gmwth Mc:reover, MAHL.
- has 30 ongoing prmects wlth a vaiue of Tk. 60,956 86 mmtan. : . : BT

Whlle analyzing the cost effidency of the company, CR]SL ehserved that the ccst of services to
contract

As per the unaudited accounts, the revenue stood at Tk, 810.14 million (Tk,216.35 million for
1%:Quarter of FY 2019-20) and gross profit stood at Tk.235.83 million.Net profit significantly

s%uzaffar ieé'rwf i
Prasiden} and CEQ

o .«e.;s_iﬁa!.f{zg Tnformation and Sﬁ?f;é&é_ﬁlﬁ.__ i
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9.0 FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SOLVENCY

(Amount in mﬂma Tk )

Ason Juna .

] _.'As on June:
; 30,2021 30, 2021
. Current Assels 673,600 en 8 3581
Sl Less: Currentllabuities L8 03067000 3,100,267
1 Met Current'Assat A4 2642898 4 S 2638.56
Add: Non-Current: assets SIS 047.415] 0 14,684:27 ]
L Capital Emp]oved CAT,600,34 101 7,318, 82
: Financed by I B i
s Equ;ty L R oo R _'
1 Paid up capltal - A2 300000
"1 Retalhed eamings . 3197.94 27368.47" 2 363 46':
i Share Premium 104228 s S
Reserve & Dthers 107,71 T 10? 54-'
‘Yotal Equlty 5555.65 “3846.08 3,471 DD B
Norn-Current Liabiiities: L N =
- i Long Term Liabiiities L 12,134,689 13,473.82 10 001 54
"1 Total Equity & Non- Current I.labillues 17,690.34 |  17,319.82 13,472 7]
Leverage Ratio (X) . ~3.09 S 431 3,89
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (X) 2,99 '2.89 404
Interest Coverage Ratio ()() 2 GU 2 43 2 : 3 64

MAHL is operat ng wlth debt’ based capital structure. The capital structure revaafed that the

- company has 75.55% debt (of which 29.31% In short-term and 70.69% in fong- term) an
24.45% equity. The equity ple comprised of 21.74% share capital, 57.56% retained earnings,

© 18,76% share premium and 1.94% reserve and others, As a construction company, MAHL
*financed Its projects through bank loans therefore, total liabllities of the company increased by

© 3.57% In_the form of short term as well as long term debi. However, the leverage ratio -
decreased due. to higher growth In equity compared fo the: growth of liabilities. Both debt -
service -coverage ratio and interest coverage. ratio indicate that the company has ‘the

: capabtiities ED pay off its debt obiigatron. : :

’ ﬂefzt basgd u:apfra.f
Ustrycture

; .10,0 ' LIQUIDIW AND FUND FLOW ANALYSIS

FY2019-20

moza-w 5]

Indicators FY2620~21
Current Ratio (X) R -k 185 7 ~1;61
Quick Ratio (X} - 0.68 NN .90
‘[ Operating Cash Flow (Tk. In million) -203.57 - -H2.8B1 1. 1,282,976
Net Working Capital (Tk. In milllon} 2,642.93 2635.56 214387
e Operatlng Cash Fiow to Current Deht Ratm ()() 0 DS ) 0 02 R =Y

: Being a constructnon compenv. MAHL needs funds for purchasing ccnstruction materiais and
other “administrative costs: of ‘projetts and hés . been  miaintaining its worklng capital_
requirements as well as liquidity from bill received, short term banl ﬁnancing, inter-company

loan and trade credit facility from supplier. Generaiiy, the company ‘starts work against the!

- work order and subrmits the bill based on. completion of work. The company received the bills -
¢ after the work is Inspected and met the required quality, Mostly; the. company. recelved the -
" hills within "30 days after ‘submitting ‘the .bills. On.the other hand, ‘the: working capital
‘requirement of the company varles in -line with project ‘warks and_ the .Company..has been
~ ¢ enjoying bank loan facillties for ‘meeting its requirement AL présent; the company Isenjoyin
. loan liability Jof Tk.27,706,52 mliilon agafnst the praject value of Tk60 956 86 million
. "representing 45 45% of pro;ect vame

“Average liquidity

The' Hquiduty of the company has been faund to be average due to posrtive cash flow and et
- working capital, The current ratio afso found fo be average but the quick ratio is below than i
accepted level due to holding high Inventory for its business, While znalyzing the cash fow,
. CRISL found that the operating cash fiow Increased in FY2020-21 as the cash. rece]pts fram =
customers increased by 20.54%. However, the operating cash flow to current debt ratio has '

. "been found moderate as the cempany has slgniﬁcant amaunt of current liabllities n. the forrn 5
’ of short term loan, - - g ‘ :

| Page7of14 | -
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' i1, 0 CRED!BILI‘T\' ﬂND BANKING REL&TIDNSHIP

TR Llabi];ty Position B R SR _
“The company has been enjoymg ﬁﬂancial f’lexiblllty Emm different banks The tutal liabaiity
~ the company: stood  at Tk 2?,?06 52 mllllon ccnslsted of term Joan of Tk.2 4?1 71 million,
3 e _ k'-i

Tk 2} mm!mn

R Baak e R . .1'.;'Limtt;..: i
Nameloutstandlng % P T

Dhaka Bank Limited- " -] -Worklig capltal-Funded - 1,650.00 g '-'48190 ; 'i(e -

S0, 11 21 o Werking capltal «Non funded 100060 195,73 § o ooal
. T Sub Yotal 2,650.00 -1,683.63 R
'Al-Arafah-tslaml Bank | Working capi{al Funded -~ 2,400.00 2,214,850 -'Re"ula':"."

_ Umlted-30.11.21 Working capital -Hen funded 1,506.00 691,29 | Neouar:
- Sub Total 3,900.00 2,906,14 -
‘Bank Asta Umited- . ¢ Working capita -Funded : 1,000.00 500,00 Reqular

;i;gtg;ar Iaan repaymenr 30.11.2% - Working capitat -Non funded ) : 600.00 ‘8170 RN
) - Sub Total - ) - 3,600.00 -5B1.70
B ‘BRAC Bank Limited- Working capital ~Funded 2,130.00 1,184.42 ..-'iRégLEIa;'
30.11.23 Working capitai -Non funi:‘ed 2,500.00 2,093,600 TP
) Sub Total ) 4,630.00 . 3;278.02° :
Jamuna Bank btimited- | Terfm Loan 657,39 “3BLPB | i
S (5 B3 § Working capital -Funded 2,050.00 _:280.00 | -Regular.
] Working capltal -Non funded 2,500.00 o T
Sub Tetal 5,407.39 501,28
Midlang Bank Limited- | Working capitaf ~Funded : 506,00 256,41 ﬁegdlar B R
14.12.21 Working capital ~fNon funded 200.00 97.94 TR L
. Sub Total ) 700,00 354.35 i
© . Mutual Trust Bank Werking capltat -Funded 1,679.00 1HO9A42 ©op o o
Lirpited-30.11.21 Working capital -Non funded R OU0.00 1 83454 | eadar
) Sub Total : 3,679.00 . 2,642,956 :
NRB Commercial Bank . | _\Werking capltal - Funded 1,10G.00 1,080,008 | e
Umited-30.33,21 | Working capital -Non funded 1,506,080 742,08 gutar
I subTotal 2,600.00 T1,822a7
- Uttara Bank Limited ~.:.]_Worklng capital -Funded 500,00 L e e
30,111 ¢ “{ Worklng capital -Non funded " 420.00 e
“Sub Total 920.00 -

United Commercial Teqm Loan 425,40 206.70.F -
Bank Limited=30.11,21 |-orking ¢apital -Funded 2,50000 |~ 1,967.00 | Regular ..
o “T7 1 Working capitat -Non Furlded 2,400.00 co1,ese20 f e

Sub Total : ' 5,325.40 _.4,089.80
I - <] Term Loan C 7346 R - IR
Shahjalal Islaml Bank 1 Working capital -Funded 1,750.00 1,281 87 ! Regular::

Limited-10.11.21 Waorking capital - Non Eunded 3. 185.28 ce 02 28282 R

' Sub Totaf ' ' 5,008,75 | - 3,642.75.°
R o -] Term Loan - 730,44 CaBETAR | e oy

Dutch Bangla Bank Working ¢apltal ~Furded 1, 200,00 116188 | “Regular -] 0

Limited-30.11.21 § Warking c:apital —Non funded - 920,048 ARG ]
L e SubTota! i T

Page Bof 14 |

2,850,44 | -

T 2,101.37

. Prasident d CEO
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T T demiean 58360 BETNEH R
Soctal Istami Bank - . |_Working capital -Funded C 4, 70000 - 1,45’1.555 =

' 11 2 Securiw Arrangement against Bank Exposure _:f

B 12.0 RISK -ANALms' o

- Umited-30.11.21 Working capital wMora funded SR RE0000 ] T g0, 32
T | SubTe¥al Lo | g EIaeg | 16:;_2._70:- g

SR Termn Loan o 0 B e (136 004
T Modhunett Bank - | Working r.a;)ital »Funded e B0 T
'-"1Umited A0, 11 21 1 Working’ ca;ﬁtai «Nan funded' ik 1 180,00 0
e T Sub Total - T 0000
st TetmoLoan L R00:00 7 -
smndarci Bank Lim!ted T Working capital - Fursr_fed CUREAY 0.0 ] L
ST -20 12 2}. i Worklng capita! Nan furtdeti : o1 200,00
. Sub' Totaf S :3,650.00 s
Tatal : 49,354.58 2? 705’52-- :

MAHL has offered both primary security ‘and collateral to avail the bank facﬂat jes: from the_ .

above mentioned banks, The company offered Factory Land, Bullding, Taventory, Receivables,_' S
fL/C margin Shlpping dccuments and’ acceptance, personal guarantee as security

- The -'successful ‘impleméntation of the project depends on the ability of the companys
. construction of the facilities, weather condition, labor and- supply of raw materials within due . -

‘down the progress of the projects.

12, 4. Raw Materiaig Supp!v Rlsk : :
Though MAHL has backward linkage: (construct!on matenais such as brick cement concrete
- tlES ete,} to support. the construction works It sources the construction ‘mater] lals from. epen
inarket, -Any supply ‘gap ‘in bath Ioca! and :nternatvona! market may hamper the proje
sl comptetion In due time RN : i :

L

12 1 Project Completion Risk

time. -Moreover, ‘the- Bangladeshi construction industries have been directly and indirectly. B

. affected by the ongeing measures taken by the country's government to control the spread of
. the corona virus pandemic. The unprecedented measures have suspended the construction ™
-works of all major infrastructure projects, worth mofe than US$30bn, lnc!uding the Padma

Bridge; Rooppur nuclear power plant, Matarbari power plant, Karnaphuli river tunnel and -

* Dhaka metro rail. One of the reasons for the suspension of construction works Is that, nelther

forelgn’ nor local employeés can ‘work under the preva:ﬂng sltuatuon, which wiIE deﬂmtefy siow_ o '_ :

12 2 Price Fiuctuation Risk : '
Prices of ¢onstruction rnaterials such as iron, cement (:oncrete are increasing in recent years,

rapidly. As MAHL has to complete the project works .within stipuiated tlme frame at ﬂxed_'-_-_-_:i

contract price,. lt is expnsed to price fiuctuahon nsk

12.3 Market Rlsk : S '
‘Bangladesh has high potential for infrastructure industry market Already many pi ayers are in Ed
the Industry and MAHL has stable position-in the market. However, the entry barrier in the

 market is' not acute and several construction companies are coming in the business each year. .-
-Entrance of néw competitors w;ll create unhealthy compet tion in the market affecting the
Vexssting market. share L . : :

Fresiﬁeﬁt and CED
!Ra 1rg i ammtmn amf emes i.if:i
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' = -13.0 OBSERVA‘HON SUMMARY

Ratlng COncerns' TR

) Rat!ng Cumforts. :

"Deht based capital structuirg
S Dependency on. bank ﬂnanc
- Project completion risk

: Gwd ﬂnancial performance

© Sound Infrastructural facllltles G
Strong Group: suppoﬁ

: -'_.-Experienced tep management .
Constructlon experlem;e of. hlgh valued

R Y '-.

ele lwlw

Business Praspectw o o Buslness challan{;as. ‘
) l)lverslﬁcatlon of operatlcn . a . Mainta&nlng appmprlate standard as i
s - Cheaplabor . .- per agreement
s Huge Govt, expﬂnditures for constructinn . e Handever ‘of projects em tlme
- mega pm}ects T : ‘ s Price fluctuation of constructmn
materials : R

'- _E,_mj GF THE REPORT - |

{Information usea‘ herein is ubtamed l‘rum sources helieved to be accurate ana‘ rellabz'e. Hmvever, CRISL daes not
‘guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any Information and is ot réspansible for any’ errors or:
“emissions or for the results obtained from the use of such informatipn. Rating is an gpipion-on credit quality only
. -and s nof a recommendation to buy or sell any secaritles, All rights of this. reportare. reserved by CRJSL, Contents
- may be usad by news, medﬁa and researcheﬁ Wlth due acknow!edgement) : L ‘

' [We have examrned, prepared, finalized and issued this report witheat wmpremi‘sing wrth me matters ar‘ any_ S
conflict of interest, ‘Wé have also complied with all the requirements, policy procedures of the ESEC rules B85
prwcribed by the Bangladesn Secumfes and Exchange Cemmiss:on J ;

. ?wsndem and CEQ.
o '“?a-;;i'i? ﬁngt !osmgtwnaﬁd semws_m

&
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CORPORATE XNFORMATIDN

- ‘Board of Directors' o
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| MroShama-e-Zaheer - S rectof B COQ. Lo v
"l M Md. Fartd Uddin - | Independent Director - -
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15,0 FINANCIALS (Coasalidated)

A. Balance 5heet (For the year endad 30 juna)

C {0 In cnilligny

F¥2019-20

Pr&svﬂem ami éEﬂ

Partlculars : FV2020‘21

: Nn:rincttrrent Asgets 5 R
Properiy Plant-& Edijipment ‘40?5.66 A AR40.45
‘Capital work ln progres-s : e R

- Investment : 10971.76 “10843.82 ;

1 Total Non- Current Assets 15647.41 1468‘ 27N
Current Agzets - sy i

1 Inventorieg et R 6252 81' 3525 94

| Trade Dabtorg oo i . S Rt
Adv. Deposits &Preoavments 3020. 14-: - 1000.02'- S 11 37T0
Other Current Assets B06.G7 © 732,931 7 1539,39
Cash & Bank Balances 1594.58 476,92 407 81
Total Current Assets F673.60 573581 | . '£559,38
furrent Liabilitles j : S
Shiort Term Loan 487347 2612.0% 2712.21
Long Term Loan-Current Portitm ] s ) -

Trade Creditors : i N
Llabiiitlas for Expenses 55.28 138.71 107,14
|_Other ST Liabilities 101,93 - 34946 o B96,17
“Total Current Llabillties 5030.67 310026 3515.52: 000
Het Current Assels - 2642.93 26835861 214387
Lapital Employed 17690.34 17319.827} © 13472.64 1
Nan-Current Liabliities : N IR &
Long Term {oan 12131.36 13470.49 9998,32
Defeired Uablitles 3,33 -3.33 333 30
Total Mon-Current Liab!llty 12134.69 13473.82 1000_1.64 R,
Non controliing Interest 0.17 i . R
Sharehelders’ Equity e : 1
Share Capital 1207.72 1000.00 { 1000 D{} o
Share Premium 1042.28 B :
Other Reserve 107.54 107.54 - 10? 54
Retalned Earnings - 3197.94 273847 2363.46 |
Total Shareholdars’ Equltv 5555.65 | . 3846,0) | - 24731,00;
Tota) Equity and LT Llabiiit!es - 17690.34 -1 37319.82 | ~ 13472.64
' Total Assets ) 22721 Qi - -20420,08 | - 16988,16°
-B. !ncome Statement (For the year ended 30 June) VTN S e
TR i polllea)
Particulars FY2020-21 | FY2019-20 '| FY2018-1% -
| .Saleés Revenue - 3242.28 C 694,96 1. A4267,04 ) T

1 Cost of Goods -Soid 2306.56 19248,78 | - 3134.81
Groass Profit - 935,72 768,18 ©-1332,23 .
Salary & Allowances 142.49 - 30,258 ] 185,15
Other Admin, Fipenses §5.98 134,40 69101 :

1 Total Admin. Expenses 198.46 14465 | 245,285 |-

1 -Selling & Distribution Exp, 00 CUe,00 ) 0,00
Prafit from Operation 7372.26 621,53 1. 886,98 |
flnaniial Cost 42592 T379.09 [0 3614

1 Other Income - " 384.27 313,37 1505 454,

| Altoéation for W.PR.P. F & W, F olae e 1248 {0

Profit Before Tax 673.50 L R43,83 ]l
L Ingome Tax ool 20,06 IGE.6Y
| Profit After Tax -~ 459,45 © 375,01 i

i i%ag Information ant Services |

632,49
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| CRISL RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS .
_LONG-TERM RATINGS OF CORPORATE _

'DEFINIT!’ON
1 Invastment f Gmde 3 o ; :
Enbity rated in this’ categnary Is ad}udgmj to be of bwt qua’hty, er!fg:r hlghest sarew anrs have hl
credis quality. Risk factors ‘are negiigible ‘and risk free, tearest to skt o i
sechirities,: Chang]ng Monemic clrcums' i :
-i:atggng of. cum;gaﬂ%es‘ Rl :
“Entity: rated In:thls cate ecry is adjudqaﬁ tu he or hlgh U
credit quality_ This:{eveliof: ratlng ‘indicates ‘a- eorpo

Entity rated In this categary is adjudqed to. offer adequate safety fur nmely repaymenr
;ohiigatmns “This level -of raﬂng indicates '3 corporate entity with 2n adequate credit: prume ‘Risk
factars are mone variabie and greater in. peﬂads vai’ &mnomh: siress than mﬁe rat&d ln the hlghm_
:ategoﬂes . 8 ) [

saa+. BBB, T} Entity rated In this category is adiudged to offer mﬂderate degree of safety for imely repayment of

BBB- - 1| {inencial obligations.. This level of rating indicates that = company is under-perfarming In ‘some
Trigte & _| areas. Risk factors are more variabla n-periods of economic stress (han thoss rated n the higher |
{Moderate - ©} categeries. These ontities are however considered tp have the ‘capabiity i mrerccme the above-
- Safely) mentlonad fimitatiens,
B_B_i-.. 8B, BE- | Speculative Grade L
Double 8. | Entity rated .in :this category s alsjﬁdqed 1o hst:k key pralec{iun faciors, which fE.SuRS in an:
{lnadequate : Insdequale sofely, This level of rating Indicates a company as helow Investment grade but deemed .
CSafetyy sl likely to meet: uhh;ations wherr due Overail quality. rpay fhove up ar down [requenﬁy wnzhin liﬁs'
: tatiegary. i :
B4, B, ii-_ .| Entity rated ‘in. tnis category s adiudged to be with high sk, ﬁmew epayment -of | ﬂnanclai_
“Singte B . | obligations iz impaired by sericus probiems which the enlity Is faced with. Whils{ an entity fated Jn
{Risky) this cabegsty might be durrently meeting obligations: In time through creating external Habliities,
€EC4,CLL, Entity tated In this category Is adjudged o be vulngrable and might fail tu meet its repayments
- CEC- frequently o it may currently. migsting obligations In time through creating external llabllittes, | 0.
Triple C . Continuanca of this would depend upon lavordblt eccnamlc conditions o on seme degme ul’ Sl
{Yutrerable) extarnal suppart, N
€L+, CC, CC- ‘Entity roted in this category i5 sdjudged to be very highly vulnerabia, Entity might not have.
- Double € - | réguired financsl fexibility to “gontinoe meeﬂng ebiigarjons, hawever, cor;tlnuan-:e o! nmely- :
~{High repayment i§ subject to external support. . Y : L
Vuirerable) .
C+,C,C- Entlty roted in this thtegory Is adludged to be with extremely speculativelin umety mpayment of
Bingla T 1 finzncial abligatons. "This leve! of rating Indicates gntitles with vely séious problems and unless
(Extremely extemal support Is prnvideﬁ they viould be unable to meet rnamﬁal ohilgaﬁons. W e ;
Speculalive) : s
) -t Pefauit Grade - - L : SN :
{Default) Entity rated In rhis categun-‘ is ad)udged 1o be either alreadv In derau: or ex%_:semd to be in delaun

3 Mote; For long-Em ratings, CRISL degipng + (Positive) sipr Lo indicate that the iSsud IS renked at'the upper-énd of /s genersy fating Lategory and
{Minus) slgn ta Jm‘:#&te fhar the &sue is rankedat the battem md af fls ocﬂwc rating ¢ategory.. ng wfmm‘fno‘s wichouf any &bn u’eaare nid-levels

- of gach group.

X L SHORT-TERM RATINGS oF coRPORAYE
Con L P Mighast Grade S : -
SR o SRS Highest ceatnty of tlmely paymant Shurble:m liquiﬁnty indudinq lntemal !und generaﬂon i very-
T .| strong and access to aitermative sources of funds Is oulstanding. Safety ls aimnst dike: risk free’
Govérnment shett-term oblm_gtlons :

) R High Grade - . : .
C8T=2 . | High gertainty of tlmelv paymem. L!quiﬁlty rmurs. a;e strung and supported hy goa uadsmemw
e ‘protection factors. Risk !‘aders are vitry smail : o
T Good Grade s i
S Good tertainty “of. Umely paymeat. uc;u!dity rm:tms and ::ampany fundamenmis ‘e, suund :

Although: engeing funding needs. may entarge total ﬂnandng rgqulremenls, access to capita!.
markets ls géod. Risk !aciors are smail. :
L] Moderate Grade S e
Cigpeg o | Moderate liguidity and czher pmtecﬂan factms quaiify an ealih,' tn he En hwatmcnt a}rdde Risk
TR ‘factors are lan er and subjecz b0 maie variabon. e :

R Non-!avestmentlﬁpgeculatweBmda S
ST-85 @ .x 0 Speculative’ Investment -tharacteristics, Liquldlty ls not suﬁiclem l& ensum

x charging B
ob!lqmons Daeraung far::ors and market siecess may be sublect toa hlgh dugma of variamm.
Sreminy e Defaalt LA !
§7-6 - . | Enlityis: ln defau& orls Elkeiy m defau!t ln ﬁisc_harglng its si}m—tﬂm ubugatim 5.

Ilg_g_}idlw and e.xternai .,ﬁpport is um:ertain

— SRR TSR T SR muzaﬁarﬁhmeé Fem
e T pdmand GED
] T R R T R A e et Ratina [nd

fion and Servings Lt
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_ On
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R B C}USL RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS
BANK LOAHI FACILITY RATING SCALES AMD DEFINITIONS. LUNG-TERM
DEFINITION

!nvestment Grh:{e 3: S ;
Bank Loan/-Fadlitiss enjoyed by bank]ng clle i 'in this categmy ‘are ‘adjudged (o have
highest credlt quality,- offes highest saliety and rarry. “atmost o’ sk, Rlsk fackor ;
and almu:s pearest i toorsk’ free Govemmmt Hnds and spcurities,: “Chaiiging

clreumnstances are unlikely to have any serfous impact on this eategory of losns/ fadlitle
Gank Loan/ Faciities enjoved by Danking clients rated In this category are adjudged to have hlgh
eredit. qua;ity, offer. higher sarety_and have high' credit quality, This tevel of rating Indicates that:
-_the Ingn /. facllities enjavzﬁ by a0 entity - has sound Lredit profiie] prd without ‘zny significant:

)
(nghcst Sa!tty)

'berei-, bffM. bir
e

(Double A)

(High Safaty) .pmi‘njiem Risks are madest an ____ay vary siighﬂy fmm tlme o ﬁme because or ec nomic"

S O conditians, s : : :

blrBey BIrR, - Bank Loan/- Fwiities yated In this rateqory ‘ere adjudged ¢ cary adequare saiexy for ﬂmew.
I /7 S “repayment/ setlement. This Jevel of rating Indicates that the loan / fackities enjoyed by an ‘entity
G Bliigle A have rdequaieand reliable tredit profile. Risk factors are. more varlahre amﬂ grcam' in peﬁo:ﬁs of

{Adequite Salety) ' “seoaomlc stress than those Tated in the highar eategorias, -

T hifBBB+,LIBBB, | Bank Loan/ Fadillties Tated in this categdry are adjudged to offer moderste degree ﬁf safely fOf 3
‘bireBa. 1 timely repayment /ulfiting commitments, This Jevel of rating indicates that the dient ehfoying
Triple B 4 loans/ faciities pnder-performing In some areas, ‘However, these clients are considered o have
(Moderate Eafety) { the capabiity to overcome the above-mentloned limikations, ‘Cash Towis are iregular byt "the

4 same is ‘sulficient 1o sarvice the loan/ Fulfil commitments, Risk faciers are mum vadahle in_

1 periods of econaimic stress than thése rated in the higher categar{es
-bicBB+, bIFBR, 1 Speculative/ Non investment Grada

- birg- ) Bank Loan/ Fadiities rated In this category are adjudgcd o Jack key motectwn !actnrs. whlch
L Duble B résults in an Inadequate safety. This level of rating indicates Joans/ facilities enjoyed by @ client
{Inadequate | ‘are below Investiment grade, However, clients may discharge the obiigatian irregulary within

SBalety) reasonable e although tey are In Nnanctal/ cash problem. These faans./ facilitles néed strang
S 0| monitaring from bankers side, There is possibllity of overcoming the business situation with the
suppoet -from granp, concems,f owWners. Gveratl quality may mave up . down fneqt;entiy w;thm'.
. this category, i

b4, birg, | Bank Loan/ Facilities rated in tbis category are adjudged 1o have weak pmtecﬂan factors. Tlmety

: birB~ fepaymant of financlal obfigations may be Impaired by problems, Whilst a Bank toan rated In this

Single B category might be currently mesting obllgations Ia tirme, continuance of this would depend upon

{Somewhat Risk} | favorable economic conditions or on some degree of external sapport, Specia monitcriﬂq i
: : needed from the financial insututiens to recover the instaﬂments
birCCC+,bIrCCC, Risky Grade '
bircCC-Triple € -1 Bank Loan/ Facilities rated in this categorv are_ndjudged to be i \mlnerahla smtus and the

(Risky } cllemts enfoying these loans/ faclities might fail to meet its repayments frequently or it may |
e currently meeting obiHgations through creating external support/labilithés, Contlnuance of this |

weuld depend upon favorable economic conditlons of on some degree o! extemal supperl These i

R toans / faciiies need steorg monitoring from bankers side for recovery.

GG+, BICE, Bank Loan/ Fodlities rated In this category are adiudged to carry high ﬂsk Cslent enjoyirm tha

"BirCe- . <1 loan/ facility might not have vequired hizandal Nexiblity to continue  mewting : philgations;’

' Double € however, cpntingance of tmely repayment Is subject to.external snppm’c These loans A Iaciillies'

{High Rizky) need strong onitoring from bankers side for recavery.
bfrc+, BirG, | Bank Lhan/ Facliles rated in this category areadjudged to be extremely risky in tlme:y o
- bir€s | repayment/-fulfiling commistaents. This fevel of ratiny Inglcates that the dients’ enfaying. these
{Ext_remeiy 1 lesn/ facilities are with very sericus problems and unless external support s pmvlded the:y would :
‘Specutative) | be unable to meet financial ubilgnuons i
ey Befault Grade. -
~{Default) Entities rated. in ihis category ara adjudged to be elther atready in derault or expef:ted Izo be n
default..

SHORT-TERM RATINGS

Highest Grade . B j :
T ST | Highest certainty of bme% ] ymeﬂt Short -term iiquiclw in;lud%nq lntemal fund generatlon is
) : very strong and access to alternative sources of funds Is eulstand ng, Safety Is atmost Hke nsk N
- free Government short lem’: ohltgauens : :

High Grada

STz U High cersalty of fimaly. payment, Lit;u%uiitv factars are. SU‘QGQ 2n porte 'b'y ‘gudﬂ_—_

fundamental prulectinn racmrs Risk ractors mz very smali
Good Grade - BERIEERT . Dl
Gaood cerfainty of Umcly payment Liquldity l'ax:mrs ami cemgany fundamemaig are saundﬁ_;
Although ongolng funding ieds inay nnsnrgg total, fnandng requ!rements, .acx:ﬁ«ss to caplzas
markels is good, Risk factors are sma!i : :
. Satisfactary Grade " S o
BirsT~4 | Sptisfactory hnuidity and omer pmtmxon factar' quailfy Issues as to Invcst gmd Fusk iactws
IR arg larger and §ibject to maote Vaﬁmlon . : :
. Non-Invesbment Grade . L : : : :
‘Specutative Tnvestrment characterisuc-s Uquldlty Is not sufﬂcient m lnsure against dlmipﬂﬂﬂ 1"
i debk service. Operatlnq fai:tms and market access mag be sub;ect in a hlgh degrEé of var’ia!ion
DIrST6 - befault :
!nstitutlon lal|ecl to meet ﬂnam:ial nhugmjons

b TS
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